
1 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  
Board of Education 

"Building a Bright Future for All Learners" 
 

Regular Meeting 
August 21, 2024 
6:00 p.m. Closed Session 
7:00 p.m. Open Session 
 

Vernon E. Greer Elementary 
Bright Future Learning Center (BFLC) 

248 West A Street, Galt, CA 95632 
 

To join the webinar remotely: 
https://galt-k12-ca.zoom.us/j/83485942335 

Or One tap mobile : 
    +16699006833,,83485942335# US (San Jose) 

    +16694449171,,83485942335# US 
Or Telephone:     
408-638-0968 

 

Board Members 
Traci Skinner 
Casey Raboy 
Katherine Harper 
Annette Kunze 
Wesley Cagle 
 

AGENDA 
Anyone may comment publicly on any item within the Board's subject matter jurisdiction to the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Board 
of Education. However, the Board may not take action on any item not on this Board meeting agenda except as authorized by Government Code 
section 54954.2. 
− Complete a public comment form indicating the item you want to address and give it to the board meeting assistant. 
− Individual speakers shall be allowed three minutes to address the Board on each agenda or non-agenda item.  
− Public comments emailed to superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us 24 hours before the board meeting will be posted on the GJUESD website with 

the agenda. Email public comment is limited to 450 words. 
− The Board shall limit the total time for public input on each item to 20 minutes. With Board consent, the president may increase or decrease 

the time allowed for public presentation, depending on the topic and the number of persons wishing to be heard.  
 
Board of Education Meetings are recorded. 

 
A. 6:00 p.m. – Closed Session Location: Vernon E. Greer Elementary, Room 3 
   
B. Announce items to be discussed in Closed Session, Adjourn to Closed Session  
    
 1. STUDENT MATTER, Education Code §35146, 48918(c) 

 Case No. 24/25-01 
 

    
 2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE, Government Code §54957  
    
 3. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR, Government Code §54957.6 

Agency Negotiator: Lois Yount, Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar, Alejandra Garibay 
 Employee Agency: (GEFA) Galt Elementary Faculty Association 
 Employee Agency: (CSEA) California School Employee Association 
 Unrepresented Employees 

   
 4. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS, Pursuant to Government Code, §54956.8 

Property: 320 W Elm Avenue [APN 148-0140-057-0000] 
Agency Negotiator(s): Lois Yount, GJUESD Superintendent 
Negotiating Parties: Galt Joint Union Elementary School District and City of Galt 
Under Negotiations: Purchase, sale, exchange, or lease of real property 

   

mailto:superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us


2 
 

C. Adjourn Closed Session, Call Meeting to Order, Flag Salute, Announce Action Taken in Closed Session 
   
D. Recognition  
 1. 2024 Governing Board Member Candidates  
 2. Galt Character Coalition Recognition of Susan Hughes  
   
E. Board Meeting Protocol 
  
F. Public Comments for topics not on the agenda 

Public comment is limited to three minutes or less, pending Board President's approval. 
  
G. Reports  
  
 LCAP GOAL 1 

Engaging all learners with a focus on academic rigor using inclusive practices in a variety of learning environments. 
 1. New School Year and Enrollment Updates 
 2. 2024 Summer Programs 
 3. Spring 2024 California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) and English 

Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC) 
 4. Dual Language Immersion (DLI) Program 
 5. 2022-2023 CA School Dashboard Local Performance Indicator Adjustment  
   
 LCAP GOAL 2 

Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and supportive 
environments. 

 1. Student Smartphone Use On School Campus  
    
 OTHER REPORTS  
 1. Williams Uniform Complaint Process (UCP) Quarter 4 Report 
 2. City And Schools Together (CAST) 
 3. School Calendars  
    
H. Routine Matters/New Business  
 242.501 Consent Calendar  
  a. Approval of the Agenda 

At a regular meeting, the Board may act upon an item of business not appearing on the posted agenda if, 
first, the Board publicly identifies the item, and second, one or more of the following occurs: 
1) The Board, by a majority vote of the entire Board, decides that an emergency (as defined in 

Government Code section 54956.5) exists or 
2) Upon a decision by a two-thirds vote of the Board, or if less than two-thirds of the Board members 

are present, a unanimous vote of those present, the Board decides that there is a need to take 
immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention of the District after the agenda 
was posted; or  

3) The item was posted on the agenda of a prior meeting of the Board occurring not more than five 
calendar days before the date of this meeting, and at the preceding meeting, the item was continued 
to this meeting. 

MOTION 

     
  b. Minutes  
    June 17, 2024 Special Board Meeting 

 June 18, 2024 Regular Board Meeting 
 

     
  c. Payment of Warrants 

 Vendor Warrants: 25501171-25501228, 25499035-25499113, 25496720-
25496801, 24491311-24491377, 24492219-24492276, 24493692-
24493784, 24494533-24494583, 24495983 

 Payroll Warrants: 7/10/24; 7/31/24; 8/9/24 

 

     



3 
 

  d. Personnel  
    Resignations/Retirements 

 Leave of Absence Requests 
 New Hires/Reclassifications 

 

     
  e. Donations  
     
  f. 2024-25 After School Education and Safety (ASES) Program Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) Between GJUESD and the City of Galt 
 

     
  g. Agreement for Legal Services with Lozano Smith, Attorneys At Law  
     
  h. Master Contracts for Nonpublic Schools and Agencies 

1. Assistive Tech 4 All, Inc. 
2. Assistive Technology and Beyond 
3. CCHAT Center 
4. Creative Behavior Systems 
5. Easter Seals Superior CA 
6. Hansine Fisher & Associates 
7. Lodi Children's Therapy 
8. Point Quest Education – Central Valley 
9. Point Quest Education – Depot Park 
10. Sara Hall 
11. Tilly Therapy 

  

     
 242.502 Consent Calendar (Continued) – Items Removed for Later Consideration MOTION 
    
 242.503 Board Action Regarding Student Matter No. 24/25-01 MOTION 
    
 242.504 Board Consideration of Approval of 2024-2025 SchoolWorks, Inc. Proposal for 

Demographics and Enrollment Projections 
MOTION 

    
 242.505 Board Consideration of Approval of Consultant Agreement for Outdoor Education MOTION 
    
 242.506 Board Consideration of Approval of Variable Term Waiver for Newly Hired 

Educator 
MOTION 

    
 242.507 Board Consideration of Approval of Resolution No. 1 Accepting Final Completion 

of Contract for the Maintenance and Operations Shop 
MOTION 

    
 242.508 Board Consideration of Approval of General Contractor for Site Work for Portable 

Classrooms at Vernon E. Greer Elementary 
MOTION 

    
 242.509 Board Consideration of Approval to Update the Supervisory Salary Schedule MOTION 
    
 242.510 Board Consideration of Approval of Administrator Daily Substitute Rate MOTION 
    
 242.511 Board Consideration of Approval to Piggyback on Clovis Unified School District 

Contract with AZ Bus Sales to Purchase Three (3) Electric School Buses 
MOTION 

    
 242.512 Board Consideration of Approval of Revised GJUESD Facility Use Forms & Fees MOTION 
    



4 
 

 242.513 Board Consideration of Approval to Change the April 16, 2025 Regular Board 
Meeting Date to April 23, 2025 

MOTION 

    
 242.514 Board Consideration to Nominate California School Boards Association (CSBA) 

Directors-at-Large Asian/Pacific Islander and Hispanic 
MOTION 

    
 242.515 First Reading of Board Policies 

1. BP 1260 Educational Foundation 
2. BP 2121 Superintendent's Contract 
3. BP 4127/4227/4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches 
4. AR 4127/4227/4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches 
5. BP 5113 Absences and Excuses 
6. AR 5113 Absences and Excuses 
7. BP 5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications 
8. BP 6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services 
9. BP 6177 Summer Learning Programs 
10. BP 7214 General Obligation Bonds 
11. AR 7214 General Obligation Bonds 

First 
Reading 

    
I. Public Comments for topics not on the agenda 

Public comment is limited to three minutes or less, pending Board President's approval.  
 

   
J. Pending Agenda Items  
    
K. Adjournment  
    
    

The next regular meeting of the GJUESD Board of Education is September 18, 2024 
    

Board agenda materials are available for review at the address below. Individuals who require disability-related 
accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, to participate in the Board meeting should 

contact the Superintendent or designee in writing. 
 

Lois Yount, District Superintendent 
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 

1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 
superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us 

 
 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      August 21, 2024 Agenda Item:  Closed Session 
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item:  
 Information Item: XX 
  

1. STUDENT MATTER, Education Code §35146, 48918(c) 
 Case No. 24/25-01 

 

   
2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE, Government Code §54957  
   
3. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR, Government Code §54957.6 

Agency Negotiator: Lois Yount, Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar, Alejandra Garibay 
 Employee Agency: (GEFA) Galt Elementary Faculty Association 
 Employee Agency: (CSEA) California School Employee Association 
 Unrepresented Employees 

  
4. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS, Pursuant to Government Code, §54956.8 

Property: 320 W Elm Avenue [APN 148-0140-057-0000] 
Agency Negotiator(s): Lois Yount, GJUESD Superintendent 
Negotiating Parties: Galt Joint Union Elementary School District and City of Galt 
Under Negotiations: Purchase, sale, exchange, or lease of real property 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      August 21, 2024 Agenda Item:  Recognition 
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item:  
 Information Item: XX 
  

 

1. 2024 Governing Board Member Candidates 
 

2. Galt Character Coalition Recognition of Susan Hughes  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Revised December 21, 2023 
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 

BOARD MEETING PROTOCOL 
 
 
 
 
SESSION INTRODUCTION 

1. The meeting is being recorded. 
2. The meeting is open to the public. 
3. The meeting is being broadcast live through Zoom teleconference. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

1. Public comments are three minutes per agenda item. 
2. The Board shall limit the total time for public comment for each agenda item to 20 

minutes. 
3. With Board consent, the Board President may increase or decrease the time allowed for 

public comment. 
4. To make a public comment in person, complete a public comment form indicating the 

item you would like to address and give it to the board meeting assistant. 
 

EMAIL PUBLIC COMMENT 
1. Public comments emailed to superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us 24 hours before the board 

meeting will be posted to the GJUESD website with the agenda. 
2. Email public comment is limited to 450 words. 

 
BOARD VOTE AND CONNECTIVITY 

1. Each motion will be followed by a roll call vote for action items. 
2. Should a board member attend the meeting remotely and lose connectivity by 

teleconference or phone, the meeting will be delayed five minutes. 
 
 
REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS SHALL BE ADJOURNED BY 10:30 P.M. 

mailto:superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us


Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
Meeting Date:     August 21, 2024 Agenda Item: Reports 

Presenter:           Lois Yount Action Item: 
Information Item: XX 

LCAP GOAL 1 
Engaging learners with a focus on academic rigor using inclusive practices in a variety of learning environments.

1. New School Year and Enrollment Updates
2. 2024 Summer Programs
3. Spring 2024 California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) and English

Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC)
4. Dual Language Immersion (DLI) Program
5. 2022-2023 CA School Dashboard Local Performance Indicator Adjustment

LCAP GOAL 2 
Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and supportive environments.

1. Student Smartphone Use On School Campus

OTHER REPORTS 
1. Williams Uniform Complaint Process (UCP) Quarter 4 Report
2. City And Schools Together (CAST)
3. School Calendars



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board of Education Meeting: August 21, 2024 
 

 
LCAP GOAL 1 

New School Year and Enrollment Update 
 

 
 
 
LCAP GOAL 1 
Engaging all learners with a focus on academic rigor using inclusive practices in a variety of learning environments. 
 
 
1. New School Year and Enrollment Updates 

Lois Yount, Superintendent 

  
2. 2024 Summer Programs 

Kuljeet Nijjar, Educational Services Director and Lori Jones, District Expanded Learning Coordinator 

  
3. Spring 2024 California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) and 

English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC) 
Claudia Del Toro Anguiano, Curriculum Director 

  
4. Dual Language Immersion (DLI) Program 

Claudia Del Toro Anguiano, Curriculum Director 
  
5. 2022-2023 CA School Dashboard Local Performance Indicator Adjustment  

Claudia Del Toro Anguiano, Curriculum Director 
 
 
 
 



 
 LCAP GOAL 1 

Enrollment Update 

August 21, 2024 
 

 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
 

 

 

Total Enrollment 

Beginning 
2024-25 

Ending 
2023-24 

Ending 
2022-23 

3459 3447 3361 
 

Enrollment by School  

 2024-25 2023-24 2022-23 
Fairsite  
(Transitional Kinder) 

154 125 94 

Greer 544 539 508 

Lake Canyon 468 470 511 

Marengo Ranch 449 467 446 

River Oaks 509 517 534 

Valley Oaks 540 515 508 

McCaffrey 781 777 781 
 

Enrollment by Grade Level  

 TK K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
Fairsite  154          
Greer  62 81 66 82 77 62 89   
Lake Canyon  58 50 64 55 61 92 63   
Marengo 
Ranch 

 64 63 52 61 56 62 78   

River Oaks  54 51 62 78 69 81 60   
Valley Oaks  89 84 67 65 72 70 65   
McCaffrey         380 401 
Total 154 327 329 311 341 335 367 355 380 401 

 

 



Summer Programs 2024
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Programs

Extended School Year (ESY), Summer School, Migrant Program:

❖ June 17th through July 12th (no school 6/19, 7/4)

Expanded Learning Summer Program (GEL)

❖ June 14th through July 24th  (no school 6/19, 7/4)



Staffing

● ESY Coordinator: Gina Fuentes
● Summer School Coordinator: Gerardo Martinez
● Expanded Learning Coordinator: Lori Jones
● Expanded Learning Site Coordinators - 7
● Teachers - 29
● Classified Staff - 52 ( IAs, Yard Supervisors, Office Assistants, GEL 

IAs, Food and Nutrition, RBT, BIAs, BMT ,custodians)
● School Nurse- 1
● Speech Therapists-2



Attendance
Grade Number of 

Students
Average 
Attendance

PreK 42 64%

K 41 57%

1 51 68%

2 50 69%

3 41 58%

4 52 73%

5 51 63%

6 45 57%

7-8 28  44%

Total 401



 Academic Growth
Percentage of students that made growth on pre and post tests. 

Accuracy Rate

Kindergarten 70% N/A

1st 91% 95%

2nd 80% 73%

3rd 78% 77%

4th 81% 62%

5th-6th 59% 81%



Migrant Program 
➢

➢ Measurable Program Objectives
Cultural and Self-Pride and Mathematics

➢

➢ Students will research the history of Mexico’s independence from Spain. 

➢ Students will research the history of United States independence from England.  

➢ Students will compare and contrast the factors which impacted the desire for 
independence of Mexico and the United States.

➢ Students will compare and contrast Independence Day celebrations in Mexico 
and the United States

➢ Students will present their findings in a Google Drawing. 

➢ Expressions and Equations/ Functions

➢ Number System

➢ Ratios and Proportions
➢

➢

➢



Olympics Thematic Unit: ELA/Social Studies

1. What do you know about the Summer Olympics?
2. What are your favorite events?
3. What do you wonder?
4. Why are the Olympics important?



Expanded Learning Summer Programs

● Served students and families at 5 sites
● 7 Site Coordinators and 

 15 Instructional Assistants
● 21 Community members volunteered in the Summer GALEP 

program
● 250 students served throughout the summer session



Expanded Learning Summer Programs

Students participated in a variety of 
activities that included:

● Field trips - Cosumnes River Preserve, 
Walking field trips, Library

● Special projects - Solar ovens, Volcanos, 
Sensory bottles, making Slime and 
Oobleck

● Indoor activities (to avoid the heat)
● Water days
● Summer GALEP





CAASPP2024Results

SBAC
The Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments (SBAC) consist of two sections and questions are
based on the Common Core State Standards (CCSS) for English Language Arts (ELA) andmathematics.
These ELA andmathematics results provide onemeasure of howwell students aremastering California’s
challenging academic standards. The skills called for by these standards- the ability to write clearly, think
critically, and solve problems- are essential for preparing students for college and careers. SBAC is
administered to students in Grades 3 -8.

There are four performance levels for ELA andmath; Level 1- StandardNotMet, Level 2- StandardNearly
Met, Level 3- StandardMet and Level 4- Standard Exceeded. The goal is a Performance Level 3 or Level 4.

The data below reflects the percent of students who obtained a Performance Level 3 or Level 4
asmeasured by SBAC 2024. As a reference point, SBAC 2023 results are also included:

English LanguageArts/Literacy

District 3 4 5 6 7 8 All

2023 50% 41% 40% 50% 50% 54% 48%

2024 50% 46% 46% 49% 61% 49% 50%

Mathematics

District 3 4 5 6 7 8 All

2023 55% 40% 31% 39% 33% 33% 38%

2024 49% 41% 33% 37% 36% 27% 37%

CAST
The California Science Test (CAST) is a statewide assessment thatmeasures howwell students in
California's public schools understand science concepts. The CAST is alignedwith the California Next
Generation Science Standards. CAST is administered in Grades 5 and 8.

There are four achievement levels; Level 1- StandardNotMet, Level 2- StandardNearlyMet, Level 3-
StandardMet and Level 4- Standard Exceeded. The goal is a Performance Level 3 or Level 4.

The data below reflects the percent of students who obtained a Performance Level 3 or Level 4
asmeasured by CAST 2024:



ELPAC
The ELPAC consists of two separate English Language Pro�iciency (ELP) assessments: one for the initial
identi�ication of students as English learners (ELs), and a second for the annual summative assessment
to identify students’ English Language Pro�iciency level and tomeasure their progress in learning English.
ELPAC is administered to English learners in Grades K-8.

There are four performance levels of English skills development; Level 1- Beginning stage,
Level 2- Somewhat Developed , Level 3-Moderately Developed and Level 4-Well Developed.
The goal is a Performance Level 4.

The data below reflects the percent of students at each performance level asmeasured by ELPAC 2024:

Grade LEVEL 4 LEVEL 3 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 1

TK/K 15% 27% 25% 32%

1 8% 29% 42% 21%

2 14% 50% 20% 16%

3 16% 41% 33% 11%

4 22% 38% 22% 19%

5 16% 49% 17% 7%

6 49% 37% 10% 4%

7 40% 28% 16% 16%

8 49% 29% 8% 14%

District 22% 36% 24% 18%



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

CAASPP: Smarter Balanced Test Results

Percentage of Students Met/Exceeded Grade Level Standards

~ Preliminary ~

English Language Arts/Literacy

District 3 4 5 6 7 8 All

2023 50% 41% 41% 50% 50% 53% 48%

2024 50% 46% 46% 49% 61% 49% 50%

Greer 3 4 5 6 All Students

2023 55% 44% 33% 52% 46%

2024 37% 48% 52% 38% 44%

Lake Canyon 3 4 5 6 All Students

2023 46% 45% 48% 52% 48%

2024 50% 46% 57% 48% 50%

Marengo Ranch 3 4 5 6 All Students

2023 57% 45% 58% 52% 53%

2024 69% 51% 48% 57% 56%

River Oaks 3 4 5 6 All Students

2023 56% 44% 42% 47% 47%

2024 57% 56% 45% 43% 50%

Valley Oaks 3 4 5 6 All Students

2023 36% 27% 20% 49% 34%

2024 44% 26% 28% 57% 39%

ELA 6 7 8 All Students

2023 50% 50% 53% 52%

2024 61% 49% 55%

Mathematics

District 3 4 5 6 7 8 All

2023 45% 40% 30% 39% 33% 33% 38%

2024 49% 41% 33% 37% 36% 27% 37%

Greer 3 4 5 6 All Students

2023 52% 42% 26% 36% 40%

2024 40% 48% 35% 33% 39%

Lake Canyon 3 4 5 6 All Students

2023 53% 58% 37% 42% 47%

2024 42% 44% 54% 41% 45%

Marengo Ranch 3 4 5 6 All Students

2023 53% 47% 57% 39% 49%

2024 56% 39% 37% 46% 44%

River Oaks 3 4 5 6 All Students

2023 73% 34% 24% 39% 42%

2024 63% 52% 23% 23% 40%

Valley Oaks 3 4 5 6 All Students

2023 36% 21% 9% 38% 26%

2024 45% 22% 15% 44% 32%

Math 6 7 8 All Students

2023 39% 33% 33% 33%

2024 36% 27% 31%



CAASPP & ELPAC 
Results

Board Meeting  |   2024



★ 2018 Regular Year
★ 2019 Regular Year
★ 2020 Suspended
★ 2021 Flexed
★ 2022 Back On Track
★ 2023 Regular Year
★ 2024 Regular Year

Reflecting Back

Testing Administration

Good Place To Look At 
Cohort Growth



SBAC

English Language Arts
& Mathematics

Goal:  Met/Exceed Standard
Level 3 or 4

Administered to all 

students in Grades 3 - 8



District Summary



District Summary



Data Reflections

Administrative Reflections

Teacher Reflections

Identification of trends

Instructional implications

Alignment of local assessments

Correlation to MAP

Correlation to attendance

Curricular pacing

Testing conditions & timing



School Summary          Greer Elementary



School Summary          Lake Canyon



School Summary          Marengo Ranch



School Summary          River Oaks



School Summary          Valley  Oaks



School Summary          McCaffrey Middle



CAST

Science

Goal:  Level 3 or 4

Administered to all 

students in Grades 5 

and Grade 8



CAST  Summary



ELPAC

English Proficiency

Goal:  Level 4

Administered to all 

English Learners in 

Grades K - 8



ELPAC  Summary



Important to always use multiple sources of 
data before making instructional decisions.

SBAC   ELPAC   CAST   MAP   DRA
Benchmark, Amplify, Eureka, CPM



Comments  |  Questions



  

LCAP GOAL 1 
DLI Program 

 
 
LCAP GOAL 1 
Engaging all learners with a focus on academic rigor using inclusive practices in a variety of learning environments. 
 

4. Dual Language Immersion (DLI) Program 
The Dual Language Immersion (DLI) cohort began their journey two years ago at Fairsite and 
completed kindergarten last year at Valley Oaks Elementary. We are excited to now offer the 
DLI program in first grade. 
 
The DLI vision statement is as follows: 
At Galt Joint Union Elementary School District, we believe that all languages and cultures are 
important. We will provide an inclusive educational opportunity that values and teaches 
multiculturalism, develops bilingualism/biliteracy, and provides a high-quality academic 
program for our students to strengthen their self-perception and identity and be successful in a 
global society. 
 
Laura Marquez, Principal at Fairsite/DLI Coordinator, and David Nelson, Principal at Valley Oaks 
Elementary will share the progress with our DLI program. 

 



Dual Language Immersion 

Board Presentation 
August 2024



Vision Statement

At Galt Joint Union Elementary School District, we believe that all languages and cultures are important. 
We will provide an inclusive educational opportunity that  values and teaches multiculturalism, develops 
bilingualism/biliteracy, and provides a high quality academic program for our students to strengthen their 
self perception and identity, and be successful in a global society.



Three Pillars
“In Dual Immersion Programs,
English-dominant and
target-language-dominant students are 
purposefully integrated with the goals 
of developing bilingual skills, academic 
excellence, and positive cross-cultural 
and personal competency attitudes for 
both groups  of students." 
(Lindholm-Leary, 2001 pg. 30)



Instructional Model



Language Allocation Plan, PK-1st
Grade Percentage 

Spanish 
Daily 

Minutes
Content Percentage 

English 
Daily 

Minutes
Content

Preschool 90% 153 mins ● Math
● Science
● Social Studies
● SEL
● Reading and Writing
● Library

10% 17 mins ● English Language 
Development  (ELD)

Tk 90% 140 mins
 

● Math
● Science
● Social Studies
● SEL
● Reading and Writing
● Library

10% 15 mins ● ELD

Kínder 90% 288 min ● Math
● Science
● Social Studies
● Reading & Writing
● Library

10% 32 min ● ELD
● Music
● PE 

1st

320 min total 

80% 256 min ● Math
● Science
● Social Studies
● Reading & Writing
● Library

20% 64 min ● ELD
● Music
● PE



Language Allocation Plan, 2nd - 5th
Grade Percentage 

Spanish 
Daily 

Minutes
Content Percentage 

English 
Daily 

Minutes
Content

2nd 70% 224 min ● Math
● Science
● Social Studies
● Reading & Writing 
● PE 

30% 96 min ● ELD
● Music
● PE
● Library

3rd 60% 192 min ● Math
● Science
● Social Studies
● Reading & Writing  
● PE

40% 128 min ● ELD
● Music
● PE
● Library
● Math
● Reading and Writing

4th 50% 165 min ● Math
● Social Studies
● Reading & Writing 
● PE

50% 165 min ● Music
● PE
● ELD 
● Math
● Reading & Writing  
● Science

5th 50% 165 min ● Math
● Social Studies
● Reading and Writing
● PE

50% 165 min ● ELD
● Music
● PE
● Math
● Reading and Writing



Language Allocation Plan, 6th
Grade Percentage 

Spanish 
Daily 

Minutes
Content Percentage 

English 
Daily 

Minutes
Content

6th 50% 165 min ● Math
● Reading and Writing
● Science
● PE

50% 165 min ● ELD
● Music
● PE
● Math
● Reading and Writing
● Social Studies



Curriculum and Instruction
● District’s core curriculum 

○ Benchmark Adelante/Advance
○ Eureka Math
○ SSRI/SIPPS

● Grade level, standards-based instruction
● Lessons are taught in the target language (90/10 model)
● Teachers highly trained, continuous PD

○ California Association for Bilingual Education (CABE)-trained instructor(s) providing our 
professional development 



Program Growth
● Grades:

○ Preschool
○ TK
○ Kinder- 2 classes
○ 1st- 2 classes

● Waiting list since year 1



Data 

  

23-24 Trimester 1 DRA 23-24 Trimester 2 DRA 23-24 Trimester 3 DRA

Kinder DLI: 
Students Meeting 
Benchmark on 
District Reading 
Assessment (DRA)

32/43 = 75% 41/43 = 95% 41/43 = 95%



  

LCAP GOAL 1 
CA School Dashboard Adjustment 

 
 
LCAP GOAL 1 
Engaging all learners with a focus on academic rigor using inclusive practices in a variety of learning environments. 
 

5. 2022-2023 CA School Dashboard Local Performance Indicator Adjustment  
The State Board of Education (SBE) approved standards for the local indicators that support 
a local educational agency (LEA) in measuring and reporting progress within the appropriate 
priority area.           
 
As part of the process, this item was presented to the Board during the June 2024 meeting.  
The information included in the self-reflection tool under ‘Appropriately Assigned Teachers, 
Access to Curriculum-Aligned Instructional Materials, and Safe, Clean and Functional School 
Facilities (LCFF Priority 1) reflected information of the 2021-2022 Academic Year. This 
updated report now reflects information related to the 2022-2023 Academic Year (page 4).  
 
Updated Self-Reflection Document Attached 









































 
LCAP GOAL 2 

Student Smartphone Use 

GJUESD Board of Education Meeting: August 21, 2024 
 

 
 
 
LCAP GOAL 2 
Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and supportive 
environments. 

 
1. Student Smartphone Use On School Campus 

Lois Yount, Superintendent  

  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM • SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 • (916) 445-2841 
 

 
 
 
 
 

O F F I C E  O F  T H E  G O V E R N O R  
 

 
August 13, 2024 
 
Dear School Leaders,  
 
As we strive to create the best learning environment for all students this new 
academic year, I write today to raise an urgent issue that affects their well-being: the 
pervasive use of smartphones in schools.  
 
Excessive smartphone use among youth is linked to increased anxiety, depression, and 
other mental health issues. A recent Pew Research Center survey found that 72% of 
high school and 33% of middle school teachers report cell phone distractions as a 
major problem. Common Sense Media found that 97% of students use their phones 
during the school day for a median of 43 minutes. Combined with the U.S. Surgeon 
General’s warning about the risks of social media, it is urgent to provide reasonable 
guardrails for smartphone use in schools. 
 
As I work with the Legislature to further limit student smartphone use on campus, there 
is no reason for schools to wait. In 2019, I signed AB 272 (Muratsuchi) into law, which 
grants school districts the authority to regulate the use of smartphones during school 
hours. This legislation was a crucial step in our efforts to minimize distractions and foster 
a more conducive environment for our students to learn. It is imperative that school 
districts take full advantage of this law to address the growing concerns surrounding 
student well-being and academic performance. 
 
Leveraging the tools of this law, I urge every school district to act now to restrict 
smartphone use on campus as we begin the new academic year. The evidence is 
clear: reducing phone use in class leads to improved concentration, better academic 
outcomes, and enhanced social interactions. Schools and districts, including Santa 
Barbara Unified and Bullard High in Fresno, have seen positive impacts of limiting 
smartphones on campus, with some reporting higher test scores, grades, and student 
engagement, and less bullying and damage to school facilities. I applaud these 
districts, and others like LA Unified, for their leadership. 



GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM • SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 • (916) 445-2841 
 

Every classroom should be a place of focus, learning, and growth. Working together, 
educators, administrators, and parents can create an environment where students are 
fully engaged in their education, free from the distractions on the phones and 
pressures of social media. Thank you for your continued dedication to our students 
and support in making our schools the best they can be.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Gavin Newsom 



Policy 5131: ConductPolicy 5131: Conduct Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/27/2012 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/27/2012

The Governing Board believes that all students have the right to be educated in a positive learning environment free
from disruptions. Students shall be expected to exhibit appropriate conduct that does not infringe upon the rights of
others or interfere with the school program while on school grounds, going to or coming from school, at school
activities, or using district transportation.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each school develops standards of conduct and discipline
consistent with Board policies and administrative regulations. Students and parents/guardians shall be notified of
district and school rules related to conduct.

Prohibited student conduct includes, but is not limited to:

1. Conduct that endangers students, staff, or others, including, but not limited to, physical violence, possession of
a firearm or other weapon, and terrorist threats
 

2. Discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying of students or staff, including sexual harassment, hate-
motivated behavior, cyberbullying, hazing or initiation activity, extortion, or any other verbal, written, or
physical conduct that causes or threatens to cause violence, bodily harm, or substantial disruption
 

3. Conduct that disrupts the orderly classroom or school environment
 

4. Willful defiance of staff's authority
 

5. Damage to or theft of property belonging to students, staff, or the district

The district shall not be responsible for students' personal belongings which are brought on campus or to a
school activity and are lost, stolen, or damaged.
 

6. Obscene acts or use of profane, vulgar, or abusive language
 

7. Possession, use, or being under the influence of tobacco, alcohol, or other prohibited drugs
 

8. Possession or use of a laser pointer, unless for a valid instructional or other school-related purpose (Penal Code
417.27)

Prior to bringing a laser pointer on school premises for a valid instructional or school-related purpose, a
student shall obtain permission from the principal or designee.
 

9. Use of a cellular/digital telephone, pager, or other mobile communications device during instructional time

Such devices shall be turned off in class, except when being used for a valid instructional or other school-
related purpose as determined by the teacher or other district employee, and at any other time directed by a
district employee. Any device with camera, video, or voice recording function shall not be used in any manner
which infringes on the privacy rights of any other person.

No student shall be prohibited from possessing or using an electronic signaling device that is determined by a
licensed physician or surgeon to be essential for the student's health and the use of which is limited to
purposes related to the student's health. (Education Code 48901.5)
 

10. Plagiarism or dishonesty on school work or tests
 

11. Inappropriate attire
 

12. Tardiness or unexcused absence from school
 

13. Failure to remain on school premises in accordance with school rules

Employees are expected to provide appropriate supervision to enforce standards of conduct and, if they observe or

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



receive a report of a violation of these standards, to immediately intervene or call for assistance. If an employee
believes a matter has not been resolved, he/she shall refer the matter to his/her supervisor or an administrator for
further investigation.

When a school official suspects that a search of a student or his/her belongings will turn up evidence of the student's
violation of the law or school rules, such a search shall be conducted in accordance with BP/AR 5145.12 - Search
and Seizure.

When a student uses any prohibited device, or uses a permitted device in any unethical or illegal activity, a district
employee may confiscate the device. The employee shall store the item in a secure manner until an appropriate time.

Students who violate district or school rules and regulations may be subject to discipline including, but not limited to,
suspension, expulsion, transfer to alternative programs, referral to a student success team or counseling services, or
denial of participation in extracurricular or cocurricular activities or other privileges in accordance with Board policy
and administrative regulation. The Superintendent or designee shall notify local law enforcement as appropriate.

Students also may be subject to discipline, in accordance with law, Board policy, or administrative regulation, for any
off-campus conduct during nonschool hours which poses a threat or danger to the safety of students, staff, or district
property, or substantially disrupts school activities.



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board of Education Meeting: August 21, 2024 
 

 
OTHER REPORTS 

 

 
 
 
OTHER REPORTS 
 

1. Williams Uniform Complaint Process (UCP) Quarter 4 Report 
Lois Yount, Superintendent 

  
2. City And Schools Together (CAST) 

Lois Yount, Superintendent 
  
3. School Calendars 

School Administration 
 

 Back-to-School Events 
August 6 – Lake Canyon Meet and Greet @ 4:00  
August 6 – McCaffrey Night at the Dog House @ 6:30 
August 13 – Fairsite Back to School Night @ 5:30 
August 14 – Marengo Ranch Back to School Night @ 5:30 
August 15 – Valley Oaks Back to School Night @ 5:30 
August 19 – Greer Back to School Night @ 5:30 
August 20 – Lake Canyon Back to School Night @ 5:00 
August 20 – River Oaks Back to School Night @ 5:30 
August 22 – McCaffrey Back to School Night @ 6:00 

 
 



Quarterly District Report: Williams Uniform Complaint Process (UCP)
Properly submitting this form to SCOE serves as your district’s Williams UCP Quarterly Complaint Report per Education 
Code § 35186(d). All fields are required.

SUBMITTER INFORMATION

     
Name  Job Title  Phone Number
Person submitting form    Include area code

 
E-mail Address

DISTRICT INFORMATION

     
School District  Year Covered by This Report  Quarter Covered by This Report
 

COMPLAINTS
Sufficiency of Textbooks

Total Number of Textbook Complaints
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Textbook Complaints Resolved
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Textbook Complaints Unresolved
Enter 0 if none.

Emergency School Facilities Issues

Total Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints Resolved
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints Unresolved
Enter 0 if none.

 

Vacancy or Misassignment of Teachers

Total Number of Vacancy/Misassignment Complaints
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Vacancy/Misassignment Complaints Resolved
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Vacancy/Misassignment Complaints Unresolved
Enter 0 if none.

Page 1 of 2



RESOLUTION OF COMPLAINTS

Briefly summarize the nature of complaints and how they were resolved.
Enter “N/A” if no complaints were received. If you need more space, enter “sent by e-mail” and send your summary to Shannon Hansen with your report.

REPORT INCLUDES ALL COMPLAINTS FOR THIS QUARTER
The number of UCP complaints (textbooks, facilities, and teachers categories) filed for the quarter being reported MUST 
be entered in this report. Please check the box below confirming this:

Includes All UCP Complaints
All UCP complaints for the indicated quarter are being reported—from my district office and all school sites in my district.

By submitting this form, you certify that the information is complete and accurate, and that you have verified the accuracy 
of the report information by contacting each school in your district. The report includes ALL UCP complaints in the above 
categories received at school sites in the district, plus the district office.

RETURN INSTRUCTIONS
After completing the form in its entirety, save the file and e-mail it to Erika Franzon at the Sacramento County 
Office of Education (SCOE): efranzon@scoe.net.

Page 2 of 2



 
 

CAST Meeting Agenda 

 

 
Location: Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
 1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

 
Date/Time: August 12, 2024 at 5:30 PM 

 
Members: GJUESD City of Galt GJUHSD 
 Lois Yount, Superintendent Chris Erias, City Manager Anna Trunnell, Superintendent 
 Casey Raboy, Board Member Shawn Farmer, Council Member Terry Parker, Board Clerk 
 Traci Skinner, Board President Kevin Papineau, Council Member Dennis Richardson, Board Member 

 

Welcome! 
I. Review of CAST Purpose and Agenda Overview 

 
II. Standing Agenda Items 

− School and City Safety Updates 
− School Resource Officers (SRO) 

 
III. Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 

− New School Year and Enrollment Update 
− Measure H 
 

IV. Galt Joint Union High School District 
− New School Year 
 

V. City of Galt 
− Liberty Ranch/Simmerhorn Project Update 
− Winter Bird Festival 
− C Street Improvements 

 
VI. 2024-25 Quarterly Meetings 

− Tuesday, November 12, 2024 – City Hall 
− Tuesday, February 11, 2025 – Galt Joint Union High School District 
− Monday, May 12, 2025 – City Hall 
− August 11, 2025 – Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 

 

*City and Schools Together (CAST) is a collaborative effort among leaders of the City of Galt, Galt Joint Union Elementary School District, 
and the Galt Joint Union High School District, united to ensure a positive future for all Galt area youth and families through strategic 
planning, open communication, resource sharing and coordination of events and activities.” 

~ CAST MISSION STATEMENT 



S U N M O N T U E W E D T H U F R I S A T

1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8

F I R S T  D A Y  O F
S C H O O L

9 1 0

1 1 1 2 1 3

B A C K  T O
S C H O O L  N I G H T
5 : 3 0 - 6 : 4 5

1 4 1 5

G E F A

1 6 1 7

1 8 1 9 2 0 2 1

B O A R D
M E E T I N G

2 2 2 3

P I C N I C  D A Y
1 1 : 0 0 - 1 2 : 0 0

2 4

2 5 2 6 2 7 2 8 2 9 3 0

S A F E T Y  D R I L L

3 1

A
U

G
U

S
T

  
 2

0
2

4
F A I R S I T E

E L E M E N T A R Y  A N D
E A R L Y  L E A R N I N G

C E N T E R

9 0 2  C A R O L I N E   S T .
G A L T ,  C A  9 5 6 3 2  
( 2 0 9 )  7 4 5 - 2 5 0 6

L A U R A  M A R Q U E Z
P R I N C I P A L



S U N M O N T U E W E D T H U F R I S A T

1 2

L A B O R  D A Y

3 4

S T A F F  M E E T I N G

5 6 7

8 9 1 0 1 1 1 2

F A M I L Y
L I T E R A C Y  N I G H T
5 : 4 5 - 6 : 4 5

1 3 1 4

1 5 1 6 1 7 1 8

B O A R D
M E E T I N G

1 9

G E F A

2 0 2 1

2 2 2 3 2 4 2 5 2 6 2 7

S A F E T Y  D R I L L

2 8

2 9 3 0

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
  

 2
0

2
4

F A I R S I T E
E L E M E N T A R Y  A N D
E A R L Y  L E A R N I N G

C E N T E R

9 0 2  C A R O L I N E   S T .
G A L T ,  C A  9 5 6 3 2  
( 2 0 9 )  7 4 5 - 2 5 0 6

L A U R A  M A R Q U E Z
P R I N C I P A L







Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

    1 2 3 

4 5 

 

All Staff Meeting  

8:30 - Multi  

6 
 

Back to School  

Meet & Greet  

4:00-5:00  

7 

 

Teacher Writing 

Training 9:00 

 

 

8    1st Day of School  
 

 

9 10 

11 12 
 

IA Jumpstart  

Training  

11:45 - Library  

13 14 15 16 

 

 

17 

18 19 20 

Back to School Night 

Grades 1-6 

Session I   5:30  

21 

 

 

22 

 

All School Assembly 

1:55 

23 

 

 

Picture Day 

24 

25 26 

 

Staff Meeting   2:45  

Wellness Center Rm 14 

27 

 

House Committee  

2:40 Conference Rm 

28 

 

 

29 30 31 

Lake Canyon Board Calendar 
August 2024 

New Teacher Workdays  

Teacher Workdays 

Kinder Dismissal 12:30 pm 

Kinder Dismissal 12:30 pm 

Kinder Dismissal 12:30 pm 

Intervention Jumpstart 

Back to School Night 

 Grades 1-6 

Session II    1:15  
 

GJUESD Board Meeting 7PM 

Intervention Jumpstart 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

1 2 3 4 5 

 

House Meeting 

1:55 PM  

6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 

 

Staff Meeting  

2:45      

17 

Academic  

Conferences  

Kinder 

18 

 

 

19 

 

House Meeting 

1:55 PM  

20 21 

22 23 24 25 

 

MTSS  

26 

Academic  

Conferences  

3rd/4th 

27 28 

29 30      

Lake Canyon Board Calendar  
September 2024 

Leadership  

Committee 2:40  
 

GJUESD Board 

Meeting 7:00 PM  

Academic  

Conferences  

1st/2nd 
 

House Committee 

2:40  Conf Rm 

MAP Testing Grades 1 - 6 

MAP Testing Grades 1 - 6 

MAP Testing Grades 1 - 6 

NO SCHOOL  Kinder Dismissal 1:00 

Kinder Dismissal 1:00 



Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday SaturdaySunday

1 2 3

8 9 10

15 16 17

22 23 24

29 30 31

4 5 6 7

11 12 13 14

18 19 20 21

25 26 27 28

August 2024

Night at the Dog House
6:30 - 8pm

PE Sales
1-3pm

1st Day of School 8:30am Assembly

Cross Country Starts Volleyball Tryouts Volleyball Tryouts
Board Meeting

Back to School Night
5:30 - 8pm

Cross Country: Aug 19 - Oct 26
Girls Volleyball: Aug 26 - Oct 9

Testing at MMS
Fall Map Testing; 9/9 - 9/27

504 Meetings
Fire Drill #1 -10;20am

504 Meetings



Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday SaturdaySunday

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

29 30

September 2024
No School School Dance

Parent Lunch Day

iSmart Parent
Presentation 6-7pm

Picture Day
Bulldog Scholars BBQ 

for 3rd Tri 

Testing at MMS
Fall Map Testing; 9/9 - 9/27

Cross Country: Aug 19 - Oct 26
Girls Volleyball: Aug 26 - Oct 9

iSmart Student Presentation in Social Studies Class

Rocky Mountain
Fundraiser Starts

Board MeetingMTSS Meetings 504 Meetings

Fentanyl Assembly

Bulldog Student Senate



SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT 

     
 

1  

 
2  

 

3  

4  5  

 

6  7  8  9  
 

W e l c o m e  B a c k  
a s s e m b l i e s  
4 - 6  g r a d e  

1 0  

1 1  1 2  
 

W e l c o m e  B a c k  
a s s e m b l i e s  
K - 3  g r a d e  

1 3  
 

E v a c u a t i o n  
D r i l l  

L e a d e r s h i p  
M e e t i n g  

1 4  
 

S a f e t y  P a t r o l  
M e e t i n g  

 
B T S N  

1 5  
 

G E F A  

1 6  1 7  

1 8  1 9  2 0  
 

M T S S  

2 1  
 

B o a r d  M e e t i n g  

2 2  2 3  
 

K i n d e r  1 p m  
d i s m i s s a l  

S B A C  A w a r d s  

2 4  

2 5  2 6  
 

L e a r n i n g  E v e n t  

2 7  
 

S I P P S  t r a i n i n g  
a t  D O  

2 8  2 9  
 

KONA I CE  

3 0  
 

M o r n i n g  S i n g   

3 1  

August 2024 
Board Calendar– What’s happening this month at Marengo Ranch? 

 

Important 

Reminders 

 

Welcome back 

Monarchs! 

 
08/08 

First Day of School 

 

08/14 

Back to School Night 
5:30-5:55 Principal 

Welcome Message 

(cafeteria) 

6:00-6:30  Session 1 All 

Grades 

6:30-7:00 Session 2 All 

Grades 

 
08/30 

Morning Sing 

No Awards given 

 

 

 



SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT 

1  2  
 

N O  S C H O O L  

3  
 
 

4  
 
 
 

M a t h  P i l o t  
 

C O L L E G E  D A Y  

5  
 
 
 

S a c  R e a d s  

6  
 
 
 

K i n d e r  1 p m  
D i s m i s s a l  

7  

8  9  

 

1 0  
 

N e g o t i a t i o n s  
 

L e a d e r s h i p  
M e e t i n g  

1 1  
 

M A P  t e s t i n g  
b e g i n s  

 
 

1 2  
 

A d m i n  M e e t i n g  

1 3  1 4  

1 5  1 6  
 

S c h o o l  S i t e  
C o u n c i l   

M e e t i n g  2 : 4 5  

1 7  
 

M T S S  
 

S A R B  

1 8  
 

B o a r d  M e e t i n g  
 
 

C O L L E G E  D A Y  

1 9  
 

G E F A  

2 0  
 

K i n d e r  1 p m  
D i s m i s s a l  

2 1  

2 2  2 3  
 

D R A  w i n d o w  
o p e n s  

2 4  
 

L e a r n i n g  E v e n t  
 

M a t h  P i l o t  
 

2 5  
 

E v a c u a t i o n  
D r i l l  

 
C O L L E G E  D A Y  

2 6  

K O N A  I C E  

E L D  M e e t i n g  
 

L o c k d o w n  D r i l l  

2 7  

 

M a p  t e s t i n g  
e n d s  

 
F r i d a y  s i n g  

2 8  

2 9  3 0  
 

S I P P S   
c o a c h i n g  

         

September 2024 
Board Calendar– What’s happening this month at Marengo Ranch? 

Important 

Reminders 

F A L L  
P I C T U R E  

D A Y  I S   
S E P T  1 0 T H  

 
 

S C H O O L  
H O U R S :  

 

Kinder A.M.   

8:00-11:20 

Full Day Kinder-6th 

8:00-2:30 

Wednesday's 8:00-

1:00  

 
S t u d e n t s  
m u s t  n o t  

a r r i v e  o n  
c a m p u s  
b e f o r e  

7 : 3 0  a . m .   

——-6th  Grade goes to Sly Park——- 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

   

 

 1 

 
 

2 

 
 

3 

4 5 

 

Lunch for Staff by PTA  12pm 

6 

 

1st Meet the Teacher 3pm 

7     

  

Meet the Teacher Day 3pm 

     

Class List Posted 4 pm 

 

Kinder Meet the Teacher  2:30 

8 

First Day of School  

 

1st-3rd Behavior  

Assembly 8:30 AM 

9 

 

4th-6th  Grade 

Behavior Assembly 8:30 AM 

10 

11 12 

 

 

13 14 15 
 

 

 

      GEFA/CSEA 

16 

 
17 

18 19 

 

 

20 

 

Back to School  Night 

5:30 pm 

21 

 

Board of Education 

7:00 pm 

22 

 
23 

 

 

24 

25 26 

 

 

27 28 

 

29 30 

 
31 

       

River Oaks Elementary 
      August 2024 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

1 2 

 

Labor Day 

 

School not in Session 

3     4 

 

5 6 

 

 

7 

8 9 

 

 

10 

 

 

 

11 

 

12 

 

13 

 

14 

15 16 

 

17 

 

18 

 

 

 

 

Board Meeting 7pm 

19 

 

Sly park Meeting 3:00  

 

 

GEFA/CSEA 

20 

Otter Pop Sales 

 

Friday Sing 8:15 

 

Sports Day 

 

21 

 

22 23 

 

24 

 

 

25 

 

26 

 

27  

PTA’s Color Run 

 

Otter Pop Sales 

 

Kinder Dismissal 1:00  

28 

29 30 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

River Oaks Elementary 
    September 2024 



Valle� Oak� Elementar� Augus� 2024
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday

1. 2.

5.
Pre - Service Staff
Meeting @ 8:00 am

6.
Pre - Service District

Training at MMS @ 8:30

7.
Kinder Meet & Greet
@ 10:00am - 11:00am

8. 9. Kinder Early Dismissal

@11:30

Kinder Parent Orientation

@ 6:00pm - 7:00pm

12. 13. 14. 15.
Back to School Night
@ 5:30pm - 7:00pm

16.

19. 20.

Fall Pictures
21.

Board Meeting
@ 7:00pm

22.
4th - 6th grade Relational
Aggression Presentation

(Girls)

23.

26.
Staff Meeting
@ 2:45 pm

27. 28. 29.
PTO Meeting @ 2:45pm

30.



Valle� Oak� Elementar� September 2024
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday

2.
No School
Labor Day!

3. 4. 5. 6.

9. 10. 11.
Book Blast

Kickoff -Library

12.
Growth Mindset/ SEL

Presentations
@ 8:20 - 9:50am

13.

16.
Leadership Meeting

@ 2:45pm

17. 18.
Board Meeting

@ 7:00pm

19.
GEFA @ 3:30pm

20.

23.
Staff Meeting
@ 2:45pm

24. 25. 26.
PTO Meeting @ 2:45pm

VO Family Science Night
@ 6:00 - 7:30pm

27.

Friday Sing @ 8:15am

30.



 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
 

Meeting Date:  August 21, 2024 Agenda Item: 242.501 
Board Consideration of Approval of Consent 
Calendar 
 

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
  Information Item: 

 
 

a. Approval of the Agenda 
  
b. Minutes 
  June 17, 2024 Special Board Meeting 

 June 18, 2024 Regular Board Meeting 
  
c. Payment of Warrants 

 Vendor Warrants: 25501171-25501228, 25499035-25499113, 25496720-25496801, 24491311-
24491377, 24492219-24492276, 24493692-24493784, 24494533-24494583, 24495983  

 Payroll Warrants: 7/10/24; 7/31/24; 8/9/24 
  
d. Personnel 
  Resignations/Retirements 

 Leave of Absence Requests 
 New Hires/Reclassifications 

  
e. Donations 
  
f. 2024-25 After School Education and Safety (ASES) Program Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

Between GJUESD and the City of Galt 
  
g. Agreement for Legal Services with Lozano Smith, Attorneys At Law 
  
h. Master Contracts for Nonpublic Schools and Agencies 

1. Assistive Tech 4 All, Inc. 
2. Assistive Technology and Beyond 
3. CCHAT Center 
4. Creative Behavior Systems 
5. Easter Seals Superior CA 
6. Hansine Fisher & Associates 
7. Lodi Children’s Therapy 
8. Point Quest Education – Central Valley 
9. Point Quest Education – Depot Park 
10. Sara Hall 
11. Tilly Therapy 

 

 
 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 



1 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  
Board of Education Minutes 

 
Special Board Meeting 
June 17, 2024 
6:00 p.m. Open Session 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

 
Zoom Webinar ID 

87060306079 
  
Board Members 
Traci Skinner 
Casey Raboy -  Absent 
Katherine Harper 
Annette Kunze 
Wesley Cagle 

Administrators 
Lois Yount 

Alejandra Garibay 
Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano 

Kuljeet Nijjar 

  
A. 6:00 p.m. – Open Session Location: Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Conference Room 
   
B. Call Meeting to Order and Flag Salute 
   
C. Board Meeting Protocol 
    
D. Routine Matters/New Business  
 232.508 Public Hearing and Board Review of GJUESD 2024-25 Local Control 

Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
Lois Yount acknowledged the efforts of the Cabinet and Kuljeet Nijjar, 
Educational Services Director, specifically for her initiative to complete the 
LCAP. 
 
Kuljeet Nijjar reported that the LCAP has been posted on the district website to 
get feedback from parents and the community. It was also sent electronically to 
parents for feedback and shared through the District’s monthly newsletters. 
 
Ms. Nijjar summarized key feedback by question: 

1) What is key to supporting student engagement and academic growth? 
− Prioritizing relationships and well-being of students and staff 
− Good attendance 
− Communication with families 
− Engaging curriculum, less online learning, more hands-on 

learning outside of the classroom 
2) What is key to supporting staff growth and motivation? 

LCAP 
PUBLIC 

HEARING 



2 
 

− Provide staff opportunities to develop their professional 
growth in their areas of need versus “cookie cutter” 
professional development 

− Continue professional development around social-emotional 
learning 

3) What is key to improving student attendance? 
− More opportunities for field trips, school events, activities, and 

those things that are exciting and fun 
− Schools that create a sense of belonging and trust 
− Communication with family 
− Engaging partners 

4) What is key to improving safety at school? 
− Stronger consequences and disciplines 
− Positive behavior interventions and supports 
− School Resource Officer 
− Get parents more involved 

5) Other ideas or feedback? 
− Professional Development on more inclusive practices working 

with students with disabilities 
− More hands-on and direct instruction is needed compared to 

the current online software programs 
 
Alejandra Garibay, Chief Business Official, shared the LCFF Budget Overview for 
Parents. She indicated that school districts receive funding from different 
sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), other 
state funds, local funds, and federal funds. She shared projected revenue by 
fund source. 
 
Kuljeet Nijjar reviewed the 2023-24 LCAP Annual Update. She indicated that 
this year, this section is a separate document. However, moving forward, it will 
be embedded into the LCAP. She stated the only addition to the measuring and 
reporting results is related to preschool dual language learners. She shared a 
summary of the results and goal analysis. 
 
Ms. Nijjar reviewed the 2024-25 LCAP. She highlighted practices that supported 
increased positive outcomes. 

− Plan-Do-Study-Act Cycles; staff identifying goals and strategies to test 
change ideas. 

− MAP Accelerator 
− Intervention sessions by the Teacher On Special Assignment 
− Implementation of “Building-Thinking-Classroom” strategies 
− Improved attendance  
− After-school tutoring through Acceleration Blocks 
− Additional tech integration tools such as Zearn, digital tests from Great 

Minds and SBAC to support reinforcement of skills 
− Professional Learning Community Collaboration 



3 
 

Ms. Nijjar said districts must engage educational partners and outlined the 
GJUESD partners in developing the LCAP and the budget process. Through this 
process, Goal 1 was changed. It now focuses on engaging all learners with a 
focus on academic rigor using inclusive practices in a variety of learning 
environments. 
 
Ms. Nijjar continued with a summary of the LCAP. 

    
 232.509 Public Hearing and Board Review of GJUESD 2024-25 Adopted Budget 

 
There were no public comments. 
 
Alejandra Garibay provided an overview of the budget. She highlighted the 
following: 

− Budget assumptions based on May Revise 
− Cost Of Living Adjustment (COLA) 
− Unrestricted Reserve Levels 
− District Enrollment/Funded ADA 
− GJUESD LCFF Funding 
− Projected Revenues – General Fund 
− Projected Expenditures – General Fund 

 
Next steps for GJUESD include: 

− July 18, 2024: School Finance Conference School Services of California 
− July to August: Close financial books for 2023-24 
− September: Board Approval of Unaudited Actuals 
− September – October: 2023-24 Year-End Fiscal Audit 
− October – November: Budget Revisions to begin preparing First Interim 
− December: First Interim Report 

 
Ms. Garibay summarized the 2024-25 School Services of California  Pocket 
Budget and School Financial Projection Dartboard May Revision Proposals. 
 
Ms. Garibay summarized the 2024-25 School Services of California Financial 
Projection Dartboard 

 

Budget 
Public 

Hearing 

E. Public Comments for topics not on the agenda 
There were no public comments. 

   
F. Pending Agenda Items  
    
G. Adjournment 6:45 p.m.  

 
___________________________________ 

Clerk, Katherine Harper 
 

_______________________ 
Date 



1 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  
Board of Education Minutes 

 
Regular Meeting 
June 18, 2024 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

 
Zoom Webinar ID 

88435362474 
 

Board Members 
Traci Skinner 
Casey Raboy 
Katherine Harper 
Annette Kunze 
Wesley Cagle 
 
Board Member Casey Raboy attended the meeting 
in person. 
 

Administrators 
Lois Yount 

Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano 
Kuljeet Nijjar 

Alejandra Garibay 

Stephanie Simonich 
David Nelson 

Judi Hayes 
Tina Homdus 

Carlos Castillo 
Jennifer Porter 
Laura Marquez 

 

Board Member Katherine Harper participated 
remotely from 7:00 to 7:20 p.m. from: 
Rau Park 
8795 Elk Grove Florin Road 
Elk Grove, CA 95624 
 

 

 
A. 6:00 p.m. – Closed Session Location: District Office Conference Room 

Present for closed session: Traci Skinner, Casey Raboy, Annette Kunze, Wesley Cagle, Lois Yount, 
Alejandra Garibay, Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar 

   
B. Traci Skinner called the Closed Session to order at 6:00 p.m. to discuss the following items: 
    
 1. STUDENT MATTER, Education Code §35146, 48918(c) 

 Case No. 23/24-01 
 

    
 2. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR, Government Code §54957.6 

Agency Negotiator: Lois Yount, Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar, Alejandra Garibay 
 Employee Agency: (GEFA) Galt Elementary Faculty Association 
 Employee Agency: (CSEA) California School Employee Association 
 Unrepresented Employees 

   
C. The Closed Session adjourned at 6:50 p.m. The Open Session began at 7:00 p.m., followed by the 

flag salute. 
   
D. Recognition  
 1. Angel Velasquez, McCaffrey Middle School Student 

 
 



2 
 

Alejandra Garibay, Chief Business Official, recognized Angel Velasquez, a student 
who was involved in a bus accident, for his assistance during the accident. Angel 
quickly initiated action to guide students off the bus and ensure their safety. Ms. 
Garibay said his actions were heroic and the District is very thankful. 

   
E. Board Meeting Protocol 

Lois Yount, Superintendent, shared the board meeting protocol. She stated that Katherine Harper, 
Board Member, is participating remotely. 

  
F. New Business 
 232.510 Lois Yount shared an informational mailer about a potential general obligation 

bond mailed to Galt residents. She indicated the information in the mailer was 
also posted on the District website and shared in the GJUESD monthly 
newsletter. Ms. Yount provided an overview of the community survey. She 
indicated 52 responses in total as of June 13th.  
 
Wesley Cagle made a motion to approve Resolution No. 17 of The Board Of 
Education of The Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Ordering An 
Election To Authorize The Issuance Of School Bonds, Establishing Specifications 
Of The Election Order, And Requesting Consolidation With Any Other Elections 
Occurring on November 5, 2024, seconded by Casey Raboy. The motion carried 
unanimously.  

Resolution 
No. 17 

GO Bond 

  
G. Public Comments for topics not on the agenda 

There were no public comments. 
  
 7:20 p.m. Katherine Harper exited the meeting. 
  
H. Reports  
  
 LCAP GOAL 1 

Engaging learners in PreK-8 through a focus on equity, access, and academic rigor with inclusive practices in various learning environments. 
 1. Earth Day Compost Project 

Leesa Klotz, Education Coordinator, Cal-Waste Recovery Systems, presented information on SB 
1383, Reducing California Short-Lived Climate Pollutants. The project is a partnership between the 
City of Galt, GJUESD, GJUHSD, Cal-Waste, and Galt Sunrise Rotary. The goal is to help students and 
the community see the full circle of SB 1383 (Organic Waste Recycling) by bringing compost back 
to the school garden. 

   
 2.  Spring District Assessments Data 

− District Reading Assessments (DRA) End of the Year Results, June 2024 
− Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) 

 
Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Curriculum Director, reported that the DRA data reflects the 
percentage of students meeting all end-of-year targets. She indicated that some cohorts made 
growth, but none of the cohorts made the 10% growth target that was expected. She said each 
administrative team had analyzed the data by student, grade, and teacher and identified initial 
next steps.  
 
Principals shared their data reflections and next steps after analyzing DRA data. 



3 
 

 
Ms. Del Toro-Anguiano reported that MAP is administered to first and second grade students in 
the spring. The data reflects the percentage of students who met the 60th percentile for reading 
and math. The LCAP goal is to increase the percentage of students reaching the target by 5%. Ms. 
Del Toro-Anguiano said most schools met the math target, and both Marengo Ranch and Lake 
Canyon met the reading and math targets. This data is used to guide professional learning events 
at the sites. It's also used to measure the Plan-Do-Study-Act (PDSA) effectiveness. MAP can guide 
discussions during academic conferences. She said more attention is needed in reading, but 
overall, growth was made in math. 

   
 3. 2023-24 CA School Dashboard Local Performance Indicators (Published 2024-25) 

Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano reported the performance levels for each local indicator. 
 

Priority 1: Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum-
Aligned Instructional Materials, and Safe, Clean and 
Functional School Facilities 

Ranking: MET 

Priority 2:  Implementation of State Academic Standards Ranking: MET 
Priority 3: Parent and Family Engagement     Ranking: MET 
Priority 6 School Climate     Ranking: MET 
Priority 7 Access to a Broad Course of Study     Ranking: MET 

 

   
 4. 2023-24 Fairsite State Preschool Program Self-Evaluation 

Laura Marquez, Principal, reported the required program self-evaluation required and covers a 
broad range of programmatic and operational components. She indicated that the goal at Fairsite 
is to prepare students for kindergarten academically and socially.  
 
Ms. Marquez highlighted the following: 

• Kindergarten Readiness 
• Preschool Staff 
• Preschool Enrollment 
• Continuous Improvement 
• Preschool Parent Survey 
• Desired Results Developmental Profile (DRDP) 
• District Assessments 

   
 5. Summer Food & Nutrition Services 

Alejandra Garibay, Chief Business Official, reported that the GJUESD participates in the Seamless 
Summer Feeding Option (SSFO) offered through the California Department of Education (CDE) 
Nutrition Services Division. She indicated that the District provides free summer meals for children 
in the community who are 18 years of age and younger. She shared the locations and times that 
breakfast and lunch are served.  

   
 LCAP GOAL 2 

Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and supportive 
environments. 

 1. Marengo Ranch Elementary Track Ribbon Cutting Event 
Lois Yount reported on the ribbon-cutting event for the track at Marengo Ranch. Then, 
they thanked the Galt Herald for writing a great report highlighting the event. She said 
trustees Annette Kunze and Wesley Cagle attended the event. Ms. Yount said S+B 

 



4 
 

James Construction and their subcontractors donated their time, equipment and 
materials to complete the project. 

    
 2. Outdoor and Environmental Education 2023-24 

Bill Beckett and John Durand, Environmental Educational Coordinators, reported on 
student engagement activities.  

• Acorn collecting on preserve trails 
• McFarland Ranch Pumpkin Patch 
• Wildlife observations in the wetlands 
• Planting acorns for habitat restoration 
• Pioneer Days at McFarland Ranch 
• Canoemobile with Wilderness Inquiry 
• Art in the outdoors 
• Service Learning and volunteering 
• Salmon and Steelhead in the classroom 
• School site programs 

 
Mr. Durand said opportunities offered by outdoor education are highly adaptable to 
teacher and student educational needs. 

 

    
 OTHER REPORTS  
 1. Congresswoman Doris Matsui, Representing California’s 7th District, Visit to Vernon E. Greer 

Elementary School – May 30, 2024 
Lois Yount recognized Greer Elementary's efforts to transition its school into a wellness center. 
Congresswoman Doris Matsui visited Greer with other county leaders to experience Greer’s 
transition. Greer is the first school in the District to hire a mental health clinician from the 
Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE). This is the second visit from leaders outside of the 
district.  
 
Ms. Yount thanked trustees Casey Raboy and Katherine Harper for attending the visit and said 
that Dave Gordon, Sacramento County Superintendent of Schools, also attended.   

   
 2. California School Boards Association (CSBA) Annual Education Conference (AEC) & Trade Show – 

December 5-7, 2024 | Anaheim, CA 
 
Lois Yount reported that registration for the CSBA Annual Conference is now open. She asked 
board members to consider attending and let her know if they were interested. 

    
I. Routine Matters/New Business  
 232.511 Lois Yount highlighted the donation. 

 
Annette Kunze made a motion to approve the Consent Calendar, seconded by 
Traci Skinner. The motion carried by a vote of 4 ayes. 

 

    
  a. Approval of the Agenda Consent 

Calendar 
     
  b. Minutes  
    May 15, 2024 Regular Board of Education Meeting  



5 
 

     
  c. Payment of Warrants 

 Vendor Warrants: 24484385-24484475; 24486113-24486183; 
24487437-24487529; 24488807-24488871; 24490345-24490396   

 Payroll Warrants: 05/31/24; 06/10/24 

 

     
  d. Personnel  
   Resignations/Retirees 

 

Name 
 
Position Effective 

Date 
Site 

Alcala, Monica 
 
Teacher 6/7/24 Fairsite 

Hubert, Breanne 
 
Yard Supervisor 6/7/24  Marengo Ranch 

Pedraza, 
Samantha 

 
Bilingual Instructional Assistant, Expanded 
Learning 

6/7/24 River Oaks 

Perez, Michel 
 
Science Teacher 6/7/24 McCaffrey 

Middle 
Torres, Maria 

 
Yard Supervisor 5/10/24 Valley Oaks 

Young, 
Jacqueline 

 
Yard Supervisor 6/7/24 Valley Oaks 

 
Leave of Absence Requests 

 

Name Position Effective 
Date 

Site 

Gonzalez, Maria 
Isabel 

Yard Supervisor 5/14/24 Valley Oaks 

Herrera Vaca, Clarisa Bilingual Office Assistant 5/28/24 Valley Oaks 

Leary, Melissa Science Teacher 8/5/24 McCaffrey 
Middle 

Newman, Danielle Accounts Receivable Technician 5/22/24 District Office 

Rose, Virginia Yard Supervisor 5/20/24 McCaffrey 
Middle 

Suarez, Rosy Instructional Assistant, Special 
Education 

1/1/24 McCaffrey 
Middle 

 
New Hires/Reclassifications/Status Changes 

 

Name Position Site 

Amrine, Caitlyn Short Term Instructional Assistant, Special 
Education 

Vernon E. Greet 

Azevedo, Victoria Science Teacher (Temporary) McCaffrey Middle 

Baysinger, Deborah Bus Driver Transportation 

Dawley, Benjamin Classified Substitute N/A 

Declusin, Makena Instructional Assistant, Special Education Fairsite 

Edwards, Hannah Instructional Assistant Expanded Learning Lake Canyon 

Hayashi, Emily Instructional Assistant, Expanded Learning River Oaks 

Jimenez Duran, 
Griselda 

Yard Supervisor Valley Oaks 

Nelson, Olivia Teacher (Temporary) Lake Canyon 

 



6 
 

Rammer, Kristi SDC Teacher (Temporary) Marengo Ranch 

Reyes, Eddie Teacher (Temporary) Lake Canyon 

Villalpando, Victoria Instructional Assistant, Expanded Learning Valley Oaks 
 

     
  e. Donations  
     
  f. Agreement Between GJUESD and Dannis Woliver Kelley, Attorney’s At Law, 

for Fiscal Year 2024-25 Professional Services 
  

     
  g. Agreement Between GJUESD and Parker & Covert LLP, Attorney’s At Law, 

for Fiscal Years 2024-2025 and 2025-2026 Professional Services 
 

     
  h. Disposal of GJUESD Class 3 Records 

Quantity Departments Dates Description 
17 Business 2019/20 Accounts Payable 
4 Business 2010-14 Student Council, Bank Statements, 

Requisitions 
3 Business 2019/20 Attendance 
3 Business 2019/20 Journals 
6 Business 2016-20 Timesheets 
4 Cafeteria 2020/21 Lunch Forms, Deposits, Audits 
5 Educational 

Services 
2006-09 Special Education records 

5 Educational 
Services 

2008-13 SARB/Expulsion/Discipline 

2 Educational 
Services 

1996-06 SPED  Contracts 

1 Purchasing 2018/20 Site Inventory Lists 
3 Superintendent 2019/20 Race To The Top Grant 

 

 

     
  i. Cosumnes River Preserve Cooperative Management Agreement 2024-2029  
     
 232.512 Consent Calendar (Continued) – Items Removed for Later Consideration 

No items were removed from the consent calendar. 
CC Items 

Removed 

    
 232.513 Traci Skinner made a motion to approve Student Matter No. 23/24-01, 

seconded by Wesley Cagle. The motion was carried by a vote of 4 ayes. 
Student 
Matter 

    
 232.514 Casey Raboy made a motion to approve the Galt Joint Union Elementary 

School District (GJUESD) 2024-25 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP), 
seconded by Annette Kunze. The motion was carried by a vote of 4 ayes. 

LCAP 

    
 232.515 Wesley Cagle made a motion to approve the Galt Joint Union Elementary 

School District (GJUESD) 2024-25 Budget, seconded by Traci Skinner. The 
motion was carried by a vote of 4 ayes. 

Budget 

    
 232.516 Traci Skinner made a motion to approve the 2024-25 Education Protection Act 

Use of Funds, seconded by Casey Raboy. The motion was carried by a vote of 4 
ayes. 

Ed 
Protection 

Act 

    



7 
 

 232.517 Annette Kunze made a motion to approve the 2024-25 Consolidated 
Application, seconded by Casey Raboy. The motion was carried by a vote of 4 
ayes. 

Con App 

    
 232.518 Wesley Cagle made a motion to approve the 2024-25 LCAP Federal Addendum, 

seconded by Casey Raboy. The motion was carried by a vote of 4 ayes. 
LCAP Fed 

Addendum 

    
 232.519 Annette Kunze made a motion to approve the 2024-25 Single Plan for Student 

Achievement for Fairsite Elementary, Vernon E. Greer Elementary, Lake Canyon 
Elementary, Marengo Ranch Elementary, Robert L. McCaffrey Middle, River 
Oaks Elementary and Valley Oaks Elementary, seconded by Traci Skinner. The 
motion carried by a vote of 4 ayes. 

Single Plan 

    
 232.520 Wesley Cagle made a motion to approve the 2024-25 Expulsion Panel, seconded 

by Casey Raboy. The motion was carried by a vote of 4 ayes. 
Exp Panel 

 

    
 232.521 Traci Skinner made a motion to approve the Declaration of Need for Fully 

Qualified Educators for 2024-25, seconded by Casey Raboy. The motion was 
carried by a vote of 4 ayes. 

Dec of 
Need 

    
 232.522 Casey Raboy made a motion to approve the Provisional Internship Permits for 

Newly Hired Educators, seconded by Annette Kunze. The motion was carried by 
a vote of 4 ayes. 

PIP 

    
 232.523 Traci Skinner made a motion to approve the Agreement Between the Galt Joint 

Union Elementary School District and Tiber Corporation dba T&B Construction 
for District Office Restoration Services and Painting Project, seconded by Casey 
Raboy. The motion was carried by a vote of 4 ayes. 

T&B 
Constr 

    
 232.524 Annette Kunze made a motion to approve the Galt Joint Union Elementary 

School District Sunshine Proposal for the Fiscal Year 2024-25 with the California 
School Employees Association (CSEA), seconded by Casey Raboy. The motion 
was carried by a vote of 4 ayes. 

1. Article X: Transfers 
2. Article XI: Promotional Opportunities 

GJUESD 
Sunshine 

to CSEA 

    
 232.525 Wesley Cagle made a motion to approve the Galt Joint Union Elementary School 

District Sunshine Proposal for the Fiscal Year 2024-25 with Galt Elementary 
Faculty Association (GEFA), seconded by Traci Skinner. The motion was carried 
by a vote of 4 ayes. 

1. Article VII: Evaluation Procedures 
2. Article XXIV: Term 

GJUESD 
Sunshine 
Proposal 
to GEFA 

    
 232.526 Casey Raboy made a motion to approve the following Board Policies, seconded 

by Annette Kunze. The motion carried by a vote of 4 ayes. 
1. BP 3516 Emergency and Disaster Preparedness Plan 
2. BP 4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action 
3. BP 4140/4240/4340 Bargaining Units 
4. BP 4157/4257/4357 Employee Safety 

Board 
Policies 



8 
 

5. BP 4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action 
6. BB 9320 Meetings and Notices 
7. BB 9323.2 Actions by the Board 
8. BP 5144 Discipline 
9. BP 6141.2 Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs 
10. BP 6175 Migrant Education 
11. BP 3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 
12. BP 3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund 
13. BP 3553 Free and Reduced Price Meals 
14. BP 3555 Nutrition Program Compliance 
15. BP 5126 Awards for Achievement 
16. BP 4111/4211/4311 Recruitment and Selection 

    
J. Public Comments for topics not on the agenda 

There were no public comments. 
 

   
K. Pending Agenda Items  
 1. Annette Kunze asked for a future report on what the Board can do to support improved student 

attendance. 
    
L. Adjournment 8:50 p.m.  
    
    

 
 

__________________________________________ 
Katherine Harper, Clerk 

 
 

__________________ 
Date 



Recommend approval of the following:

Resignations/Retirees

Name Position Effective Date Site

Blake, Lauren (Retirement, 15
years)

Instructional Assistant, Special
Education

9/6/24 Valley Oaks

Bradley, McKenzie Instructional Assistant, Expanded
Learning

7/30/24 Marengo Ranch

Bridge, Devin Yard Supervisor 6/7/24 Valley Oaks

Cathey, Holly Registered Behavior Technician 8/9/24 Vernon E. Greer

Godinez Murillo, Mariana Instructional Assistant, Expanded
Learning

7/19/24 Fairsite

Gonzalez, Casandra Bilingual Instructional Assistant 6/4/24 Vernon E. Greer

Heidrich, Paige Instructional Assistant, Special
Education

7/30/24 River Oaks

Keane, Char (Retirement, 26
years)

Bright Future Learning Center
Technician

7/18/24 Vernon E. Greer

Lopez, Ramona Instructional Assistant, Special
Education

8/22/24 Vernon E. Greer

Mooney, Kathleen (Retirement, 22
years)

Teacher 6/26/24 Lake Canyon

Nelson, Catherine (Retirement, 14
years)

Instructional Assistant, Special
Education

7/30/24 Vernon E. Greer

Pino, Lisa School Social Worker 07/30/24 Vernon E. Greer

Sanchez, Lucero Instructional Assistant, Special
Education

8/22/24 Vernon E. Greer

Valencia, Eileen Instructional Assistant, Special
Education

7/30/24 Marengo Ranch

Wright, Curtiss Music Teacher 6/7/24 River Oaks

Leave of Absence Requests

Name Position Effective Date Site
Barocio, Mireya Secretary II 7/31/24 Fairsite

Garcia, Teri Instructional Assistant 8/16/24 River Oaks

Hernandez, Rachel Instructional Assistant, Special
Education

8/19/24 River Oaks

Jumper, Geoffrey Teacher 8/8/24 Marengo Ranch

Martinez-Ferguson, Adriana Bilingual Instructional Assistant 8/7/24 Fairsite

Puentes, Janeya Teacher 8/12/24 Fairsite

Rodriguez, Vanesa Instructional Assistant, Expanded
Learning

8/27/24 McCaffrey Middle

Stefan Pereira, Jane Instructional Assistant 5/23/24 Roving

Trull, Elaine Assistant Principal 11/8/24 McCaffrey Middle

GJUESD Board Meeting August 21, 2024



Human Resources
Page 2

New Hires/Reclassifications/Status Changes

Name Position Site

Anaya, Jonathan (Status Change) Bilingual Instructional Assistant, Expanded Learning River Oaks

Barajas-Orejel, Kevin (Status
Change)

Instructional Assistant Fairsite

Codog, Darian Agriculture Teacher McCaffrey Middle

Corwin, Laura Teacher Vernon E. Greer

Declusin, Makena Instructional Assistant, Special
Education

Fairsite

Denier, Catherine Instructional Assistant Fairsite

Duncan, John Bus Driver Transportation

Freitas, Delia Bus Driver Transportation

Gribnau, Linda (Status Change) Instructional Assistant, Special
Education

Lake Canyon

Guttridge, Katelyn (Status Change)Instructional Assistant River Oaks

Harmon, Kassidy Yard Supervisor River Oaks

Harrison, Haylee (Status Change) Instructional Assistant, Expanded Learning Lake Canyon

Irving, Nicole Classified Substitute N/A

Jefferson, Serena Teacher Fairsite

Lopez, Mariana Instructional Assistant, Bilingual Vernon E. Greer

Makemson, Kayla Speech Therapist Marengo Ranch

Marchuk, Katie Teacher Marengo

Martinez-Ferguson, Adriana
(Status Change)

Bilingual Instructional Assistant Fairsite

Narez, Erica Teacher Lake Canyon

Nelson, Elizabeth Teacher, Special Education Vernon E. Greer

Origel, Aylene Instructional Assistant, Expanded Learning Lake Canyon

Parson, Shayna Teacher Lake Canyon

Quinones, Heather Classified Substitute N/A

Rickenbach, Alexa Teacher, Special Education River Oaks

Rojas de Ramirez, Maria (Status
Change)

Food & Nutrition Assistant 1 McCaffrey Middle

Serrano, Adela Teacher Marengo Ranch

Sharp, Glenna (Status Change) Instructional Assistant Fairsite

Shillam, April Speech Therapist McCaffrey Middle

Stefan Pereira, Jane (Status
Change)

Instructional Assistant, Special Education Vernon E. Greer

Suarez, Rosy (Status Change) Bilingual Office Assistant River Oaks

Szeto, Amie Teacher Lake Canyon

Tackett, Andrea Teacher Fairsite

Tarifa, Diana (Status Change) Instructional Assistant, Special Education River Oaks



Torres, Liliana Teacher Valley Oaks

Worden, Karen (Status Change) Food & Nutrition Assistant 1 Valley Oaks

Worden, Shandi (Status Change) Instructional Assistant, Special Education Vernon E. Greer

Yang Moua, Angelica School Psychologist Valley Oaks

GJUESD Board Meeting August 21, 2024



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board Meeting: August 21, 2024 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

Donations 
 

  
 

e. Donations 
 

  Galt Elementary Schools 
• PBK Architects donated 70 backpacks full of school supplies. The estimated value is  
  $1,750.    

 
 
 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board Meeting: August 21, 2024 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

ASES MOU 
 

 
 
 

f. 2024-25 After School Education and Safety (ASES) Program Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) Between GJUESD and the City of Galt 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board Meeting: August 21, 2024 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

Agreement for Legal Services 
 

 
 
 

g. Agreement for Legal Services with Lozano Smith, Attorneys At Law 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















 
                                                                         

 

August 21, 2024 Board of Education Meeting 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

Non Public Schools/Agencies Contracts 
 

 
 

h. Master Contracts for Non-Public Schools and Agencies providing services to 
students whose needs cannot be met in the district’s programs. 

 
1. Assistive Tech 4 All, Inc. 
2. Assistive Technology and Beyond 
3. CCHAT Center 
4. Creative Behavior Systems 
5. Easter Seals Superior CA 
6. Hansine Fisher & Associates 
7. Lodi Children’s Therapy 
8. Point Quest Education – Central Valley 
9. Point Quest Education – Depot Park 
10. Sara Hall 
11. Tilly Therapy 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
 

 



































































































































































2024-2025 CONTRACT NUMBER: 5 

LEA: GALT JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGANCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER: Easter Seals Superior CA 

NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT 

AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract (or "Contract") is entered into on July 1, 2024, between GALT JOINT UNION

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA")

or "District" and Easter Seals Superior CA (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency),

hereinafter referred to as "NPS/A" or "CONTRACTOR," for the purpose of providing special

education and/or related services to LEA students with exceptional needs under the

authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 et seq. and Title 5

of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq., AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of

2003) and AB1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that this Contract does not

commit LEA to pay for special education and/or related services provided to any LEA student, or

CONTRACTOR to provide such special education and/or related services, unless and until an

authorized LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related

services by CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a LEA student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Services

Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "ISA"), and a Nonpublic Services Student Enrollment

form. CONTRACTOR shall work with LEA to complete and return these forms to LEA prior to

initiating any services for any student, unless otherwise agreed by LEA and CONTRACTOR.

These forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR's obligation to provide all services specified in the

LEA student's Individualized Education Program (hereinafter referred to as "IEP"). LEA and

CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each LEA student served by CONTRACTOR. As available

and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP system and/or

electronic database for ISA developing including invoicing.

Unless placement and/or services is ordered pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings

(hereinafter referred to as "OAH") order, a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and

parent, or authorized by LEA for a transfer LEA student pursuant to California Education Code

section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement or NPS/A

services until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that

a NPS placement and/or NPS/ A services is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the Parent.

2.CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of

Education (hereinafter referred to as "CDE") as a NPS/A. All NPS/A placements and services shall

be provided consistent with the area of certification and licensure specified by CDE Certification

and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 et seq and within the professional

scope of practice of each provider's license, certification and/or credential. A current copy of

CONTRACTOR's NPS/A certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant

to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this Contract

is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Contract shall be null and void if such certification such

certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective

period of this Contract 1





























































































































2024-2025 CONTRACT NUMBER: 7 

LEA: GALT JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGANCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER: Lodi Children's Therapy 

NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT 

AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract (or "Contract") is entered into on July 1, 2024, between GALT JOINT UNION

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA")

or "District" and Lodi Children's Therapy (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency), hereinafter

referred to as "NPS/ A" or "CONTRACTOR," for the purpose of providing special education and/or

related services to LEA students with exceptional needs under the authorization of California

Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 et seq. and Title 5 of the California Code of

Regulations section 3000 et seq., AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB1858 (Chapter

914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that this Contract does not commit LEA to pay for special

education and/or related services provided to any LEA student, or CONTRACTOR to provide such

special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized LEA representative

approves the provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a LEA student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Services

Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "ISA"), and a Nonpublic Services Student Enrollment

form. CONTRACTOR shall work with LEA to complete and return these forms to LEA prior to

initiating any services for any student, unless otherwise agreed by LEA and CONTRACTOR.

These forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR's obligation to provide all services specified in the

LEA student's Individualized Education Program (hereinafter referred to as "IEP"). LEA and

CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each LEA student served by CONTRACTOR. As available

and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP system and/or

electronic database for ISA developing including invoicing.

Unless placement and/or services is ordered pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings

(hereinafter referred to as "OAH") order, a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and

parent, or authorized by LEA for a transfer LEA student pursuant to California Education Code

section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement or NPS/A

services until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that

a NPS placement and/or NPS/A services is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the Parent.

2.CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of

Education (hereinafter referred to as "CDE") as a NPS/A. All NPS/A placements and services shall

be provided consistent with the area of certification and licensure specified by CDE Certification

and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 et seq and within the professional

scope of practice of each provider's license, certification and/or credential. A current copy of

CONTRACTOR's NPS/ A certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant

to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this Contract

is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Contract shall be null and void if such certification such

certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective

period of this Contract. 1































































































2024-2025 CONTRACT NUMBER: 8 

LEA: GALT JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGANCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER: Point Quest Education CV 

NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT 

AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract (or "Contract") is entered into on July 1, 2024, between GALT JOINT UNION

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA")

or "District" and Point Quest Education CV (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency),

hereinafter referred to as "NPS/A" or "CONTRACTOR," for the purpose of providing special

education and/or related services to LEA students with exceptional needs under the

authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 et seq. and Title 5

of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq., AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of

2003) and AB1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that this Contract does not

commit LEA to pay for special education and/or related services provided to any LEA student, or

CONTRACTOR to provide such special education and/or related services, unless and until an

authorized LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related

services by CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a LEA student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Services

Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "ISA"), and a Nonpublic Services Student Enrollment

form. CONTRACTOR shall work with LEA to complete and return these forms to LEA prior to

initiating any services for any student, unless otherwise agreed by LEA and CONTRACTOR.

These forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR's obligation to provide all services specified in the

LEA student's Individualized Education Program (hereinafter referred to as "IEP"). LEA and

CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each LEA student served by CONTRACTOR. As available

and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP system and/or

electronic database for ISA developing including invoicing.

Unless placement and/or services is ordered pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings

(hereinafter referred to as "OAH") order, a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and

parent, or authorized by LEA for a transfer LEA student pursuant to California Education Code

section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement or NPS/A

services until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that

a NPS placement and/or NPS/A services is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the Parent.

2.CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of

Education (hereinafter referred to as "CDE") as a NPS/A. All NPS/A placements and services shall

be provided consistent with the area of certification and licensure specified by CDE Certification

and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 et seq and within the professional

scope of practice of each provider's license, certification and/or credential. A current copy of

CONTRACTOR's NPS/A certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant

to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this Contract

is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Contract shall be null and void if such certification such

certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective

period of this Contract. 1































































































2024-2025 CONTRACT NUMBER: 9 

LEA: GALT JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGANCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER: Point Quest Education - Depot Park 

NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT 

AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract (or "Contract") is entered into on July 1, 2024, between GALT JOINT UNION

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA")

or "District" and Point Quest Education Depot Park (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency),

hereinafter referred to as "NPS/ A" or "CONTRACTOR," for the purpose of providing special

education and/or related services to LEA students with exceptional needs under the

authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 et seq. and Title 5

of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq., AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of

2003) and AB1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that this Contract does not

commit LEA to pay for special education and/or related services provided to any LEA student, or

CONTRACTOR to provide such special education and/or related services, unless and until an

authorized LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related

services by CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a LEA student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Services

Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "ISA"), and a Nonpublic Services Student Enrollment

form. CONTRACTOR shall work with LEA to complete and return these forms to LEA prior to

initiating any services for any student, unless otherwise agreed by LEA and CONTRACTOR.

These forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR's obligation to provide all services specified in the

LEA student's Individualized Education Program (hereinafter referred to as "IEP"). LEA and

CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each LEA student served by CONTRACTOR. As available

and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP system and/or

electronic database for ISA developing including invoicing.

Unless placement and/or services is ordered pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings

(hereinafter referred to as "OAH") order, a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and

parent, or authorized by LEA for a transfer LEA student pursuant to California Education Code

section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement or NPS/A

services until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that

a NPS placemer:it and/or NPS/A services is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the Parent.

2.CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of

Education (hereinafter referred to as "CDE") as a NPS/A. All NPS/A placements and services shall

be provided consistent with the area of certification and licensure specified by CDE Certification

and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 et seq and within the professional

scope of practice of each provider's license, certification and/or credential. A current copy of

CONTRACTOR's NPS/ A certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant

to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this Contract

is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Contract shall be null and void if such certification such

certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective

period of this Contract 1



















































































































2024-2025 CONTRACT NUMBER: 11 

LEA: GALT JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGANCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER: Tilly Therapy 

NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT 

AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract (or "Contract") is entered into on July 1, 2024, between GALT JOINT UNION

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA")

or "District" and Tilly Therapy (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency), hereinafter referred

to as "NPS/A" or "CONTRACTOR," for the purpose of providing special education and/or related

services to LEA students with exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education

Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 et seq. and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations

section 3000 et seq., AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes

of 2004). It is understood that this Contract does not commit LEA to pay for special education

and/or related services provided to any LEA student, or CONTRACTOR to provide such special

education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized LEA representative approves

the provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a LEA student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Services

Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "ISA"), and a Nonpublic Services Student Enrollment

form. CONTRACTOR shall work with LEA to complete and return these forms to LEA prior to

initiating any services for any student, unless otherwise agreed by LEA and CONTRACTOR.

These forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR's obligation to provide all services specified in the

LEA student's Individualized Education Program (hereinafter referred to as "IEP"). LEA and

CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each LEA student served by CONTRACTOR. As available

and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP system and/or

electronic database for ISA developing including invoicing.

Unless placement and/or services is ordered pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings

(hereinafter referred to as "OAH") order, a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and

parent, or authorized by LEA for a transfer LEA student pursuant to California Education Code

section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement or NPS/A

services until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that

a NPS placement and/or NPS/A services is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the Parent.

2.CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of 

Education (hereinafter referred to as "CDE") as a NPS/A. All NPS/A placements and services shall

be provided consistent with the area of certification and licensure specified by CDE Certification

and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 et seq and within the professional

scope of practice of each provider's license, certification and/or credential. A current copy of

CONTRACTOR's NPS/A certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant

to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this Contract

is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Contract shall be null and void if such certification such

certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective

period of this Contract. 1





















































































Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      August 21, 2024 Agenda Item:  232.502 
Consent Calendar (continued)- Items 
Removed For Later Consideration 
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
 Information Item:  

 
 
The Board will be able to address any items removed from the consent calendar. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      August 21, 2024 Agenda Item:  242.503 
Board Action Regarding Student Matter  
No. 24/25-01 
 

Presenter:            Kuljeet Nijjar Action Item: XX 
 Information Item:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      August 21, 2024 Agenda Item:  242.504 
Board Consideration of Approval of 2024-2025 
SchoolWorks, Inc. Proposal for Demographics 
and Enrollment Projections  
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
 Information Item:  

 
 

Due to the potential growth and new homes being built in Galt; the District should update their 
demography study and enrollment projections which was last completed in November 2022.   
 
The demographics and enrollment projections provide a comprehensive enrollment analysis. 
The district-wide and school-specific enrollment projections are meant to serve as a planning 
tool to help with both long and short-term planning. Demographic studies examine the factors 
that influence school enrollments, namely trends in demographics, birth rates and housing 
development. 
 
Attached is a proposal and scope of work from SchoolWorks, Inc.  
 
Fiscal impact: $6,500 from Developer Fees  
 
Board approval is recommended.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



July 1, 2024 

 

 
 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  
 Mrs. Lois Yount, Superintendent 

Proposal 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Demographics and 

Enrollment Projections 

2024-2025 

SchoolWorks, Inc. 
8700 Auburn Folsom Road, #200, Granite Bay, CA 95746 l 916.733.0402 l www.SchoolWorksGIS.com 



 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Letter of Intent .......................................   2 

Company Profile .....................................   4 

Scope of Service ......................................   7 

Pricing ..................................................... 14 

Agreement .............................................. 16 

 

 

Table of Contents 



Letter of Intent 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  2 

 

Letter of Intent  



Letter of Intent 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  3 

Letter of Intent 
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District    

1018 C St., Ste. 210 
Galt, CA 95632-1771 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to present this Proposal for the 2024/2025 Demographics and Enrollment 
Projection Service.  SchoolWorks has worked with over 100 school districts on Demographics over the past 
three years. Many of these districts request an annual update each year.  
 

Demographics and Enrollment Projections help establish guidelines designed to ensure the District’s school 
facilities are able to accommodate and support its current and future enrollment.  SchoolWorks provides a total 
comprehensive analysis.  The district-wide and school-specific enrollment projections are meant to serve as a 
planning tool to help with both long-term and short-term planning.  Our services help identify certain facility 
planning requirements such as capacity utilization of existing facilities, planning for modernization or new 
construction, and attendance boundary analysis or redistricting. 
 

This report will include the anticipated growth in the Transitional Kindergarten (TK) Program to reflect the 
recent “TK for All” initiative which will allow a phased plan for all 4-year-olds to attend TK by next year. Planning 
ahead for the growth of the TK Program will help the District determine which sites will be the most impacted 
by the growth in TK and which sites are projected to have the largest TK population.  
 

Proposal Includes: 
 Collaborate with the District staff throughout the project 
 Six-year district and individual school enrollment projections 
 Attendance boundary demographics trend analysis 
 Classroom utilization analysis 
 New housing impacts & yield rate study 
 Draft/Final documentation in electronic form 
 Demographics and Enrollment Projection Service: $6,500 

 
 Set up and one year maintenance of the web-based School Explorer with optional Trustee Boundary 

information: $6,000 
 

 

SchoolWorks, Inc. is dedicated to developing trusting personal relationships with our clients.  Our unique hands-
on approach makes us more than just another facility planning consultant.  Our goal is to become an extension 
of your staff.  We value integrity and going that extra mile to make sure we provide the highest in quality 
service. 
 

We would be honored to serve the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District.  Thank you for your 
consideration and please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any questions. 
 

Kindest Regards, 
   

Ken Reynolds, President 
916.771.4605 
Ken@SchoolWorksGIS.com 

 Ryan Reynolds, DEP Project Manager 
916.771.4614 
Ryan@SchoolWorksGIS.com 

 

 



Company Profile 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Company Profile 



Company Profile 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  5 

SchoolWorks, Inc. District Clients in Blue 

ABOUT SCHOOLWORKS, INC. 

 

SchoolWorks, Inc., established in 2002 by founder and President Ken Reynolds, has a proud history of guiding 

California school districts through the complexities of school facility planning. 

 

Our firm takes pride in focusing on the unique challenges facing California school districts today.  We offer a 

wide range of services that provide the building blocks towards smart and successful facility planning.  

 

SchoolWorks, Inc. provides services exclusively to California school districts, ranging in size from under 100 

students to more than 600,000 students. 

 

Our headquarters is located near Sacramento, providing easy access to CDE, SAB and OPSC.   

 

At SchoolWorks, Inc. our mission is simple:  Take pride in developing trusting personal relationships.  Our 

unique hands-on approach makes us more than just another facility planning and demographics consultant.  

Our goal is to become an extension of your staff and community.  We value integrity and going the extra mile to 

make sure we provide the highest in quality service. 

 

OUR SERVICES 

 

 Demographics and Enrollment Projections  

 State Building Program Assistance 

 Modernization 

 New Construction 

 Financial Hardship 

 CTE 

 Developer Fee Studies 

 Level 1 

 Level 2 

 Attendance Boundaries Studies 

 Trustee Boundaries 

 Web Based School Locator 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Company Profile 
 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  6 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT TEAM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Administrative Support Staff – Demographics & Enrollment Projections 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Other SchoolWorks, Inc. staff:   
 
Kathy Reynolds – Associate Director/New Development Analyst 
Owen Alvarez – Vice President/Eligibility and Funding 
Rex Despain – Vice President/Marketing 
Alexander Rutherford – Project Manager/State Building Program 
Jacob Spivak – Director/Software Development & Technology 
 
 

Dr. Ed González 

Consultant 

Ken Reynolds – President 

 
 

Ryan Reynolds – Division Manager 
Demographics & Enrollment Projects 
 
 
 

Jodi Grayem, 
Office Manager 

 
 
 
 

Alice Turney, 
Accounting Manager 

 
 
 
 



Scope of Service 
 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scope of Service 



Scope of Service 
 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  8 

ENROLLMENT PROJECTIONS 

 

This Demographics and Enrollment Projections provides a comprehensive enrollment analysis.  The district-wide 

and school-specific enrollment projections are meant to serve as a planning tool to help with both long and 

short-term planning.  Demographic Studies examine the factors that influence school enrollments, namely 

trends in demographics, birth rates and housing development.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

The study is also used as a tool to identify certain facility planning requirements such as capacity utilization of 

existing facilities, planning for modernization or new construction and attendance boundary redistricting.   

 

This study provides information based on the 2024/2025 District enrollments and programs, local planning 

policies and residential development.  As these factors change and timelines are adjusted, the Demographic 

Study should be revised to reflect the most current information. 

 

 

 

 

Demographics 
and 

Enrollment 
Projections

Birth Rates

Demographic 
Trends

New 
Residential 

Housing 
Developments

Capacity

Future Facility 
Needs

Short Term 
Budgeting

Portable 
Management

Attendance 
Boundary 

Redistricting

Staffing 
Projections



Scope of Service 
 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  9 

METHODOLOGY 

 

 

 

 

The enrollment projections for each school are generated using a State standard weighted cohort trend 

analysis.  The basic projections are created by studying the individual geographic areas.  The school attendance 

base projections are created using the following procedures: 

 

  



Scope of Service 
 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  10 

 Neighborhood School Attendance Area Analysis:  Each school attendance boundary will be input into our GIS 

(Geographic Information Systems) Software.  Students are counted in each of the attendance area 

boundaries based on their residential address and can be studied to view optimum and balanced 

utilizations.  Attendance pattern maps for each individual boundary will analyze impacts of intra-district 

transfers from within the district boundary, as well as inter-district transfers from neighboring school 

districts. 

 

 

 Inter-district student counts are not included in the base geographic trend analysis since these students 

reside outside of the District.  Therefore, the current number of students-per-school and students-per-

grade are added to the base projections. 

 

 Intra-district students are those who transfer from one school to another.  The number of students 

transferring into and out of each school are calculated and used to determine the difference between the 

projections for students living in each attendance area versus those that are projected to attend the school. 

 

 Cohort Trend Analysis:  The number of students living in the boundary are used to generate the cohort 

factors.  The weighted average of the three years is determined with the current year weighted 50%, the 

prior year 33.3% and the third year 16.7%.  This gives the current trends more value in determining the 

projections.  Those cohorts are then used to determine the students who will be residing in each 

attendance area for the following years. 

 

 

 



Scope of Service 
 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  11 

 Birth Rate Analysis:  Birth rates are used to project future kindergarten enrollment.  It is assumed if the 

births indicate there was an increase of 4% one year, then there will be a corresponding 4% increase in the 

kindergarten class five years later. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Housing Development and Yield Rate Study:  New housing development can have a significant impact on 

future facility and demographic planning.  A complete analysis of all current and future new housing 

developments will be researched by working with city, county and other local municipalities.  A student 

yield rate analysis will also be conducted using the most current Census data.  New housing development 

rates and yield factors are compared to the historical impact of development and if the future projections 

exceed the historical values, the projections are augmented accordingly. 

 

 “TK for All” Initiative:  The report will model the growth projected for Transitional Kindergarten in alignment 

with the recent “TK for All” initiative which follows a phased plan to allow all 4-year-olds to attend TK by 

2025/26. This includes the assumption that TK will be offered at all sites that currently house K students. 

The expansion for TK enrollment is based on the following schedule: 

2024/25 – 9 months (Eligible) 

2025/26 – 12 months (Adds 3 months) 

 

 District Special Education and Alternative Programs:  The projections for special education students and 

alternative programs are created by assuming those programs typically serve a percentage of the total 

District population.  Therefore, as the District grows or declines, the enrollment in those programs would 

increase or decrease accordingly.  

 

  



Scope of Service 
 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  12 

 Site Capacity and Utilization Analysis:  By reviewing current district loading standards and how many 

available classrooms are situated at each school site, we can determine which schools have room for 

growth, which schools are over-crowded or which school sites may need to be considered for boundary 

changes or grade level reconfiguration.   The classroom counts may not represent the current classrooms 

being used, as there may be unused rooms on the school site.  In some cases, there may be fewer 

classrooms counted than current teaching stations if some of the rooms being used were designed for other 

purposes but are currently being used as classrooms due to overcrowding.  The purpose of the classroom 

count and capacity are to show what the school capacity should be if all teaching spaces are being used in 

accordance with the educational programs of the District.   

 

 

 

  

School Facility Utilization 2021/22 2027/28 2021/22 2027/28

Net Net CR Current Projected Current Projected

Elementary Schools Classrooms Capacity Enrollment Enrollment Utilization Utilization

Barrett Elem 22 575 364 385 63.3% 67.0%

El Toro Elem 22 568 441 529 77.6% 93.1%

Jackson Academy 24 655 616 672 94.0% 102.6%

Los Paseos Elem 23 599 456 478 76.1% 79.8%

Nordstrom Elem 27 706 577 629 81.7% 89.1%

Paradise Valley Elem 20 516 364 386 70.5% 74.8%

San Martin/Gwinn Elem 30 807 650 639 80.5% 79.2%

Walsh Elem 28 735 380 420 51.7% 57.1%

Sub-Totals 196 5,161 3,848 4,138 74.6% 80.2%

Middle Schools

Britton Middle 39 1,131 657 586 58.1% 51.8%

Murphy Middle 29 841 645 538 76.7% 64.0%

Sub-Totals 68 1,972 1,302 1,124 66.0% 57.0%

High Schools

Live Oak High 51 1,479 1,158 1,111 78.3% 75.1%

Sobrato High 57 1,653 1,544 1,337 93.4% 80.9%

Sub-Totals 108 3,132 2,702 2,448 86.3% 78.2%

Other Schools

Central High 14 378 138 128

Sub-Totals 14 378 138 128

District Totals 386 10,643 7,990 7,838 75.1% 73.6%



Scope of Service 
 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  13 

 School Explorer: Attendance areas are defined as geographic boundaries around a school which include 

specific residential addresses. School Explorer is a web-based application intended to provide general 

information and assign neighborhood elementary, middle, and high schools based on a specific valid 

residential street address. 

 

School Explorer is intended to be used as a tool that provides school assignment information based upon a 

specific valid address. If you do not know the specific address, or if it cannot be found, just click anywhere 

on the map to find the schools for that neighborhood. 

 

The information provided by School Explorer is intended to only be used as a guideline and is not a final 

determination of school assignments. The accuracy of address mapping may vary and is not a guarantee. 

While our team makes every effort to ensure all search databases are up-to-date, the user should not 

assume results provided by School Explorer are a guarantee of placement at a particular school. It is 

recommended that final school placement determination be verified by a School District representative. 

 

SchoolWorks, Inc., will work with a district representative to ensure the correct attendance boundaries and 

school site information has been provided. If any School Board approved boundary change occurs, 

SchoolWorks, Inc., will promptly update the web-link to represent that change. 

 

Addresses and street maps are provided through a third party who has made substantial efforts to ensure 

the accuracy of the information. However, anomalies in street representation can and do occur. Any 

inconsistencies that are observed while using School Explorer should be reported to SchoolWorks, Inc., by a 

district representative via phone or email. 

 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

 

ON-CALL SERVICES 

SchoolWorks, Inc. provides on-call services to all our clients.  If you have questions about the number of 

students in a boundary, in a specific neighborhood, or within a certain radius, our staff is available on-call 

Monday through Friday 7am to 4pm to help answer those questions.  We will make every attempt to answer 

within the same day. Some inquires may require an addendum to the contract. 

 

HOURLY RATES 

If you request a SchoolWorks representative on various projects or committee meetings beyond the Statement 

of Work in this proposal, the District will be billed an hourly rate of $185 per hour.   



Pricing 
 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pricing 



Pricing 
 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  15 

STATEMENT OF WORK 

SchoolWorks, Inc. is proposing a fixed fee for the basic services provided in this proposal.  Optional services may 

be added.  Changes in the scope of work can have impacts on the overall fee.  If SchoolWorks, Inc. presence at 

meetings or additional services are requested beyond the scope of work, the District will be billed at $185 per 

hour, plus travel time and expenses or issued a new contract for those specific services. 

 

DEMOGRAPHICS & ENROLLMENT PROJECTIONS 

 Geocode two years of student enrollment data: October 2023 - October 2024 

 Analyze student demographic trends 

 Six-year district enrollment projections 

 Enrollment projections for each individual school 

 Classroom utilization analysis 

 New housing impacts & yield rate study 

 One Virtual Board presentation 

Total Proposed Fee                                                                                                                                          $6,500 

* 

SCHOOL EXPLORER SCOPE OF WORK SERVICES  

 Set up and one year maintenance of the web-based School Explorer  
 

Total Proposed Fee $5,500 

OPTIONAL Additional Fee 

 Add Trustee Area Boundary Layer $500 

 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District may retain SchoolWorks, Inc., to continue providing School 

Explorer services by signing an annual service contract at the end of the terms outlined in this proposal. 

ANNUAL SERVICE CONTRACT (Fiscal Year) YEARLY FEE 

 Annual Service Contract for continued use of School Explorer with technical support  $1,200 

 

PROJECT TIMELINE 

The proposed timeline for completion and delivery of the project is TWO (2) months from the time the 

SchoolWorks, Inc. team is able to collect the appropriate information.  A project RFI will be submitted to the 

District upon signing of this agreement.  A schedule is intended to be a flexible timeline and will be adjusted 

accordingly, depending on coordination of schedules and efficient data collection.  It is our goal to complete this 

project under the TWO (2) month window.  The schedule is generated through a team effort involving District 

Administration and SchoolWorks, Inc.



Agreement 
 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agreement 



Agreement 
 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  17 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

DEMOGRAPHICS & ENROLLMENT PROJECTIONS 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  

1018 C St., Ste. 210 
Galt, CA 95632-1771 

 
and 

 
SchoolWorks, Inc. 

8700 Auburn Folsom Road #200 
Granite Bay, CA 95746 

Telephone:  (916)733-0402 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, is made by and between SchoolWorks, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “SCHOOLWORKS”) 

and Galt Joint Union Elementary School District, (hereinafter referred to as “the DISTRICT”) 

 

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT is authorized to retain consulting services to assist the DISTRICT in updating 

demographics and enrollment projections. 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

SCHOOLWORKS will provide the DISTRICT a Demographics and Enrollment Projections.  The district-wide and 

school-specific enrollment projections are meant to serve as a planning tool to help with both long-and short-

term planning.  Demographic Studies examine the factors that influence school enrollments, namely trends in 

demographics, birth rates and housing development.  It is also used as a tool to identify certain facility planning 

requirements such as capacity utilization of existing facilities, planning for modernization or new construction 

and attendance boundary redistricting.  This study provides information based on the 2024/2025 District 

enrollments and programs, local planning policies and residential development 

 

AGREEMENT PERIOD 

The agreement period: 2024-2025 fiscal year. 

 

OBLIGATIONS OF THE DISTRICT 

DISTRICT agrees that it’s employees will cooperate with SCHOOLWORKS and be available for scheduled 

consultations and meetings at reasonable times. 

 

DISTRICT shall provide data which is required or requested by SCHOOLWORKS.  All data and records, including 

student information will remain confidential. 

DISTRICT will assist SCHOOLWORKS in obtaining data from public municipalities or agencies or private citizen 

groups whenever such data is necessary for completion of the work outlined in this agreement. 



Agreement 
 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  18 

CONFIDENTIALITY 

Student records obtained by SCHOOLWORKS and/or its third parties from the DISTRICT continue to be the 

property and under the control of the DISTRICT.  The procedures by which students may retain possession and 

control of their own student generated content will be determined and controlled by the DISTRICT, not by 

SCHOOLWORKS.  The options by which a Student may transfer student-generated content to a personal 

account will be determined by the DISTRICT, not by SCHOOLWORKS. Representatives of the DISTRICT, not 

SCHOOLWORKS or its third parties, will work directly with parents, legal guardians, or eligible students to review 

personally identifiable information in the student’s records and correct erroneous information.  SCHOOLWORKS 

staff members or its third parties shall act to ensure the security and confidentiality of student records, 

including, but not limited to, designating and training experienced staff members to ensure the security and 

confidentiality of student records, by use of the following measures: SCHOOLWORKS staff members will 

periodically review and test the security and confidentiality of records stored in its computer systems and its 

related data drives, and make adjustments to security protocols as required. In the event of an unauthorized 

disclosure of a student’s records, staff of SCHOOLWORKS and its third parties will assist the DISTRICT by 

providing any information provided in the unauthorized disclosure to the DISTRICT so that the DISTRICT can 

report the disclosure to the affected parent or student and resolve the issue in a satisfactory manner.   The 

DISTRICT, not SCHOOLWORKS will work with students who choose to retain possession of their student 

generated content or to transfer such content to a student’s personal account.  SCHOOLWORKS agrees to 

comply with all standards regarding the privacy of the student data provided by the DISTRICT, relating to 

“COPPA,” “FERPA,” and SOPIPA.  In accordance with COPPA, FERPA and SOPIPA. SCHOOLWORKS will not use its 

site or services for other than its school district client’s K-12 school purposes and will use security protocols to 

secure DISTRICT data that is used in conducting certain studies and reports for or on behalf of the DISTRICT.  

SCHOOLWORKS will not use any personally identifiable information in student records to engage in targeted 

advertising.  SCHOOLWORKS. will not sell a student’s information.  SCHOOLWORKS will not use any personally 

identifiable information in student records to create a “student profile” for any purpose other than those 

required or specifically permitted by the Technology Services Agreement.  SCHOOLWORKS and/or its third 

parties shall not disclose any personally identifiable information in student records, unless for legal, regulatory, 

judicial, safety, or operational improvement reasons, and must disclose student information:  when required by 

law, for legitimate research purposes; or for school purposes to educational agencies authorized by the 

DISTRICT 

 

TERMINATION 

It is understood and agreed that the DISTRICT may terminate this agreement without cause by giving 

SCHOOLWORKS written notice at least thirty (30) days before effective date of such termination.  Required 

payments include payment for hours completed. 

 

  



Agreement 
 

 

July 1, 2024 SchoolWorks, Inc.  19 

COMPENSATION 

 

PLEASE SELECT OPTION 1 AND/OR 2 

OPTION 1: 

2024-25 Demographics & Enrollment Projections $6,500 

 

OPTION 2: 

                              Set up and one year maintenance of the web-based School Explorer $5,500 

   

 

                              Option to add the Trustee Boundary information to the web-based School Explorer $500 

 

The full amount will be billed upon completion of the Study and submittal to the District for review.  The 

amount is due within thirty (30) days of the date of the invoice. If SchoolWorks, Inc. presence is requested at an 

in- person school board meeting or other committee meetings beyond the scope of work, the District will be 

billed at $185 per hour, plus travel time and expenses. 

 

The parties hereto have caused this agreement to be executed by their authorized representatives.   

 

SchoolWorks, Inc.  Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 

   

 
 
Kenneth R. Reynolds 

 Signature 

Print Name 
 
 
President 

 Print Name 

Title 
 
 
July 1, 2024 

 Title 

Date  Date 

 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      August 21, 2024 Agenda Item:  242.505 
Board Consideration of Approval of Consultant 
Agreement for Outdoor Education 
 

Presenter:            Claudia Del Toro Anguiano Action Item: XX 
 Information Item:  

 
 

The Galt Joint Union Elementary School District will continue our partnership with Mr. John 
Durand one of our consultants who will strengthen and support our district's outdoor education 
initiatives. Mr. Durand will serve as a part-time Environmental Education Coordinator. The scope 
of work will include, but not limited to, the following: 
 
• Co-plan and co-lead education programs with Outdoor Education Coordinator.  
• Provide educational resources and co-lead workshops for teachers. 
• Continue to co-represent the GJUESD district at various preserve partner meetings, Bureau 

of Land Management (BLM) meetings, CRP meetings, etc. 
• Help promote a range of outdoor recreation opportunities for youth, their families,             

and community members on public lands. 
• Provide guidance to the Outdoor Education Coordinator on field trip activities for                  

youth visiting the Preserve during school and in after-school programs that link youth         
with career pathways in public lands, resources, and recreation. 

• Provide support to the outdoor ed coordinator on the best ways to work with Preserve 
Partners to coordinate nature walks, hiking, paddling, photography, and other outdoor 
adventures for members of multiple underserved communities in the region. 

 
 
 

Attachment: Consultant Agreement 
Fiscal Impact:  Self-funded using BLM and other local grants. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Consultant Agreement for Outdoor Education

POST-RETIREMENT CONSULTANT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is hereby entered into between the Galt Joint Union Elementary

School District ("District") and John Durand ("Consultant"), with respect to the following:

WHEREAS, Education Code section 35046 allows the District to hire retired

certificated employees to serve as consultants when the employees meet the eligibility

requirements of the code section; and

WHEREAS, Consultant is a retired District employee who possesses special skills and

training and meets the eligibility requirements of Education Code section 35046; and

WHEREAS, the District wishes to employ Consultant to perform the services more

specifically described below:

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

Consultant, serving as a part-time Environmental Education Coordinator will provide the

following scope of services:

o Co-plan and co-lead education programs with Outdoor Education
Coordinator

o Support Outdoor Education Coordinator with the management of various
grants, provide guidance on grant reports, provide records of grant
proposals, sample of award letters, timelines, etc.

o Ensure Outdoor Education Coordinator has contact information/ records
related to various partners that have supported our district in the past

o Provide Outdoor Education Coordinator access to lesson plans, activities
already created for specific community or district led events, grade levels,
schools, etc.

o Provide educational resources and co-lead workshops for teachers
o Continue to co-represent the GJUESD district at various preserve partner

meetings, BLM meetings, CRP meetings, etc.
o Help promote a range of outdoor recreation opportunities for youth, their

families, and community members on public lands
o Provide guidance to the Outdoor Education Coordinator on field trip activities

for youth visiting the Preserve during school and in after school programs that
link youth with career pathways in public lands, resources, and recreation

o provide support to the outdoor ed coordinator on best ways to work with



Consultant Agreement for Outdoor Education

Preserve Partners to coordinate nature walks, hiking, paddling, photography,
and other outdoor adventures for members of multiple underserved
communities in the region

2. Term. Consultant shall provide the services under this Agreement during

August 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025.

3. Compensation. District agrees to pay Consultant a flat monthly fee of $3,636.00

less applicable taxes and deductions, as compensation for services under this Agreement and

shall not exceed $40,000 annually. Compensation to Consultant pursuant to this Agreement is

not subject to CalSTRS deductions. It is Consultant's responsibility to comply with and notify

the District as to earnings limitations applicable to Consultant. As a result of this employment,

Consultant shall not be entitled to any District health and welfare benefits, retirement

contributions, paid sick leave, paid vacation, disability insurance, or any other benefits unless

required by law

4. Materials. The District shall furnish Consultant all materials, equipment and

supplies and other items necessary to complete the services under this Agreement with the

Bureau of Land Management grant.

5. Assignment. Neither party hereto may assign this Agreement in whole or in part

except with the written permission of the other party.

6. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between
the parties and supersedes any prior or contemporaneous agreement with respect to the
services contemplated, and may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both
parties to the

7. Governing Law. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be governed
by the laws of the State of California.

Agreement.

8. Severability. If any term, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions

will nevertheless.



Consultant Agreement for Outdoor Education

9. Cancelation of Agreement. The District reserves the right to cancel this

agreement. Cancellation by the District will require a 30-day written notice to the consultant.

10. Successors and Assigns. All terms, conditions and provision of this Agreement

shall inure to and shall bind the parties hereto and each of their respective heirs, executors,

administrators, successors and assigns.

11. Governing Board Ratification. The parties understand and agree that this

Agreement is subject to ratification by the District's Governing Board.

12. Hold Harmless. Each party agrees that in the event of injury to, or death of, any

person or damage to any property as a result of any negligent act or omission of that party, or

its agents or employees, in the performance of any activity herein, that party shall indemnify,

defend and hold harmless the other party, its officers, agents and employees from and against

any claims, suits, costs, expenses or damages to which the other party, its officers, agents and

employees become subjected by reason of said injury, death or property damages resulting

from such negligent act or omission.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the
date set forth

below.

Date:________________________, 2024 Signature:______________________
Superintendent or Designee

Date:_________________________, 2024 Signature:______________________
Consultant



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 

 
Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

 

Meeting Date:      August 21, 2024 Agenda Item:  242.506 
Board Consideration of Approval of Variable 
Term Waiver for Newly Hired Educator 
 

Presenter:            Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano Action Item: XX 
  Information Item:  

 
 

Background: 
Beginning in March 2023, Language, Speech and Hearing Specialist vacancies for the 2023-24 
school year were posted on various job vacancy platforms to fill all necessary certificated positions 
with fully credentialed and qualified staff.  As of the beginning of the 2024-2025 school year, 2 
vacancies continued to be unfilled. 
 
Due to a lack of qualified, fully credentialed applicants, GJUESD is requesting approval to submit an 
application for a Variable Term Waiver to the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing.  The 
District has offered employment to the following applicant on the basis of a credential waiver: 
 
 

Applicant Name FTE Assignment Location School Year 

Kaitlyn Holman 1.0 FTE Language, Speech 
and Hearing 
Specialist  

District Office 2024-2025 

 
 

Board approval is recommended. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      August 21, 2024 Agenda Item:  242.507 
Board Consideration of Approval of Resolution 
No. 1 Accepting Final Completion of Contract for 
the Maintenance and Operations Shop  
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
 Information Item:  

 
 

On October 18, 2023, the Board approved a Lease-Leaseback Agreement between the District 
and S+B James Construction California, Inc. for the Maintenance and Operation Shop at 1019 
Beaver Park Way. This project has been substantially completed and we are requesting Board 
approval of Resolution No. 1, Notice of Completion. 
 
The scope of work consisted of the construction of a 60 ft. x 100 ft. (6,000 SF) pre-engineered 
metal building and site improvements to house the new school district Maintenance and 
Operations Shop. The scope included two maintenance bays, a shop area, an office, and a 
restroom. Site improvements included underground utilities, grading, and asphalt paving for 
vehicle circulation and parking. Domestic water, sanitary sewer, and storm drain were extended 
from existing services.  A new water service from the main was provided to serve the building’s 
automatic fire sprinkler system and the additional site fire hydrant.  
 
With Board approval, the Notice will be sent to the Sacramento County Recorder’s Office for 
recording.  
 
Proposed Contract Amount: $2,299,760 
Final Contract Amount: $2,376,691 using Board committed funds for facilities and State Facility  
Funds 
 
The contract amount was increased due to changes in the permit drawings approved by the city 
related to ADA accessibility, which increased demolition concrete and added grading and 
asphalt.  
 
Attachments: 
1. Resolution No. 1 
2. Notice of Final Completion  

 
 
 



 
GALT JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION RESOLUTION NO. 1 
 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING FINAL COMPLETION OF CONTRACT FOR THE 
MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS SHOP 

S+B JAMES CONSTRUCTION CALIFORNIA, INC. 
 

 
WHEREAS, on the 18th of October, 2023, a Lease-Leaseback Agreement was entered into 
by and between the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District, State of California, as 
Owner, and S+B James Construction California, Inc., Sacramento, California, 95691 as 
Contractor, for the Maintenance and Operations Shop (the “Project”) in accordance with the 
plans and specifications thereof; 
 
WHEREAS, California Public Contract Code section 7107 authorizes a school district to 
accept a construction project after its completion; 
 
WHEREAS, California Civil Code section 3093 requires a school district to record a notice of 
completion with the county recorder’s office after a project is deemed complete; and 
 
WHEREAS, after construction of a project is deemed complete, California Public Contract Code 
section 7107 requires a school district to release any retained funds deemed legally appropriate. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS, that the work contracted for as 
herein mentioned is declared to have been completed and is hereby accepted by the Galt 
Joint Union Elementary School District, as Owner, and that the balance due under the 
Project’s agreement is to be paid to the Contractor according to its terms. 
 
The District’s Superintendent, Lois Yount is hereby authorized and directed to execute and 
cause to be recorded a Notice of Completion in the form attached hereto on behalf of the 
Owner. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of August, 2024, by the following vote of the Board 
of Education of the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
 
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
Traci Skinner, President 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 



 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY 

 
NOTICE OF FINAL COMPLETION 

 
MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS SHOP  

 
No fee document – for the benefit of the government per Government Code 6103 

 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Galt Joint Union Elementary 
School District of the County of Sacramento, State of California, as Owner of the 
property hereinafter described entered into a Lease Lease-back Agreement 
between itself, as Owner, and S+B James Construction California, Inc. as 
Contractor, for the completion of the Maintenance and Operations Shop, in 
accordance with plans and specifications thereof. 

 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that the work under the terms of said 

agreement was completed to the satisfaction of the owner on July 1, 2024, and 
by Resolution of Acceptance of Completion passed and adopted by the Board of 
Education on August 21, 2024. 

 
The name and address of lessee is Galt Joint Union Elementary School 

District, 1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632, and the nature of the interest 
of such owner is a fee simple title. 

 
The address where the work was performed is located at 1019 Beaver Park, 

California 95632. 
 
The name of the contractor is, S+B James Construction California, Inc. 

Sacramento, California, 95691. 
 
GALT JOINT UNION 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 
BY:  
 
________________________        
Lois Yount 
Superintendent 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
 
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
 
 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO 
 
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210 
Galt, CA 95632 
Attn: Alicia Valdovinos 



 

 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document, to which 
this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on 
this ________ day of ________________, 20____, 
by _______________________________, proved to 
me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the 
person who appeared before me. 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Signature of Notary Public                               (Seal) 
 
 
Resolution No. ____________ 
Action Item: ____________ 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      August 21, 2024 Agenda Item:  242.508 
Board Consideration of Approval of General 
Contractor for Site Work for Portable Classrooms 
at Vernon E. Greer Elementary  
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
 Information Item:  

 
 

The District is in the process of removing two antiquated portables and replacing them with 
new portables at Greer Elementary School. Bid advertisements for site work were published on 
June 21 and 28, 2024.  
 
Project Description:  
The project consists of demolishing and off-hauling two (2) existing portable classroom 
buildings and their associated ramps and wood foundations and installing two (2) new 30x32 
portable classroom buildings and ramps at the same location with the associated utilities and 
site work. 
 
The submittal of bids was due July 24, 2024. The District received five bids from prequalified 
general contractors ranging from $315,000-$431,270. The lowest bid was from RBH 
Construction, Inc.  
 
Fiscal impact: $315,000 
Funding source: Expanded Learning Program  
 
Attachments:  

1. Bid Results  
2. Bid Form  

 
Board approval is recommended.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
 Vernon E Greer - Relocatable Classrooms 

 BID RESULTS 
 BID OPENING – Wednesday, July 24th at 3:00 P.M. 

 AMOUNT OF 
 BID(S) 

 Required Documenta�on: 

 VENDOR 

 BID 
 PACKAGE 
 RECEIVED 

 PRESENT AT 
 PRE-BID 

 JOB WALK 
 BID 

 FORM 
 BID 

 BOND 
 DESIGNATION OF 

 SUBCONTRACTORS 
 NON-COLLUSION 

 DECLARATION 

 SIGNED DOC RE: 
 WORKERS 

 COMPENSATION 
 RBH Construc�on, Inc.  X  X  $315,000.00  X  X  X  X  X 

 American River 
 Construc�on, Inc.  X  X  $340,000.00  X  X  X  X  X 

 Blevins Construc�on  X  X  $419,760.00  X  X  X  X  X 
 Valley Construc�on 

 Services, Inc.  X  X  $392,198.00  X  X  X  X  X 
 JPB Designs, Inc.  X  X  $431,270.00  X  X  X  X  X 

 Alejandra Garibay - Chief Business Official 
 Alicia Valdovinos - Administra�ve Assistant/CBO & HR 











Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      August 21, 2024 Agenda Item:  242.509 
Board Consideration of Approval to Update the 
Supervisory Salary Schedule 
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
 Information Item:  

 
 

Based on a parity study for salaries and job descriptions using comparable Districts, an increase 
in salary is recommended for the following supervisory positions effective September 1, 2024:  

• Food Service Supervisor: From Range K to Range M 
• Visual and Performing Arts Coordinator: From Range B to Range G 
• Human Resource Coordinator: From Range K to Range M 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

• Approximately $46,000 
• Funding Sources: Food & Nutrition, Arts and Music Grant, General Fund  

 
 Attachment: 

• Proposed Salary Schedule  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board Approved 3/20/24

GALT JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUPERVISORY SALARY SCHEDULE

2023-2024

POSITIONS RANGE
District Expanded Learning Coordinator G
Expanded Learning Site Coordinator C
Executive Assistant to Superintendent K
Fiscal Services Supervisor O
Human Resources Coordinator M
Food Service Supervisor M
Transportation Supervisor M
Bilingual Community Outreach Coordinator (BCOC) B
Visual and Performing Arts Coordinator G

STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP
RANGE 1 2 3 4 5 6

A (45,397) (47,668) (50,053) (52,561) (55,194) (56,574)
B (47,668) (50,053) (52,561) (55,194) (57,952) (59,405)
C (50,053) (52,561) (55,194) (57,952) (60,846) (62,373)
D (52,561) (55,194) (57,952) (60,846) (63,888) (65,491)
E (55,194) (57,952) (60,846) (63,888) (67,080) (68,770)
F (57,952) (60,846) (63,888) (67,080) (70,434) (72,210)
G (60,846) (63,888) (67,080) (70,434) (73,961) (75,824)
H (63,888) (67,080) (70,434) (73,961) (77,662) (79,612)
I (67,080) (70,434) (73,961) (77,662) (81,550) (83,599)
J (70,434) (73,961) (77,662) (81,550) (85,623) (87,785)
K (73,961) (77,662) (81,550) (85,623) (89,908) (92,169)
L (77,662) (81,550) (85,623) (89,908) (94,404) (96,777)
M (81,550) (85,623) (89,908) (94,404) (99,124) (101,620)
N (85,623) (89,908) (94,404) (99,124) (104,080) (106,700)
O (89,908) (94,404) (99,124) (104,080) (109,284) (112,041)
P (94,404) (99,124) (104,080) (109,284) (114,748) (117,642)
Q (99,124) (104,080) (109,284) (114,748) (120,486) (123,529)

Associates Degree ($ 500.00)    
Bachelors Degree ($ 1,000.00) 
Masters Degree ($ 2,000.00) 

LONGEVITY 
3.5% at 5 years
4% at 10 years
4.5% at 15 years
5% at 20 years
5.5% at 25 years

Pending Board Approval August 21, 2024



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      August 21, 2024 Agenda Item:  242.510 
Board Consideration of Approval of Administrator 
Daily Substitute Rate 
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
 Information Item:  

 
 

The Galt Joint Union Elementary School District is introducing a new salary schedule for 
Substitute Certificated Administrators to ensure adequate district-wide coverage for 
administrators when needed. The proposed substitute daily rate is $600. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Pending Board Approval August 21, 2024

GALT JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

2024-25
DAILY 

Administrator Substitute $600.00

CERTIFICATED ADMINISTRATOR SUBSTITUTE-DAILY RATE 

RATE



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      August 21, 2024 Agenda Item:  242.511 
Board Consideration of Approval to Piggyback on 
Clovis Unified School District Contract with AZ 
Bus Sales to Purchase Three (3) Electric School 
Buses  
 

Presenter:            Alejandra Garibay Action Item: XX 
 Information Item:  

 
 
Public Contract Code (PCC) section 20118 permits school districts to purchase “personal 
property” from a vendor without competitive bidding if they “piggyback” on a contract that 
the vendor has with another public agency. 
 
Pricing is guaranteed under a piggyback contract approved by Clovis Unified School District 
on February 7, 2024. 
 
The Galt Joint Union School District received a 2023 Clean School Bus (CSB) rebate from the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) totaling $660,000. These funds cover the cost of 
three new electric buses, charging infrastructure, and other eligible expenses. Additionally, 
the GJUESD received an HVIP Standard grant of $720,000 to purchase three new electric 
buses. 
 
Total Combined Grant Award Per Bus: $460,000 
 
In total, the district secured $1,380,000 in grant funding. The cost for the three electric 
buses is $1,486,860.33, leaving a balance of $106,860.33. The district has restricted funds 
from previous electric vehicle purchases to cover this remaining amount, resulting in no 
fiscal impact on the general fund balance.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Karl J. Simon, Director 
Transportation and Climate Division 
Office of Transportation and Air Quality 
 
May 29, 2024 
 
Alejandra Garibay 
GALT JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1018 C ST STE 210 
GALT, CA 95632-1771 
 
Re: 2023 EPA Clean School Bus Rebate Application – Selected for Funding, Rebate ID 019347 
 
Dear Alejandra Garibay, 
 
Congratulations! The application with Rebate ID 019347 submitted to the Environmental Protection 
Agency’s (EPA) 2023Clean School Bus (CSB) Rebates for GALT JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
DISTRICT has been selected for funding. $660,000 has been reserved for your use in this program to 
replace 3 bus(es)1. 
 
These reserved funds include $660,000 for 3 new electric bus(es), eligible charging infrastructure, and 
other eligible expenses. 
 
The replacement bus(es) must serve Galt Joint Union Elementary at 1018 C St. Ste. 210, Galt, CA 95632 
for at least 5 years from the time of delivery. As a selectee, you may now move on to the next step in 
the rebate process. 
 
Please carefully review the 2023 CSB Rebates Program Guide for detailed information and requirements 
for each step of the rebate process, including Section 8 that covers the next form to be submitted, the 
Payment Request Form. It is also critical that you review the Terms and Conditions in Appendix A that 
govern the rebate program. When submitting the application, a representative of your organization 
certified that they had read and agreed to comply with the requirements and Terms and Conditions of 
the Program Guide. Additionally, please review the two additional Terms and Conditions in Appendix 
A.1 at the bottom of this letter, which are also included in the May 2024 version of the 2023 CSB 
Rebates Program Guide. Your Payment Request Form will require you to certify that you have read 
and agree to comply with all requirements and terms and conditions contained in the 2023 CSB 
Rebates Program Guide (dated May 2024). 
 
As a selectee, you must complete the following summarized steps in the allotted time to receive your 
rebate payment. To complete the steps below, selectees must continue to be actively registered in the 
System for Award Management (SAM)throughout the project period. The status your rebate application 
is shown in the Applicant Dashboard, however all assistance related to SAM must be directed to the 
Federal Service Desk. 
 



Failure to submit all the required forms and documentation or to complete the required work by the 
deadlines stated below will result in the forfeiting of funds. In addition, when completing all rebate 
forms, we remind you that knowingly making materially false statements or falsifying or concealing a 
material fact is a felony, which may result in fines or up to five years imprisonment, per 18 U.S.C. § 1001. 
 

• Selectees must submit an online Payment Request Form (PRF) that includes an attached scan of 
the order documents (purchase order(s), sales order(s), or approved quote(s)) as applicable for 
the new school buses and, if applicable, eligible charging infrastructure and other eligible 
expenses by November 29, 2024. Documentation to attach to the PRF includes purchase orders 
on school district letterhead with purchaser/vendor signatures OR sales orders on vendor 
letterhead with purchaser/vendor signatures. Approved quotes in lieu purchase or sales orders 
for eligible infrastructure installation costs may be included in documentation submitted as well. 
The date of the order document cannot pre-date the selection notification date and must be 
dated within 45 days of the initial PRF submission2. The order document must clearly show a 
transaction agreed upon between the organization that will own the replacement bus and a 
school bus equipment dealer3. Please refer to Section 8 of the Program Guide for more details 
on what information must be included in each order document.  

 
Be advised, the funding amount noted at the top of this letter are maximum funding amounts; however, 
EPA will only disburse funds based on actual bus and charging infrastructure costs supported by the 
order document(s), subject to the per bus funding limits detailed in Section 4 of the Program Guide. The 
EPA anticipates disbursing funds within approximately 60 days of the approval of a complete Payment 
Request Form. In many cases, this will result in a selectee receiving funds in advance of the delivery of 
the bus and charging infrastructure. 
 
Selectees should work with their vendors to spend EPA funds on eligible project expenses, as described 
in Section3 of the Program Guide, as expeditiously as possible after receiving funds from EPA; however, 
if there is an extended period of time between receiving EPA funds and spending funds, then selectees 
must adhere to the requirements in Appendix A.1 of the Program Guide (included further below for 
reference). 
 

• Your organization must submit a Close Out Form by May 31, 2026, that demonstrates that new 
buses were delivered and eligible charging infrastructure was delivered and installed. The Close 
Out form also requires documentation that existing buses were scrapped or, for vehicle model 
year 2011 and newer, documentation that the existing 2011 and newer buses were scrapped, 
sold, or donated. Selectees are expected to comply with site visit requests, recordkeeping 
requirements, and document requests for five years from the date of replacement bus delivery, 
or risk cancellation of an active rebate application (if still open) or other enforcement action. 
Please review Sections 9 and 10, as well as the terms and conditions in Appendix A of the 
Program Guide for more information. 

 
Ninety (90) days before the original deadline, your organization can request extensions to the Payment 
Request Form and Close Out Form deadlines through the CSB Rebate Forms Online Portal. The EPA will 



review these requests on a case-by-case basis and may grant extensions if sufficient justification is 
provided. 
 
Resources to assist your organization in successfully replacing existing school buses with new, cleaner 
buses are available on our website. These resources include: 

• 2023 Rebates Next Steps Flyer 
• Electric School Bus Transition Planning Resource 
• Coordinating with Electric Utility Partners Resource 
• Workforce Planning Recommendations and Resources 
• Resources to Engage Your Community 

 
You can also reach out to CleanSchoolBus@epa.gov if you have programmatic questions or 
CleanSchoolBusTA@nrel.gov if you have any technical assistance questions. The technical assistance 
helpline is staffed by the Joint Office of Energy and Transportation (JOET), whom the EPA has partnered 
with to provide FREE technical assistance to its selectees, including information and tools needed to 
successfully plan and deploy clean school buses and infrastructure. JOET has expertise in a wide range of 
clean school bus deployment topics, such as electric bus basics, charging equipment, utility connections, 
and operational considerations like routing and maintenance. We encourage you to reach out to JOET 
for all of your technical questions.  
 
Thank you for your participation in the 2023 CSB Rebates. We look forward to working with you in 
adding these clean school buses to your student transportation service.  
 
Sincerely,  
Karl J. Simon, Director 
Transportation and Climate Division 
Office of Transportation and Air Quality 
 
1 NOTE – EPA used the number of buses listed on the rebate application as the number of requested 
buses rather than the number of buses listed in the Utility Partnership Template, in the event that the 
numbers differed. All selectees planning to purchase electric buses are encouraged to continue to work 
with their utility to ensure clarity on project plans, including number of buses.2 Selectees must adhere 
to state and local funding requirements regarding the solicitation and collection of bids necessary to 
submit a purchase order document. EPA will not be involved in this process.3 EPA is not responsible for 
the business or contractual agreements between school districts and bus providers; buses must serve 
the same district for 5 years (except as noted in Section 2 for a change in contract provider). 
 
Appendix A.1 
Consistent with the eligible requirements for new replacement buses, school districts and supervisory 
administrative units (i.e., entities that are responsible for the purchase of buses or providing bus service 
for multiple smaller sub-units of schools or school districts) that are awarded funding based on 
qualifying for prioritization as high-need under the definition of "very large school district" (i.e., the 
school district or supervisory administrative unit does not have SAIPE data and meets the threshold for 
"very large school district" defined in the self-certification document), must ensure that buses 



purchased with EPA funds continue to primarily serve the prioritized school district(s), as defined in the 
documentation submitted to verify self-certification, for at least five years.  
 
As previously stated, selectees should work with their vendors to spend EPA funds on eligible project 
expenses, as described in Section 3 of the Program Guide, as expeditiously as possible after receiving 
funds from EPA; however, if there is an extended period of time between receiving EPA funds and 
spending those funds, then selectees must adhere to the following requirements. Specifically, selectees 
must follow proper financial management practices to ensure that these funds are only used for eligible 
expenses and should keep these EPA funds separate from other funds the selectee might have for 
general expenses. If any interest is earned on EPA funds, then that interest must be returned to the 
federal government, in accordance with instructions to be provided by the EPA. If a selectee chooses to 
withdraw from the program, then they must return all awarded funds and any interest earned on those 
funds. The process for reimbursing funds, including any interest earned, will be initiated through 
completing the Close Out Form for the project as part of the withdrawal process; the EPA will provide 
additional information on the reimbursement process prior to Close Out Form submission.  





















Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      August 21, 2024 Agenda Item:  242.512 
Board Consideration of Approval of Revised 
GJUESD Facility Use Forms & Fees  
 

Presenter:            Alejandra Garibay Action Item: XX 
 Information Item:  

 
 
The district is consolidating the use of facilities from 6 pages to 3 pages. The original form had 
multiple pages of repetitive information. The new facilities use form is attached for review.  
 
The revisions include the following: 
• Food & Nutrition employee costs averaged to $40/hour. 
• Custodial employee costs averaged $45/hour. 
• Class II or Class III usage fees shall be invoiced before use and payable to GJUESD 48 

business hours before the event date.  
• Cancellations with less than twenty-four (24) hours' notice will be subject to a $80.00 

cancellation fee. The fee does not apply if the fee has not been incurred for use. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Effective 07/01/2024

GALT JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1018 C Street, Suite 210 
Galt, California 95632 

(209) 744-4545 fax (209) 744-4554

APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT FOR USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES 

User Group(s) 

Person in charge 

Email  Phone 

Alternate person in charge Phone 

School requested _____________________________Area/Room __Kitchen _________ 

Date(s) Requested ________________________________________ 

Time Requested _______________ ___   _____ (AM / PM) to  ___ __ _ _____ ______________ (AM / PM) 

Purpose of Use 

Equipment requested 

Admission charge _______________ Total estimated attendance 

Fee schedule, rules and regulations governing the use of school facilities are also 
attached. Please read carefully and sign in appropriate areas or agreement w ill not be 

processed. 

Principal’s approval _____________________________Date______________________________ 

Request approved by 
Date Chief Business Officer or Designee 

Remarks 

Class I / Class II / Class III       Charge $________________              District employee required:    Yes / No   

Job classification ______________District employee assigned ___________Hourly rate $ 

Total Cost: $____________________Payment Due__________________________Payment Received_______ 

DISTRICT USE ONLY 



-2- 

Fee Schedule 

Type 
of Use 

Fairsite 
Multi- 

Purpose 

Lake Canyon 
Multi-Purpose 

Marengo 
Ranch 

Multi-Purpose 

River Oaks 
Multi-Purpose 

Robert L. 
McCaffrey 

Multi-Purpose 
or Gymnasium 

Vernon E. 
Greer 
Multi- 

Purpose 

Valley Oaks 
Multi- 

Purpose 

Bright 
Future 

Learning 
Center 
(BFLC) 

Kitchen only 
Cafeteria 

employee must be 
present 

Class I 
(Free Use) 

-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- $40.00/hour 

Class II 
(Expense 

Coverage Use) 

$125.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $40.00/hr. $50.00 + 
$40.00/hour 

Class III (Semi 
Commercial or 

Individual) 

$150.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $45.00/hr. $60.00 + 
$40.00/hour 

In cases where a cafeteria or custodial employee is required to be present, the employee pay shall be $40.00/hour for Food 
& Nutrition and $45.00/hour for Custodial, with a minimum of two (2) hours to be paid by the using organization or 
individual. District employees shall not be obligated to donate their time. The rental fee, as per the schedule above, is 
payable to the District forty-eight (48) hours prior to the event date. Checks should be made payable to Galt Joint Union 
Elementary School District. 

Criteria for determining Type of Use 
CLASS I District activities, youth organizations and outside sports groups normally granted free use, Monday through 

Friday. Examples include, but are not limited to: Scout Troops, Blue Birds, Brownies, Camp Fire Girls, 4-H 
Clubs, AAU and other competitive leagues, community sports leagues, community clubs, etc. All school 
district activities of groups which are directly and primarily school-related. (Examples: PTA, Parent Clubs, 
Booster Clubs, Student Body Associations, Galt Parks and Recreation by agreement only).  Other organizations 
meeting for the benefit of youth, on approval of the Superintendent and/or the Board of Education. Weekend 
use will be charged at Class II rates including custodial costs. 

CLASS II Community-wide activities of a cultural or public interest nature where memberships are sold, admission fees 
are charged or donations solicited, and/or the purpose of which is to raise funds for charitable projects. 
Religious organizations for the conduction of religious services for temporary periods of time. Admission fees 
may, or may not, be charged. Weekend use will be charged a custodial cost in addition to rental fee. 

CLASS III Activities to which admission is charged and whose sole purpose is profit making, private or personal use by an 
individual or group. Weekend use and/or use when GJUESD employees are not scheduled to work will be 
charged a custodial cost in addition to rental fee. 

In accordance with the California Education Code and the policies of the Board of Education, the following 
provisions are set for the use of the Galt Joint Union Elementary School Districts facilities: 

1. User group(s) wishing to use school facilities should make a request on the Application and Agreement for Use of
School Facilities form at least three (3) weeks prior to the desired date(s). Exceptions shall be subject to approval of
the Chief Business Official (CBO). Cancellations of requests for the use of facilities must be made no less than twenty-
four (24) hours in advance. Cancellations with less than twenty-four (24) hours notice will be subject to a
cancellation fee of $80.00. Cancellation fee does not apply if fee has not been incurred for use. _______ (Initial)

2. The User group(s) shall provide valid Certificate of Liability Insurance naming the District, its Directors, Officers,
employees, agents and volunteers, as additional insured under its liability insurance or coverage agreement(s),
minimum $1,000,000 Liability/$2,000,000 Aggregate, including the 2nd page titled “Additional Insured Endorsement”
prior to the desired date(s). User is required to provide proof of insurance and additional insured endorsement prior to
use.

3. User group(s) agrees to hold the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District, its Governing Board, the individual
members thereof, and all District officers, agents, and employees free and harmless from any loss, damage liability,
cost or expense that may arise during or be caused in any way by such use or occupancy of school property. The
applicant agrees to furnish such liability or other insurance for the protection of the public and the District as may be



-3- 

required by the District. However, the applicant will not be held responsible for any loss or damage caused by any 
peril for which the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District is insured under their fire insurance contracts. 

4. Neither the User group(s), nor its employees, agents, guests nor invitees are authorized to use any other real property,
or physical improvements to real property, other than the Facilities covered by this Agreement. User group(s) shall be
responsible for any loss or damage other than normal wear and tear to the district premises, furniture or equipment,
because of occupancy of said premises and agrees to assume financial responsibility for all damages and any
additional custodial services, if required. The use of facilities shall not be granted when, in the opinion of the school
administration, there is a possibility of damage or injury to school property.

5. Use of school facilities and grounds shall be in accordance with all applicable federal and state regulations and
guidelines, and school board policy. District facilities or grounds will not be utilized by individuals, organizations,
agencies or others that engage in discriminatory practices as prohibited by federal law, state law or school board
policies.

6. Use of school facilities for religious or sectarian purposes is permitted by law for temporary use at cost (Ed. Code Sec.
40040).

7. Facilities must be under the supervision of a responsible adult over the age of twenty-one (21) at all times.
Enforcement of the rules is the responsibility of the adult in charge, who must be present during the entire period of
use. If the responsible party is changed (from the one listed on the request form) the District must be notified
accordingly prior to the activity.

8. Permission for the use of buildings and facilities may be revoked by the administration whenever the use may interfere
with school activities or whenever there has been a violation of regulations or abuse of buildings or facilities.

9. The User group(s) will return the facility to its original arrangement and condition before leaving.
10. Use of drugs, alcohol, and tobacco are not permitted on school premises at any time.
11. Gym shoes are required when using the gym floor for active recreation, with the exception of dancing. School

equipment will not be used unless authorized. Specialized equipment such as projectors, p.a. systems, etc., shall not be
used unless a District employee is available to operate or teach the User group(s) how to operate prior to use. The
District reserves the right to deny requested use of specialized equipment.

12. Nothing shall be offered for sale at meetings without prior approval.
13. Facilities will have limited availability from November to March.
14. All questions which are not covered by these regulations having to do with the use of the District’s facilities by outside

organizations shall be referred to the CBO.

================================================================================================ 
I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I have been duly authorized to request the use of Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 

facilities by the User group(s), and that the User group(s) will be responsible for any damage sustained to the school building, furniture 
or equipment accruing through the occupancy or use of said buildings; however, in the event said application is made in an individual 

capacity, then I will be personally responsible for any such damages. Use of school facilities and grounds shall be in accordance with all 
applicable federal and state regulations and guidelines, and school board policy. I will abide by the policy of the Board of Education of 

the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District, and that said User group(s) and I will conform to all applicable provisions of the 
constitution and laws of the State of California. User group(s) not following rules listed will be subject to loss of use. User group(s) 
that do not adhere to the twenty-four (24) hour cancellation policy will be subject to a cancellation fee of $80.00. Cancellation 

fee does not apply if fee has not been incurred for use.  ______(Initial) 
This Agreement has been duly reviewed and approved by the authorized agents of the District and User group(s), who warrant and 

represent that they have the power and authority to find their respective principals to the terms of this Agreement. 
================================================================================================ 

Dated: ________________________________  Dated: _________________________________ 

Name: ________________________________  Name: _________________________________ 

Signature: _____________________________  Signature: ______________________________ 

Title: _________________________________  Title: __________________________________ 
         As Authority Agent of the “User group(s)” As Authority Agent of the “District” 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      August 21, 2024 Agenda Item:  242.513 
Board Consideration of Approval to Change the 
April 16, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Date to 
April 23, 2025 
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
 Information Item:  

 
 
 Due to Spring Break, it is recommended to change the April 16, 2025 Regular Board meeting to 
 April 23, 2025. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      August 21, 2024 Agenda Item:  242.514 
Board Consideration to Nominate California 
School Boards Association (CSBA) Directors-at-
Large Asian/Pacific Islander and Hispanic 
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
 Information Item:  

 
 

Nominations for CSBA Directors-at-Large Asian/Pacific Islander and Hispanic are currently being 
accepted through October 4, 2024. Directors-at-Large play an important role at CSBA, helping 
shape policy and set organizational direction. 
 
A CSBA member board must make nominations for Directors-at-Large, and the nominee must 
be a board member from a CSBA member district or county office of education. 
 
The elections will occur at CSBA’s Delegate Assembly meeting on December 4, 2024 at the 
Association’s Annual Education Conference. All newly elected Directors should plan to attend a 
required orientation in Anaheim following the 3rd General Session at the Annual Education 
Conference on December 7, 2024. 
 
Attachment: FAQ: Election to CSBA’s Board of Directors for the 2024-2026 term as a Director-at-Large 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Frequently Asked Questions: Election to CSBA’s Board of 
Directors for 2024-2026 term as a Director-at-Large 

 
How many Directors-at-Large are there? There are 5 Directors-at-Large – African American, 
American Indian, Asian/Pacific Islander, Hispanic, and County. In addition, the Board includes 4 
officers, 21 Regional Directors, and 1 statewide Director that represents the county offices of education. 
 
Which Director-at-Large positions are up for election? In even-numbered years, the Directors-at-
Large, Asian/Pacific Islander and Hispanic are elected.  In odd-numbered years, Directors-at-Large, 
African American, American, and County. 

 
Who can run for Directors-at-Large? A nominee must be a board member from a CSBA-member 
district or county board of education. The Director-at-Large, County must be from a CSBA-member 
county board of education. Please note that Standing Rule 108 prohibits simultaneous service on state-
wide boards that represent the education community such as those that represent labor, parents, 
special interests, or other areas of the school governance community and Standing Rule 109 prohibits 
CSBA employees from serving on the Board of Directors. 
 
Who can nominate the Directors-at-Large? Any district or county office of education whose board is 
a member of CSBA.   
 
When are nominations due? Nomination forms are due from member boards on Friday, October 4, 
2024 by 11:59 p.m. via online submission or emailed to nominations@csba.org. A valid nomination 
includes the following: 
 Nomination form:  A completed, signed, and dated nomination form. Member boards must 

secure permission before placing a name into nomination.   
 
When are candidate materials due? Candidate materials are due from Director-at-Large nominees on 
Friday, October 18, 2024 by 11:59 p.m. via online submission or emailed to nominations@csba.org. A 
completed candidate packet includes: 
 Candidate Form:  A signed and dated candidate form completed by the nominee. 
 Two letters of recommendation:  A one page, single-sided letter addressed to CSBA 

President Albert Gonzalez emailed to nominations@csba.org. Recommendation letters must be 
from: 

1) A CSBA member district or county board of education - if letter is signed by the 
Superintendent, it must state in the letter “on behalf of the board.”  

2) An individual board member from a CSBA member district or county board of education; or  
3) Another association of school or county board of education member 

 An optional, one-page résumé from the nominee may be submitted to nominations@csba.org.  
 
When and where are the elections? Wednesday, December 4, 2024 at CSBA’s Delegate Assembly 
meeting at the Anaheim Marriott.  

mailto:nominations@csba.org
mailto:nominations@csba.org
mailto:nominations@csba.org
mailto:nominations@csba.org


  

 
How long does a Director-at-Large serve on the Board? All Directors, including Directors-at-Large, 
serve two-year terms and take office immediately upon the close of the Association’s Annual Education 
Conference and Trade Show. Directors-at-Large may run for re-election if they choose to, there are no 
term limits.  
 
When and where are the required meetings for CSBA Directors? Directors-at-Large are required to 
attend the Board of Directors meetings and the Delegate Assembly meetings. There are five Board 
meetings each year held over a weekend, except for the meetings in May and late November/early 
December when the meetings are held on a single day. The meeting in late January/early February 
takes place at a determined offsite location while the meetings in late March/early April and late 
September/early October typically take place at the CSBA office in West Sacramento. The May 
meeting takes place in Sacramento the day before the Delegate Assembly meeting. In 2025, the 
December meeting will take place in Sacramento, the day before the Delegate Assembly meeting, 
followed by the Annual Education Conference.  There are two Delegate Assembly meetings scheduled, 
as noted, in May and late November/early December in the host city of the Association’s Annual 
Education Conference. 
 
What do Directors do? Members of the Board of Directors establish the vision, mission, and goals 
for the Association, ensure that Association activities and programs remain focused on those goals and 
the issues identified in the Policy Platform. They provide advocacy on behalf of children, public 
education, local boards, and the Association; serve on committees, councils, and task forces; and 
receive reports and updates on major programs consistent with the Vision, Mission, and Strategic Goals 
of the Association. They also provide two-way communication with Delegate Assembly members and 
local board members and support and participate in the Association’s activities and events. 
 
In addition, the Board has corporate duties to adopt the Association’s budget; adopt and amend the 
Association’s Standing Rules; receive reports on corporate operations; approve the hiring and terms of 
employment of the CEO & Executive Director, upon recommendation of the Executive Committee; 
comment annually on the performance, and act on the contract of the CEO & Executive Director, upon 
recommendation of the Executive Committee; and abide by the Code of Ethics, Conflict of Interest 
Policy, and Whistleblower Policy, as adopted by the Board of Directors.  
 
For questions or additional information, please contact CSBA’s Executive Office at 
nominations@csba.org.07/2024 
 

mailto:nominations@csba.org


1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 
209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
Meeting Date: August 21, 2024 Agenda Item: 242.515 

First Reading of Board Policies 

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item: 
Kuljeet Nijjar Information Item: XX

The following Board Policies are presented for a first reading.

GUIDE SHEET 
1. BP 1260 Educational Foundation
2. BP 2121 Superintendent’s Contract
3. BP 4127/4227/4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches
4. AR 4127/4227/4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches
5. BP 5113 Absences and Excuses
6. AR 5113 Absences and Excuses
7. BP 5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications
8. BP 6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services
9. BP 6177 Summer Learning Programs
10. BP 7214 General Obligation Bonds
11. AR 7214 General Obligation Bonds

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 



Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education 
should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly. 

CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
June 2024 

 

1. Board Policy 1260 - Educational Foundation (GJUESD does not have a current policy) 
Policy updated to reflect Proposition 28 Arts and Music in Schools Funding Guarantee and 
Accountability Act and corresponding California Department of Education accounting guidance 
regarding how districts can demonstrate state funds are used to supplement not supplant existing 
program funds. Additionally, policy updated to reflect that the district may not release student 
records or other personally identifiable student information except with parental consent or as 
required by law or district policy, and that student directory information may be released when 
appropriate. 

2. Board Policy 2121 - Superintendent's Contract 
Policy updated to delete a portion of the language related to limitations for discussing superintendent 
salary or other compensation in closed session as this material exists in other policy materials. 
Additionally, policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 494, 2023) prohibiting a governing board from 
taking action to terminate a superintendent under specified conditions. 

 
3. Board Policy 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches (all are the same) 

Policy updated to acknowledge that well-trained coaches are vital to the success of the experience of 
students in sports and interscholastic athletic activities, to include a definition of "interscholastic 
athletic activities," and to reference NEW LAW (AB 245, 2023) which requires training in the use of an 
automated external defibrillator. 

4. Administrative Regulation 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches (all are the same) 
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 245, 2023) which requires athletic team coaches to 
complete training in the use of an automated external defibrillator (AED), and the recognition of 
the signs of heat illness and cardiac arrest. Additionally, regulation updated to reference NEW LAW 
(AB 1467, 2023) which requires districts, beginning January 1, 2027, to provide student athletes with 
access to an AED during any official practice or match, which, when medical circumstances warrant its 
use, is administered by a medical professional, coach, or other designated person who holds AED 
certification. In addition, regulation updated to reference NEW LAW (AB 1653, 2023) which requires 
the California Interscholastic Federation and the California Department of Education to develop 
guidelines, procedures, and safety standards for the prevention and management of exertional heat 
illness. 
 

5. Board Policy 5113 - Absences and Excuses 
Policy updated to reference CSBA's new governance brief, "Seize the Data: Using Chronic Absence 
Data to Drive Student Engagement". Additionally, policy updated to clarify that absence from school is 
required to be excused when the absence is due to work in the entertainment or allied industry, as 
permitted by law. In addition, policy updated to add the requirement for teachers to provide identical 
or equivalent assignments and tests when a student has an excused absence. 



6. Administrative Regulation 5113 - Absences and Excuses 
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 350, 2023) which requires that (1) a student's absence be 
excused for up to five days when the absence is for the purpose of attending funeral services or 
grieving the death of a student's immediate family, or of a person who is determined by the student's 
parent/guardian to be in such close association with the student as to be considered the student's 
immediate family, and (2) a student's absence be excused for up to three days when the absence is for 
the purpose of accessing victim or grief support services or for participating in safety planning as it 
relates to the death of a student's immediate family member, or of a person who is determined by the 
student's parent/guardian to be in such close association with the student as to be considered the 
student's immediate family. Additionally, regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1503, 2023) 
which provides that attendance at a religious retreat may be excused for no more than one school day 
each semester. In addition, regulation updated to generalize the means of communication from 
parents/guardians to verify a student absence to keep the language more timeless. Policy also 
updated for closer alignment with law, clarity, and gender neutrality. 

 
7. Board Policy 5145.6 - Parent/Guardian Notifications 

Policy updated to clarify the importance of effective communication from the district and/or school to 
families, and that a parent/guardian's signature acknowledging receipt of the annual notifications is 
not required. Additionally, policy updated to delete a portion of the material related to how 
notifications are presented, due to redundancy. 

 
8. Board Policy 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 278, 2023) which establishes the Dream Resource Grant 
Program with the goal of creating Dream Resource Centers at schools that serve students in grades 9-
12, and NEW LAW (SB 223, 2023) which provides flexibility for pupil personnel services holders to 
receive authorization to provide child welfare and attendance services by either completing a 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC)-approved program of supervised field experience, or a 
CTC-approved program of professional preparation offered by a local educational agency. 
Additionally, policy updated to clarify that 
(1) guidance counseling regarding school programs and career, vocational, or higher education 
opportunities may not be differentiated based on any protected category specified in law or board 
policy, and that (2) the district may not use testing or other materials that permit or require 
impermissible or unlawful differential treatment of students, unless such different materials cover the 
same occupations and interest areas and the use of such materials is essential to the elimination of 
bias and discrimination. In addition, policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1173, 2023) which 
requires a district that serves students in any of grades 9-12 that is planning to hold a college or career 
fair to notify each community college district that has overlapping jurisdiction of the date, time, and 
location of the fair, and provide an opportunity for the community college district to participate. 
Policy also updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 665, 2023) which aligns a section of the Family Code with 
a related Health and Safety Code section which allows a minor age 12 or older to consent to 
outpatient mental health counseling or treatment services without parent/guardian consent if, in the 
opinion of a school psychologist or other professional person, the minor is mature enough to 
participate intelligently in the services, without having to establish that the minor would present a 
danger of serious physical or mental harm to themself or others without the mental counseling or 
treatment services or that the minor is an alleged victim of incest or child abuse; however the child's 
parent/guardian is required to be involved unless the professional person determines after consulting 
with the minor that it would be inappropriate. Policy also updated to delete the requirement for school 
counselors to assist in the development of the comprehensive safety plan since this is not required by 



law, but maintained the requirement for school counselors to assist in the development of the disaster 
preparedness plan, which is part of the comprehensive safety plan. 

 
9. Board Policy 6177 - Summer Learning Programs 

Policy updated to incorporate concepts related to learning recovery, including that the district will 
provide students with supplemental instruction and support in a tiered framework that bases 
universal, targeted, and intensive supports on students' needs for academic, social-emotional, and 
other integrated student supports through a program of engaging learning experiences in a positive 
school climate. Policy also updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 723, 2023) and NEW LAW (AB 373, 2023) 
which require a district to grant priority access for intersession programs to a foster youth and/or to a 
student experiencing homelessness, and that if during an intersession period the student will be 
moving, the student's educational rights holder will determine which school the student will attend 
for the intersession period. Additionally, policy updated to add that a district is required to provide 
any student who attends a school that is not operating an expanded learning opportunity (ELO) 
program transportation to attend at a location that is providing an ELO program and to return to the 
original location or another location that is established by the district. 

 
10. Board Policy 7214 - General Obligation Bonds 

Policy updated for clarity and organization, including that the Governing Board may direct the 
Superintendent to explore the possibility of a bond measure. 
 

11. Administrative Regulation 7214 - General Obligation Bonds 
Regulation updated to expand and more closely align with code language the information related to 
ballot materials, including that at least 88 days prior to the election the Superintendent must deliver 
applicable ballot materials to the officer conducting the election. Additionally, regulation updated to 
add new section "Ballot Materials" which includes (1) that the ballot question may not exceed 75 
words, (2) that the ballot materials include a brief statement of the measure setting forth the amount 
of the bonds to be voted on, the maximum rate of interest, and the purposes for which the proceeds 
of the sale of the bonds are to be used, (3) for bond measures that require a 55 percent majority vote, 
a statement that the Board will appoint a citizens' oversight committee, (4) for projects that require 
state matching funds, a statement advising voters that the project is subject to the approval of state 
matching funds, and (4) that arguments in support of or in opposition to a bond measure are 
submitted in accordance with law, and to reflect NEW LAW (SB 798, 2023) which requires the 
inclusion of the tax rate per $100,000 of assessed valuation on all property to be taxed to fund a bond 
measure. In addition, regulation updated to (1) reflect that the district will provide the citizens' 
oversight committee with responses to any and all findings, recommendations, and concerns 
addressed in the annual independent financial and performance audits within three months of 
receiving the audits, and (2) to include post-issuance reporting requirements. 

 



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Policy 1260: Educational Foundation Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Revised Date: Pending 

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of community support of district programs, 
including voluntary financial contributions, to assist the district in achieving its goals for student 
learning. 

The Board desires to work cooperatively with the educational foundation in determining the 
purposes for which funds may be used to meet the changing needs of the district and its students. 
The Board recognizes that an educational foundation is a separate legal entity, independent of the 
district. However, the foundation is encouraged to provide regular reports to the Board on the 
status of its work and to communicate ways that the district can help support the foundation's 
activities. 

With the consent of the Superintendent or designee, the educational foundation, as appropriate, 
may use the district's name, a school's name, a school team's name, or any logo attributable to a 
school or the district. 

Student records or other personally identifiable student information shall not be released except 
with parental consent or as required by law or district policy. Student directory information may be 
released when appropriate. 

The Board supports foundation allocations that serve all district schools equitably. 

1.



Policy 1260: Educational FoundationPolicy 1260: Educational Foundation Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 02/27/2008

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of community support of district programs, including voluntary
financial contributions, to assist the district in achieving its goals for student learning.

The Board desires to work cooperatively with the educational foundation in determining the purposes for which
funds may be used to meet the changing needs of the district and its students. The Board recognizes that an
educational foundation is a separate legal entity, independent of the district. However, the foundation is encouraged
to provide regular reports to the Board on the status of its work and to communicate ways that the district can help
support the foundation's activities.

With the consent of the Superintendent or designee, the educational foundation, as appropriate, may use the
district's name, a school's name, a school team's name, or any logo attributable to a school or the district.

The Board supports foundation allocations that serve all district schools equitably.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Policy 2121: Superintendent's Contract Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Revised Date: Pending 

The Governing Board believes that the Superintendent's employment contract should outline the 
framework through which the Board and Superintendent will work together as a governance team 
to achieve district goals and objectives. When approving the Superintendent's employment 
contract, the Board shall consider the value of stability in district administration, the best use of 
district resources, and the Board's duty to ensure accountability to the public for the performance 
of the district's schools. 

The contract shall be reviewed by district legal counsel and may include the following: 

1. Term of the contract, which shall be for no more than four years pursuant to Education
Code 35031

2. Length of the work year and hours of work

3. Salary, health and welfare benefits, and other compensation for the position, including a
statement that any subsequent increase in the Superintendent's salary shall be at the sole
discretion of the Board

4. Reimbursement of work-related expenses, including mileage reimbursement, consistent
with Board policies, regulations, and guidelines applicable to other professional
administrative staff

The contract may also address payment for professional dues and activities, the district's
provision of cell phones or other technological devices, and the use of a personal vehicle.

5. Vacation, illness and injury leave, and personal leaves

6. Professional development

7. General duties and responsibilities of the position

8. Criteria, process, and procedure for annual evaluation of the Superintendent

9. A statement that there shall be no automatic renewal or extension of the contract, although
the Board may enter into a new contract with the Superintendent prior to the expiration of
the existing contract

10. Timeline for providing written notice to the Superintendent if the Board does not wish to
enter into a new contract, which shall be at least 45 calendar days in advance of the
expiration of the term of the contract pursuant to Education Code 35031, and the
responsibility of the Superintendent to remind the Board in writing and in a timely manner

2.



of the requirement to give notice 

11. Conditions and process for termination of the contract, including the maximum cash
settlement that the Superintendent may receive if the contract is terminated prior to its
expiration date

12. Matters related to liability and indemnification against demands, claims, suits, actions, and
legal proceedings brought against the Superintendent in the Superintendent's official
capacity in the performance of employment-related duties

The Board may deliberate about terms of the contract in closed session at a regular meeting. 
However, discussions regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other compensation may occur in 
the closed session of a regular meeting only between the Board and its designated 
representative(s), as permitted under Government Code 54957.6. Such deliberations shall not be 
held during a special meeting.  (Government Code 54956, 54957, 54957.6) 

Terms of the contract shall remain confidential until the approval process commences. 

The Board shall take final action on the Superintendent's contract during an open session of a 
regularly scheduled Board meeting, and that action shall be reflected in the Board's minutes. At 
that meeting, prior to taking action, the Board shall orally report a summary of the 
recommendation for the final action on the Superintendent's salary or compensation in the form of 
fringe benefits.  (Government Code 3511.1, 53262, 54953) 

Copies of the contract and other public records created or received in the process of developing 
the recommendation related to the Superintendent's salary, benefits, and other compensation shall 
be available to the public upon request.  (Government Code 53262, 54953) 

Termination of Contract 

Prior to the expiration of the contract, the Board may terminate the Superintendent's employment 
contract in accordance with law and applicable contract provisions. 

In such an event, the maximum cash settlement that the Superintendent may receive upon 
termination of the contract shall not exceed the Superintendent's monthly salary multiplied by the 
number of months left on the contract or the Superintendent's monthly salary multiplied by 12, 
whichever is less.  (Government Code 53260) 

The cash settlement shall not include any noncash items other than health benefits, which may be 
continued for the same duration of time as covered in the settlement or until the Superintendent 
finds other employment, whichever occurs first.  (Government Code 53260, 53261) 

However, when the termination of the Superintendent's contract is based upon the Board's belief 
and subsequent confirmation through an independent audit that the Superintendent has engaged 
in fraud, misappropriation of funds, or other illegal fiscal practices, no cash or noncash settlement 
of any amount shall be provided.  (Government Code 53260) 



In addition, if the Superintendent is convicted of a crime involving an abuse of office or position, 
the Superintendent shall reimburse the district for payments received as paid leave salary pending 
investigation or as cash settlement upon termination, and for any funds expended by the district in 
defending the Superintendent against a crime involving the Superintendent's office or 
position.  (Government Code 53243-53243.4, 53260) 

The Board shall not take action to terminate the Superintendent without cause at a special or 
emergency meeting of the Board.  (Education Code 35150) 

Additionally, the Board shall not take action to terminate the Superintendent without cause or 
within 30 days after the first convening of the Board after an election at which one or more Board 
members are elected or recalled.  (Education Code 35150) 

However, the Board may take action to terminate the Superintendent without cause at a regular 
meeting during any month in which a regular meeting of the Board is not scheduled.  (Education 
Code 35150)  



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Policy 2121: Superintendent's Contract Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Reviewed Date: 02/27/2008 

In approving employment contracts with the Superintendent, the Governing Board wishes to 
encourage the Superintendent's long-term commitment to the district and community while 
carefully considering the financial and legal implications of the contract in order to protect the 
district from any potentially adverse obligations. 

The Board shall designate a representative to negotiate with the Superintendent on its behalf and 
shall consult legal counsel to draft the contract document.  

The Board shall deliberate in closed session about the terms of the contract. (Government Code 
54957) 

Terms of the contract shall remain confidential until the ratification process commences. 

The Board shall ratify the Superintendent's contract in an open meeting, which shall be reflected in 
the Board's minutes. Copies of the contract shall be available to the public upon request. 
(Government Code 53262) 

The contract shall include, but not be limited to, provisions for salary and benefits, annual 
evaluations, term of the contract, and conditions for termination of the contract. The contract 
should also include general responsibilities and duties of the Superintendent. 

The term of the contract shall be for no more than four years. (Education Code 35031) 

During the term of the contract, the Board may reemploy the Superintendent on those terms and 
conditions mutually agreed upon by the Board and Superintendent. (Education Code 35031) 

The Superintendent's contract shall be extended only by Board action and subsequent to a 
satisfactory evaluation of the Superintendent's performance. 

In the event that the Board determines not to reemploy the Superintendent, the Board shall 
provide written notice to the Superintendent at least 45 days in advance of the expiration of the 
term of the contract. (Education Code 35031) 

The Superintendent's contract shall include a provision specifying the maximum cash settlement 
that the Superintendent may receive upon termination of the contract. However, if the unexpired 
term of the contract is greater than 18 months, the maximum cash settlement shall be no more 
than the Superintendent's monthly salary multiplied by 18. The cash settlement shall not include 
any noncash items other than health benefits, which may be continued for the unexpired term of 
the contract up to 18 months or until the Superintendent finds other employment, whichever 
occurs first. (Government Code 53260, 53261) 



If the Board terminates the Superintendent's contract upon its belief and subsequent confirmation 
pursuant to an independent audit that the Superintendent has engaged in fraud, misappropriation 
of funds, or other illegal practices, the maximum settlement shall be within the limits prescribed by 
law, as determined by an administrative law judge. (Government Code 53260) 



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Policy 4127/4227/4327: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Revised Date: Pending 

The Governing Board acknowledges that well-trained coaches are vital to the success of the 
experience of students in sports and interscholastic athletic activities, and therefore desires to 
employ highly qualified coaches for the district's interscholastic athletic activities in order to 
enhance the knowledge, skills, motivation, and safety of participating students.   

The Superintendent or designee may hire a certificated or noncertificated employee, other than a 
substitute employee, to supervise or instruct interscholastic athletic activities as a temporary 
employee in a limited assignment capacity. Interscholastic athletic activities include any activities in 
which student teams participate in interscholastic competition.  (5 CCR 5590) 

When hiring a person to fill a position as a temporary athletic activity team coach, the position 
shall first be made available to qualified certificated teachers currently employed by the 
district.  (Education Code 44919) 

All coaches shall be subject to applicable law, Board policies, administrative regulations, and 
California Interscholastic Federation bylaws and codes of ethical conduct. 

Noncertificated coaches shall have no authority to assign grades to students.  (5 CCR 5591) 

Qualifications and Training 

The Superintendent or designee shall establish qualification criteria for all athletic coaches in 
accordance with law and district standards. These criteria shall ensure that coaches possess an 
appropriate level of competence, knowledge, and skill. 

Any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with students in a district-sponsored 
interscholastic athletic activity shall, prior to beginning the individual’s duties, submit to the 
Superintendent or designee either an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate issued by the 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing or a Department of Justice and Federal Bureau of 
Investigation criminal background clearance.  (Education Code 49024) 

Following the selection of a temporary athletic team coach, the Superintendent or designee shall 
certify to the Board, at the next regular Board meeting or within 30 days, whichever is sooner, that 
the coach meets the qualifications and competencies required by 5 CCR 5593. By April 1 of each 
year, the Board shall certify to the State Board of Education that the provisions of 5 CCR 5593 have 
been met.  (5 CCR 5594) 

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the 
extent to which the district's coaches have completed the trainings required by law, including 
those required pursuant to Education Code 33479.6, 35179.1, and 49032, and by district policy. 

3.



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Policy 4127/4227/4327: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Reviewed Date: 02/27/2008 

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of qualified temporary athletic team coaches to 
the district's sports program and to the success of students in sports and interscholastic athletic 
activities. 

The Superintendent or designee shall establish qualification criteria for all athletic coaches in 
accordance with law and with district standards and priorities. These criteria shall ensure that all 
coaches possess an appropriate level of competence, knowledge, and skill. 

Any certificated teacher employed by the district who applies for a position as a temporary athletic 
team coach and who satisfies the qualification criteria established for the position shall first be 
offered the position. (Education Code 44919) 

By December 31, 2008, all district coaches, including volunteer coaches, shall have completed a 
coaching education program that meets the standards developed by the California Interscholastic 
Federation (CIF). Coaches shall bear the expense of the program. (Education Code 49032) 

All coaches shall be subject to Board policy and administrative regulation, as well as CIF bylaws and 
codes of ethical conduct. 

Volunteer Coaches 

Volunteer athletic team coaches shall meet all the qualification criteria required of temporary 
athletic team coaches employed by the district. 



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Regulation 4127/4227/4327: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Revised Date: Pending 

Qualifications 

Minimum qualifications for temporary athletic team coaches shall include, but are not necessarily 
limited to, competencies in the following areas:  (5 CCR 5593)  

1. Care and prevention of athletic injuries, basic sports injury first aid, and emergency
procedures, as evidenced by one or more of the following:

a. Completion of a college-level course in the care and prevention of athletic injuries
and possession of a valid cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) card

b. A valid sports injury certificate or first aid card, and a valid CPR card

c. A valid Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) I or II card

d. A valid trainer's certification issued by the National or California Athletic Trainers'
Association (NATA/CATA)

e. Possession of both valid CPR and first aid cards and practical experience under the
supervision of an athletic coach or trainer or experience assisting in team athletic
training and conditioning

2. Coaching theory and techniques in the sport or game being coached, as evidenced by one
or more of the following:

a. Completion of a college course in coaching theory and techniques

b. Completion of in-service programs arranged by a school district or county office of
education

c. Prior service as a student coach or assistant athletic coach in the sport or game
being coached

d. Prior coaching in community youth athletic programs in the sport being coached

e. Prior participation in organized competitive athletics at the high school level or
above in the sport being coached

3. Knowledge of the rules and regulations pertaining to the sport or game being coached, the
league rules, and, at the high school level, regulations of the California Interscholastic

4.



Federation (CIF) 

4. Knowledge of child or adolescent psychology, as appropriate, as it relates to sport
participation, as evidenced by one or more of the following:

a. Completion of a college-level course in child psychology for elementary school
positions and adolescent or sports psychology for secondary school positions

b. Completion of a seminar or workshop on human growth and development of youth

c. Prior active involvement with youth in school or community sports program

The Superintendent or designee may waive competency requirements for persons enrolled in 
appropriate training courses leading to acquisition of the competency, provided such persons 
serve under the direct supervision of a fully qualified coach until the competencies are met.  (5 CCR 
5593) 

Volunteers who supervise or direct an athletic program shall meet the qualification criteria 
specified in 5 CCR 5593 required for temporary athletic team coaches employed by the district. 
Any volunteer who does not meet such criteria shall serve only under the supervision of a fully 
qualified coach and shall not be given charge of an athletic program. 

Additional Qualifications of Noncertificated Personnel and Volunteers 

In addition to the qualifications listed above, any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned 
as a temporary athletic team coach shall:  (5 CCR 5592)  

1. Be free from tuberculosis and any other contagious disease that would prohibit certificated
teachers from teaching, as verified by a written statement, renewable every four years, from
a licensed physician or other person approved by the district

2. Not have been convicted of any offense referred to in Education Code 44010, 44011, or
44424, or any offense involving moral turpitude or evidencing unfitness to associate with
children

Any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned as a temporary athletic team coach shall 
obtain an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate or a criminal background check in accordance 
with Board policy.   (Education Code 49024) 

Training 

Each employee or volunteer high school athletic team coach shall complete, at the individual's 
expense, a coaching education program that meets the standards developed by CIF and includes, 
but is not limited to, training in regard to sport psychology, sport pedagogy, sport physiology, 
sport management, statewide and school regulations, CPR, including certification, use of an 
automated external defibrillator (AED), and first aid that includes, but is not limited to, training in 
recognizing the signs, symptoms, and appropriate response to concussions, heat illness, and 



cardiac arrest. A high school coach who has completed the education program in another 
California school district shall be deemed to have met the requirement for this district. An 
individual who has not completed the education program may be assigned as a coach for no 
longer than one season of interscholastic competition.  (Education Code 35179.1, 49032) 

In addition, prior to coaching an athletic activity and every two years thereafter, athletic coaches 
shall complete an approved training course on the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac 
arrest.  (Education Code 33479.2, 33479.6, 33479.7) 

Code of Ethical Conduct 

Employees providing supervisory or instructional services in interscholastic athletic activities 
shall:  (5 CCR 5596)  

1. Show respect for players, officials, and other coaches

2. Respect the integrity and judgment of game officials

3. Establish and model fair play, sportsmanship, and proper conduct

4. Establish player safety and welfare as the highest priority

5. Provide proper supervision of students at all times

6. Use discretion when providing constructive criticism and when reprimanding players

7. Maintain consistency in requiring all players to adhere to the established rules and
standards of the game

8. Properly instruct players in the safe use of equipment

9. Avoid exerting undue influence on a student's decision to enroll in an athletic program at
any public or private postsecondary educational institution

10. Avoid exerting undue influence on students to take lighter academic course(s) in order to
be eligible to participate in athletics

11. Avoid suggesting, providing, or encouraging any athlete to use nonprescription drugs,
anabolic steroids, or any substance to increase physical development or performance that
is not approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, U.S. Surgeon General, or the
American Medical Association

12. Avoid recruitment of athletes from other schools

13. Follow the rules of behavior and the procedures for crowd control as established by the
district and the league in which the district participates



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Regulation 4127/4227/4327: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Reviewed Date: 02/27/2008 

At the first regular Governing Board meeting or within 30 days after selection of a temporary 
athletic team coach, whichever is sooner, the Superintendent or designee shall certify to the Board 
that all temporary athletic team coaches meet the qualifications and competencies required by law. 
(5 CCR 5594) 

Upon the recommendation of the Superintendent or designee, the Board shall certify to the State 
Board of Education, by April 1 of each year, that the district conforms with state requirements 
governing the employment of temporary athletic team coaches. (5 CCR 5594) 

Competencies 

The Superintendent or designee shall determine whether a temporary athletic team coach is 
knowledgeable and competent in the areas of: (5 CCR 5593) 

1. Care and prevention of athletic injuries, basic sports injury first aid, and emergency
procedures

The Superintendent or designee shall establish qualifications in this competency area as
evidenced by one or more of the following:

a. Completion of a college-level course in the care and prevention of athletic injuries
and possession of a valid cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) card

b. A valid sports injury certificate or first aid card, and a valid cardiopulmonary
resuscitation (CPR) card

c. A valid Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) I or II card

d. A valid trainer's certification issued by the National or California Athletic Trainers'
Association (NATA/CATA)

e. Practical experience under the supervision of an athletic coach or trainer or
experience assisting in team athletic training and conditioning and both valid CPR
and first aid cards

2. Coaching techniques

The Superintendent or designee shall establish qualifications in coaching theory and
techniques in the sport or game being coached as evidenced by one or more of the
following:



a. Completion of a college course in coaching theory and techniques

b. Completion of inservice programs arranged by a school district or county office of
education

c. Prior service as a student coach or assistant athletic coach in the sport or game
being coached

d. Prior coaching in community youth athletic programs in the sport being coached

e. Prior participation in organized competitive athletics at high school level or above in
the sport being coached

3. Rules and regulations in the athletic activity being coached

The Superintendent or designee shall establish knowledge of the rules and regulations
pertaining to the sport or game being coached, the league rules and, at the high school
level, regulations of the California Interscholastic Federation.

4. Child or adolescent psychology, whichever is appropriate to the grade level of the involved
activity

The Superintendent or designee shall establish competency in knowledge of child or
adolescent psychology as it relates to sport participation as evidenced by one or more of
the following:

a. Completion of a college-level course in child psychology for elementary school
positions and adolescent or sports psychology for secondary school positions

b. Completion of a seminar or workshop on human growth and development of youth

c. Prior active involvement with youth in school or community sports program

The Superintendent or designee may waive competency requirements for persons enrolled in 
appropriate training courses leading to acquisition of the competency, provided such persons 
serve under the direct supervision of a fully qualified coach until the competencies are met. (5 CCR 
5593) 

Additional Competencies for Noncertificated Personnel 

In addition to the competencies listed above, the Superintendent or designee shall determine that 
a noncertificated person employed as a temporary athletic team coach: (5 CCR 5592) 

1. Has not been convicted of any offense referred to in Education Code 44010, 44011 or
44424, or any offense involving moral turpitude or evidencing unfitness to associate with
children.



2. Is free from tuberculosis and any other contagious disease that would prohibit certificated
teachers from teaching, as verified by a written statement, renewable every four years, from
a licensed physician or other person approved by the district.

Noncertificated coaches have no authority to give grades to students. (5 CCR 5591) 

Code of Ethical Conduct 

Employees providing supervisory or instructional services in interscholastic athletic programs and 
activities shall: (5 CCR 5596) 

1. Show respect for players, officials and other coaches

2. Respect the integrity and judgment of game officials

3. Establish and model fair play, sportsmanship and proper conduct

4. Establish player safety and welfare as the highest priority

5. Provide proper supervision of students at all times

6. Use discretion when providing constructive criticism and when reprimanding players

7. Maintain consistency in requiring all players to adhere to the established rules and
standards of the game

8. Properly instruct players in the safe use of equipment

9. Avoid exerting undue influence on a student's decision to enroll in an athletic program at
any public or private postsecondary educational institution

10. Avoid exerting undue influence on students to take lighter academic course(s) in order to
be eligible to participate in athletics

11. Avoid suggesting, providing or encouraging any athlete to use nonprescriptive drugs,
anabolic steroids or any substance to increase physical development or performance that is
not approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, U.S. Surgeon General or the
American Medical Association

12. Avoid recruitment of athletes from other schools

13. Follow the rules of behavior and the procedures for crowd control as established by the
Board and the league in which the district participates



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Policy 5113: Absences And Excuses Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Revised Date: Pending 

The Governing Board believes that regular attendance plays an important role in student 
achievement. The Board shall work with parents/guardians and students to ensure their 
compliance with all state attendance laws and may use appropriate legal means to correct 
problems of chronic absence or truancy. 

In accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation, absence from school shall be 
excused only for health reasons, family emergencies, and justifiable personal reasons as specified 
in Education Code 48205, and work in the entertainment or allied industry as permitted pursuant 
to Education Code 48225.5. 

When a student's absence from school is excused, the student's teacher shall determine identical 
or reasonably equivalent assignments and tests to those missed during the absence which the 
student shall be permitted to complete for full credit within a reasonable amount of time as 
determined by the teacher.  (Education Code 48205, 48225.5) 

Student absence for religious instruction or participation in religious exercises away from school 
property may be considered excused subject to law and administrative regulation.  (Education 
Code 46014) 

Inasmuch as school attendance and class participation are integral to students' learning 
experiences, parents/guardians and students shall be encouraged to schedule medical and other 
appointments during non-school hours. 

Students shall not be absent from school without their parents/guardians' knowledge or consent, 
except in cases of medical emergency or, as authorized pursuant to Education Code 46010.1, for a 
confidential medical appointment. 

The Board shall, by resolution entered into its minutes, approve reasonable methods that may be 
used to verify student absences due to illness or quarantine.  (5 CCR 421)  

5.



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Policy 5113: Absences And Excuses Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Revised Date: 06/21/2023 | Last Reviewed Date: 
06/21/2023 

The Governing Board believes that regular attendance plays an important role in student 
achievement. The Board shall work with parents/guardians and students to ensure their 
compliance with all state attendance laws and may use appropriate legal means to correct 
problems of chronic absence or truancy. 

Absence from school shall be excused only for health reasons, family emergencies, and justifiable 
personal reasons, as permitted by law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.  (Education 
Code 48205) 

Student absence for religious instruction or participation in religious exercises away from school 
property may be considered excused subject to law and administrative regulation.  (Education 
Code 46014) 

Inasmuch as school attendance and class participation are integral to students' learning 
experiences, parents/guardians and students shall be encouraged to schedule medical and other 
appointments during non-school hours. 

Students shall not be absent from school without their parents/guardians' knowledge or consent, 
except in cases of medical emergency or, as authorized pursuant to Education Code 46010.1, for a 
confidential medical appointment. 

The Board shall, by resolution entered into its minutes, approve reasonable methods that may be 
used to verify student absences due to illness or quarantine.  (5 CCR 421)  



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Regulation 5113: Absences And Excuses Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Revised Date: Pending 

Excused Absences 

Subject to any applicable limitation, condition, or other requirement specified in law, a student's 
absence shall be excused for any of the following reasons:  

1. Personal illness, including absence for the benefit of the student's mental or behavioral
health  (Education Code 48205)

2. Quarantine under the direction of a county or city health officer  (Education Code 48205)

3. Medical, dental, optometrical, or chiropractic service or appointment  (Education Code
48205)

4. Attendance at funeral services for or grieving the death of a member of the student's
immediate family or, as determined by the student's parent/guardian, a person so closely
associated with the student as to be considered the student's immediate family  (Education
Code 48205)

A student may be excused for this reason for up to five days for each incident.  (Education
Code 48205)

5. Jury duty in the manner provided for by law  (Education Code 48205)

6. Illness or medical appointment of a child to whom the student is the custodial
parent  (Education Code 48205)

7. Upon advance written request by the parent/guardian and the approval of the principal or
designee, justifiable personal reasons including, but not limited to:  (Education Code 48205)

a. Attendance or appearance in court

b. Attendance at a funeral service

c. Observance of a religious holiday or ceremony

d. Attendance at religious retreats for no more than one school day each semester

e. Attendance at an employment conference

6.



f. Attendance at an educational conference on the legislative or judicial process
offered by a nonprofit organization

8. Service as a member of a precinct board for an election pursuant to Elections Code 12302
(Education Code 48205)

9. To spend time with an immediate family member who is an active duty member of the
uniformed services, as defined in Education Code 49701, and has been called to duty for
deployment to a combat zone or a combat support position or is on leave from or has
immediately returned from such deployment  (Education Code 48205)

Such absence shall be granted for a period of time to be determined at the discretion of
the Superintendent or designee.  (Education Code 48205)

10. Attendance at the student's naturalization ceremony to become a United States citizen
(Education Code 48205)

11. Participation in a cultural ceremony or event which relates to the habits, practices, beliefs,
and traditions of a certain group of people  (Education Code 48205)

12. For a middle school or high school student, engagement in a civic or political event,
provided that the student notifies the school ahead of the absence  (Education Code
48205)

Unless otherwise permitted by the Superintendent or designee, students shall be limited to
one such school day-long absence each school year  (Education Code 48205)

13. When a student's immediate family member or, as determined by the student's
parent/guardian, a person so closely associated with the student as to be considered the
student's immediate family has died:  (Education Code 48205)

a. To access services from a victim services organization or agency

b. To access grief support services

c. To participate in safety planning or take other actions, including, but not limited
to, temporary or permanent relocation, to increase the safety of the student, an
immediate family member of the student, or a person determined by the student's
parent/guardian to be in such close association with the student as to be
considered immediate family.

Such absence shall be excused for not more than three days for each
incident.  (Education Code 48205)

14. Participation in religious exercises or to receive moral and religious instruction at the
student's place of worship or other suitable place away from school property as designated
by the religious group, church, or denomination  (Education Code 46014)



Absence for student participation in religious exercises or instruction shall not be 
considered an absence for the purpose of computing average daily attendance if the 
student attends at least the minimum school day as specified in Administrative Regulation 
6112 - School Day, and is not excused from school for this purpose on more than four days 
each school month.  (Education Code 46014) 

15. For a student who holds a work permit authorizing work in the entertainment or allied
industries for a period of not more than five consecutive days, work in such
industry  (Education Code 48225.5)

For this purpose, student absence shall be excused for a maximum of up to five absences
each school year.  (Education Code 48225.5)"

16. Participation with a nonprofit performing arts organization in a performance for a public
school audience  (Education Code 48225.5)

A student may be excused for up to five such absences each school year provided that the
student's parent/guardian provides a written explanation of such absence to the
school.  (Education Code 48225.5)

17. Other reasons authorized at the discretion of the principal or designee based on the
student's specific circumstances  (Education Code 48205, 48260)

For the purpose of the absences described above, immediate family means the student's 
parent/guardian, sibling, grandparent, or any other relative living in the student's 
household.  (Education Code 48205) 

Method of Verification 

Student absence to care for a child for whom the student is the custodial parent shall not require a 
physician's note.  (Education Code 48205) 

For other absences, the student shall, upon returning to school following the absence, present a 
satisfactory explanation, either in person or by written note, verifying the reason for the absence. 
Absences shall be verified by the student's parent/guardian, other person having charge or control 
of the student, or the student if age 18 or older.  (Education Code 46012; 5 CCR 306) 

When an absence is planned, the principal or designee shall be notified prior to the date of the 
absence when possible. 

The following methods may be used to verify student absences: 

1. Written, digital, or audio message from parent/guardian or parent representative

2. Conversation, in person or by telephone, between the verifying employee and the student's
parent/guardian or parent representative



The employee shall subsequently record the following: 

a. Name of student

b. Name of parent/guardian or parent representative

c. Name of verifying employee

d. Date(s) of absence

e. Reason for absence

3. Visit to the student's home by the verifying employee, or any other reasonable method
which establishes the fact that the student was absent for the reasons stated

The employee shall document the verification and include the information specified in Item
#2 above.

4. Physician's verification

a. When excusing students for confidential medical services or verifying such
appointments, district staff shall not ask the purpose of such appointments but may
request a note from the medical office to confirm the time of the appointment

b. If a student shows a pattern of chronic absenteeism due to illness, district staff may
require physician verification of any further student absences

Parental Notifications 

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall: 

1. Notify parents/guardians of the right to excuse a student from school in order to
participate in religious exercises or to receive moral and religious instruction at their places
of worship, or at other suitable places away from school property designated by a religious
group, church, or denomination  (Education Code 46014, 48980)

2. Notify students in grades 7-12 and the parents/guardians of all students enrolled in the
district that school authorities may excuse any student from school to obtain confidential
medical services without the consent of the student's parent/guardian  (Education Code
46010.1)

3. Notify parents/guardians that a student shall not have a grade reduced or lose academic
credit for any excused absence if missed assignments and tests that can reasonably be
provided are satisfactorily completed within a reasonable period of time  (Education Code



48980) 

Such notice shall include the full text of Education Code 48205.  (Education Code 48980) 



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Regulation 5113: Absences And Excuses Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Revised Date: 06/21/2023 | Last Reviewed Date: 
06/21/2023 

Excused Absences 

Subject to any applicable limitation, condition, or other requirement specified in law, a student's 
absence shall be excused for any of the following reasons:  

1. Personal illness, including absence for the benefit of the student's mental or behavioral
health.  (Education Code 48205)

2. Quarantine under the direction of a county or city health officer.  (Education Code 48205)

3. Medical, dental, optometrical, or chiropractic service or appointment.  (Education Code
48205)

4. Attendance at funeral services for a member of the student's immediate family.  (Education
Code 48205)

Such absence shall be limited to one day if the service is conducted in California or three
days if the service is conducted out of state.  (Education Code 48205)

5. Jury duty in the manner provided for by law.  (Education Code 48205)

6. Illness or medical appointment of a child to whom the student is the custodial
parent.  (Education Code 48205)

7. Upon advance written request by the parent/guardian and the approval of the principal or
designee, justifiable personal reasons including, but not limited to:  (Education Code 48205)

a. Appearance in court

b. Attendance at a funeral service

c. Observance of a religious holiday or ceremony

d. Attendance at religious retreats for no more than four hours per semester

e. Attendance at an employment conference

f. Attendance at an educational conference on the legislative or judicial process
offered by a nonprofit organization



8. Service as a member of a precinct board for an election pursuant to Elections Code 12302.
(Education Code 48205)

9. To spend time with an immediate family member who is an active duty member of the
uniformed services, as defined in Education Code 49701, and has been called to duty for
deployment to a combat zone or a combat support position or is on leave from or has
immediately returned from such deployment.  (Education Code 48205)

Such absence shall be granted for a period of time to be determined at the discretion of
the Superintendent or designee.  (Education Code 48205)

10. Attendance at the student's naturalization ceremony to become a United States citizen.
(Education Code 48205)

11. Participation in a cultural ceremony or event which relates to the habits, practices, beliefs,
and traditions of a certain group of people.  (Education Code 48205)

12. For a middle school or high school student, engagement in a civic or political event,
provided that the student notifies the school ahead of the absence. Unless otherwise
permitted by the Superintendent or designee, students shall be limited to one such school
day-long absence per school year.  (Education Code 48205)

13. Participation in religious exercises or to receive moral and religious instruction at the
student's place of worship or other suitable place away from school property as designated
by the religious group, church, or denomination.  (Education Code 46014)

Absence for student participation in religious exercises or instruction shall not be
considered an absence for the purpose of computing average daily attendance if the
student attends at least the minimum school day as specified in AR 6112 - School Day, and
is not excused from school for this purpose on more than four days per school
month.  (Education Code 46014)

14. Work in the entertainment or allied industry.  (Education Code 48225.5)

Work for a student who holds a work permit authorizing work in the entertainment or allied
industries for a period of not more than five consecutive days. For this purpose, student
absence shall be excused for a maximum of up to five absences per school year.  (Education
Code 48225.5)

15. Participation with a nonprofit performing arts organization in a performance for a public
school audience.  (Education Code 48225.5)

A student may be excused for up to five such absences per school year provided that the
student's parent/guardian provides a written explanation of such absence to the
school.  (Education Code 48225.5)

16. Other reasons authorized at the discretion of the principal or designee based on the
student's specific circumstances.  (Education Code 48205, 48260)



For the purpose of the absences described above, immediate family means the student's 
parent/guardian, brother or sister, grandparent, or any other relative living in the student's 
household.  (Education Code 48205) 

Method of Verification 

Student absence to care for a child for whom the student is the custodial parent shall not require a 
physician's note.  (Education Code 48205) 

For other absences, the student shall, upon returning to school following the absence, present a 
satisfactory explanation, either in person or by written note, verifying the reason for the absence. 
Absences shall be verified by the student's parent/guardian, other person having charge or control 
of the student, or the student if age 18 or older.  (Education Code 46012; 5 CCR 306) 

When an absence is planned, the principal or designee shall be notified prior to the date of the 
absence when possible. 

The following methods may be used to verify student absences: 

1. Written note, fax, email, or voice mail from parent/guardian or parent representative.

2. Conversation, in person or by telephone, between the verifying employee and the student's
parent/guardian or parent representative. The employee shall subsequently record the
following:

a. Name of student

b. Name of parent/guardian or parent representative

c. Name of verifying employee

d. Date(s) of absence

e. Reason for absence

3. Visit to the student's home by the verifying employee, or any other reasonable method
which establishes the fact that the student was absent for the reasons stated. The employee
shall document the verification and include the information specified in Item #2 above.

4. Physician's verification.

a. When excusing students for confidential medical services or verifying such
appointments, district staff shall not ask the purpose of such appointments but may
request a note from the medical office to confirm the time of the appointment.

b. If a student shows a pattern of chronic absenteeism due to illness, district staff may
require physician verification of any further student absences.



Parental Notifications 

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall: 

1. Notify parents/guardians of the right to excuse a student from school in order to
participate in religious exercises or to receive moral and religious instruction at their places
of worship, or at other suitable places away from school property designated by a religious
group, church, or denomination.  (Education Code 46014, 48980)

2. Notify students in grades 7-12 and the parents/guardians of all students enrolled in the
district that school authorities may excuse any student from school to obtain confidential
medical services without the consent of the student's parent/guardian.  (Education Code
46010.1)

3. Notify parents/guardians that a student shall not have a grade reduced or lose academic
credit for any excused absence if missed assignments and tests that can reasonably be
provided are satisfactorily completed within a reasonable period of time. Such notice shall
include the full text of Education Code 48205.  (Education Code 48980)



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Policy 5145.6: Parent/Guardian Notifications Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Revised Date: Pending 

The Governing Board desires to promote effective communication from the district and/or school 
to families to keep families informed regarding educational programs, school operations, and the 
legal rights of students and parents/guardians. The Superintendent or designee shall send 
parents/guardians all notifications required by law and any other notifications the Superintendent 
or designee believes will promote familial understanding and involvement. 

Notice of the rights and responsibilities of parents/guardians as specified in Education Code 48980 
shall be sent at the beginning of each academic year and may be provided by regular mail, in 
electronic form when so requested by the parent/guardian, or by any other method normally used 
by the district for written communication with parents/guardians.  (Education Code 48981) 

No activity specified in Education Code 48980 shall be undertaken with respect to any particular 
student unless the student's parent/guardian has been informed of such action through the annual 
notification or other separate special notification. Such notice shall state the activity that will be 
undertaken and the approximate date on which the activity will occur.  (Education Code 48983-
48984) 

The annual notification shall include a request that the parent/guardian sign the notice and return 
it to the school or, if the notice is provided in electronic format, that the parent/guardian submit a 
signed acknowledgment of receipt of the notice to the school. The parent/guardian's signature is 
not required. Any signature is an acknowledgment of receipt of the information but does not 
indicate that consent to participate in any particular program has been given or 
withheld.  (Education Code 48982) 

Whenever a student enrolls in a district school during the school year, the student's 
parents/guardians shall be given all required parental notifications at that time. 

Notifications shall be presented in an understandable and uniform format. 

When necessary, the district shall provide notifications to qualified individuals with disabilities in 
alternative formats, such as braille, large font, or audio recordings, to enable such individuals to 
effectively participate in any program, service, or activity, as required by law. 

Whenever 15 percent or more of the students enrolled in a district school speak a single primary 
language other than English, as determined from the California Department of Education census 
data collected pursuant to Education Code 52164, all notices sent to the parent/guardian of any 
such student shall, in addition to being written in English, be written in the primary language, and 
may be responded to either in English or the primary language.  (Education Code 48981, 48985) 

Whenever an employee learns that a student's parent/guardian is unable to understand the 

7.



district's printed notifications for any reason, the employee shall inform the principal or designee, 
who shall work with the parent/guardian to establish other appropriate means of communication. 



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Policy 5145.6: Parent/Guardian Notifications Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Reviewed Date: 02/27/2008 

The Governing Board recognizes that notifications are essential to effective communication 
between the school and the home. The Superintendent or designee shall send students and 
parents/guardians all notifications required by law, including notifications about their legal rights, 
and any other notifications he/she believes will promote parental understanding and involvement. 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that notifications which must be sent at the 
beginning of each academic year include a request that the parent/guardian sign the notice and 
return it to the school. (Education Code 48981, 48982)  

Notifications to parents/guardians shall be written both in English and in the family's primary 
language when so required by law. Whenever an employee learns that a student's parent/guardian 
is for any reason unable to understand the district's printed notifications, the principal or designee 
shall work with the parent/guardian to establish other appropriate means of communication. 



Policy 6164.2: Guidance/Counseling ServicesPolicy 6164.2: Guidance/Counseling Services Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 11/28/2022

The Governing Board recognizes that a structured, coherent, and comprehensive counseling program promotes
academic achievement and growth, and serves the diverse needs of district students. The district shall provide an
educational counseling program that offers students services and supports within a Multi-Tiered Systems of Support
(MTSS) framework, in accordance with law. Counseling staff shall be available to provide students with individualized
reviews of their educational progress toward academic and/or career and vocational goals and, as appropriate, may
discuss social, personal, or other issues that may impact student learning and well-being.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all persons employed to provide direct school counseling, school
psychology, school social work services, child welfare and attendance services, and/or to implement equitable school
programs and services that support students' academic and social and emotional development and college and career
readiness possess the appropriate credential from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing authorizing their
employment in such positions. Responsibilities of such positions shall be clearly defined in a job description.

Responsibilities of school counselors include, but are not limited to:

1. Engaging with, advocating for, and providing all students with direct services, such as individual counseling,
group counseling, risk assessment, crisis response, and instructional services, including mental health and
behavioral, academic, and postsecondary educational services, and indirect services, including but not limited
to, positive school climate strategies, teacher and parent/guardian consultations, and referrals to public and
private community services

2. Planning, implementing, and evaluating school counseling programs

3. Working within a MTSS that uses multiple data sources to monitor and improve student behavior, attendance,
engagement, and achievement

4. Developing, coordinating, and supervising comprehensive student support systems in collaboration with
teachers, administrators, other pupil personnel services professionals, families, community partners, and
community agencies, including county mental health agencies

5. Promoting and maintaining a safe learning environment for all students by providing restorative practices,
positive behavior interventions, and support services and by developing and responding with a variety of
intervention strategies to meet individual, group, and school community needs before, during, and after a crisis

6. Intervening to ameliorate school-related problems, including problems related to chronic absences and
retention

7. Using research-based strategies to promote mental wellness, reduce mental health stigma, and to identify
characteristics, risk factors, and warning signs of students who develop, or are at risk of developing, mental
health and behavioral disorders and who experience, or are at risk of experiencing, mistreatment, including
mistreatment related to any form of conflict or bullying

8. Improving school climate and student well-being by addressing the mental and behavioral health needs of
students during a period of transition, separation, heightened stress, and critical changes, accessing community
programs and services to meet those needs, and providing other appropriate services

9. Enhancing students' social and emotional competence, character, health, civic engagement, cultural literacy,
and commitment to lifelong learning and the pursuit of high-quality educational programs

10. Providing counseling services for unduplicated students who are classified as English learners, eligible for free
and reduced-priced meals, foster youth, and/or experiencing homelessness, including interventions and
support services that enhance equity and access to appropriate education systems and public and private
services

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

8.



11. Engaging in continued development as a professional school counselor

Educational And Career Counseling

Beginning in grade 7, parents/guardians shall receive a general notice at least once before career counseling and
course selection so that they may participate in the counseling sessions and decisions.  (Education Code 221.5)

The educational counseling program shall include academic counseling and postsecondary services, in the following
areas  (Education Code 49600):

1. Development and implementation, with parent/guardian involvement, of the student's immediate and long-
range educational plans
 

2. Optimizing progress towards achievement of proficiency standards and competencies
 

3. Completion of the required curriculum in accordance with the student's needs, abilities, interests, and
aptitudes
 

4. Academic planning for access and success in higher education programs, including advisement on courses
needed for admission to colleges and universities, standardized admissions tests, and financial aid

5. High-quality career programs at all grade levels in which students are assisted in doing all of the following:
 

a. Planning for the future, including, but not limited to, identifying personal interests, skills, and abilities,
career planning, course selection, and career transition
 

b. Becoming aware of personal preferences and interests that influence educational and occupational
exploration, career choice, and career success
 

c. Developing work self-efficacy for the ever-changing work environment, the changing needs of the
workforce, and the effects of work on quality of life
 

d. Understanding the relationship between academic achievement and career success, and the importance
of maximizing career options
 

e. Understanding the value of participating in career technical education pathways, programs, and
certifications, including, but not limited to, those related to regional occupational programs and centers,
the federal program administered by the U. S. Department of Labor offering free education and
vocational training to students, known as "Job Corps," the California Conservation Corps, work-based
learning, industry certifications, college preparation and credit, and employment opportunities
 

f. Understanding the need to develop essential employable skills and work habits
 

g. Understanding entrance requirements to the U.S. Armed Forces, including the benefits of the Armed
Services Vocational Aptitude Battery (ASVAB) test

The  district's educational counseling program also may include, but not be limited to, identification of students who
are at risk of not graduating with their peers, development of a list of coursework and experience necessary to assist
students to satisfy the curricular requirements for college admission and successfully transition to postsecondary
education or employment, and counseling regarding available options for students who fail to meet graduation
requirements to continue with their education.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish and maintain a program of guidance, placement, and follow-up for all
high school students subject to compulsory continuation education.  (Education Code 48431)

To enhance the educational counseling program and assist students in reaching their educational and professional
goals, the district shall provide students in grades 9-12 with financial aid support; social services support; state-
funded immigration legal services; academic opportunities; and parent/guardian and family workshops.  (Education



Code 54680, 54683)

As part of the district's educational counseling program, students may be offered mental and behavioral health
services under which a student may receive prevention, intervention, short-term counseling services, and mental
health related classroom instruction to reduce stigma and increase awareness of counseling support services.

No counselor shall unlawfully discriminate against any student. Guidance counseling regarding school programs and
career, vocational, or higher education opportunities shall not be differentiated on the basis of any protected
category specified in law or Board Policy 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities.

Additionally, counselors shall affirmatively explore with a student the possibility of careers, or courses leading to
careers, that are nontraditional for that student's sex.  (Education Code 221.5)

For assessing or counseling students, the district shall not use testing or other materials that permit or require
impermissible or unlawful differential treatment of students, unless such different materials cover the same
occupations and interest areas and the use of such materials is essential to the elimination of bias and discrimination. 
(5 CCR 4931)

OPTION 1:  (Districts with policy that permits college, employment, and military recruiters access to students)

Colleges and prospective employers, including military recruiters, shall have the same access to students for
recruiting purposes.  (Education Code 49603; 10 USC 503; 20 USC 7908)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (Districts with policy that prohibits college, employment, and military recruiters access to students)

Colleges and prospective employers, including military recruiters, shall not have access to students for recruiting
purposes.  (Education Code 49603; 10 USC 503)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with businesses, government agencies, postsecondary institutions
including universities and career technical schools, community organizations, and/or other employers to provide
students with actual or simulated work-based learning opportunities through college and/or career fairs.

When planning to hold a college or career fair, the Superintendent or designee shall notify each apprenticeship
program in the county. The notification shall include the planned date, time, and location of the college or career
fair.  (Labor Code 3074.2)

Additionally, the district shall provide the notification to any community college district that has overlapping
jurisdiction with the district and an opportunity for the community college district to participate in the college or
career fair.  (Education Code 52770)

Personal or Mental Health Counseling

A school counselor, school psychologist, or school social worker may provide individualized personal, mental health,
or family counseling to students in accordance with the specialization(s) authorized by their credential. Such services
may include, but are not limited to, support related to the student's social and emotional development, behavior,
substance abuse, mental health assessment, depression, or mental illness. As appropriate, students and their
parents/guardians shall be informed about community agencies, organizations, or health care providers that offer
qualified professional assistance.



Written parent/guardian consent shall be obtained before mental health counseling or treatment services are
provided to a student, except when the student is authorized to consent to the service pursuant to Family Code
6924, Health and Safety Code 124260, or other applicable law.

Any information of a personal nature disclosed to a school counselor by a student age 12 years or older or by the
student's parent/guardian is confidential and shall not become part of the student record without the written
consent of the person who disclosed the confidential information. The information shall not be revealed, released,
discussed, or referred to except under the limited circumstances specified in Education Code 49602.  (Education
Code 49602)

A counselor shall consult with the Superintendent or designee and, as appropriate, with the district's legal counsel
whenever there is uncertainty regarding how to respond to a student's personal problem or when questions arise
regarding the possible release of confidential information regarding a student.

Crisis Counseling

The Board recognizes the need for a prompt and effective response when students are confronted with a traumatic
incident. School counselors shall assist in the development of the emergency and disaster preparedness plan and
other prevention and intervention practices designed to assist students and parents/guardians before, during, and
after a crisis.

Early identification and intervention plans shall be developed to help identify those students who may be at risk for
violence so that support may be provided before they engage in violent or disruptive behavior.

Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall identify crisis counseling resources to train district staff in
effective threat assessment, appropriate response techniques, and/or methods to directly help students cope with a
crisis if it occurs.

Teacher-Based Advisory Program

The Board recognizes that a supportive, ongoing relationship with a caring adult can provide a student with valuable
advice, enhance student-teacher relationships, and build the student's feelings of connectedness with the school. The
Board authorizes the development of a teacher-based advisory program in which teachers advise students in such
areas as academic planning, character development, conflict resolution, and self-esteem. Any teacher participating in
this program shall be under the supervision of a credentialed school counselor as appropriate, receive related
information and training, and be subject to law and this Board policy, including requirements pertaining to student
confidentiality and nondiscrimination.



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Policy 6164.2: Guidance/Counseling Services Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Revised Date: 11/28/2022 | Last Reviewed Date: 
11/28/2022 

The Governing Board recognizes that a structured, coherent, and comprehensive counseling 
program promotes academic achievement and growth, and serves the diverse needs of district 
students. The district shall provide an educational counseling program that offers students services 
and supports within a Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS) framework, in accordance with law. 
Counseling staff shall be available to provide students with individualized reviews of their 
educational progress toward academic and/or career and vocational goals and, as appropriate, 
may discuss social, personal, or other issues that may impact student learning and well-being. 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all persons employed to provide direct school 
counseling, school psychology, school social work services to students, and/or implement 
equitable school programs and services that support students' academic and social emotional 
development and college and career readiness shall possess the appropriate credential from the 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing authorizing their employment in such 
positions.  Responsibilities of such positions shall be clearly defined in a job description. 

Responsibilities of school counselors include, but are not limited to: 

1. Engaging with, advocating for, and providing all students with direct services, such as
individual counseling, group counseling, risk assessment, crisis response, and instructional
services, including mental health and behavioral, academic, and postsecondary educational
services and indirect services, including but not limited to, positive school climate
strategies, teacher and parent consultations, and referrals to public and private community
services

2. Planning, implementing, and evaluating school counseling programs

3. Working within a MTSS that uses multiple data sources to monitor and improve student
behavior, attendance, engagement, and achievement

4. Developing, coordinating, and supervising comprehensive student support systems in
collaboration with teachers, administrators, other pupil personnel services professionals,
families, community partners, and community agencies, including county mental health
agencies

5. Promoting and maintaining a safe learning environment for all students by providing
restorative practices, positive behavior interventions, and support services, and by
developing a variety of intervention strategies, and using those strategies, to meet
individual, group, and school community needs before, during, and after a crisis



6. Intervening to ameliorate school-related problems, including problems related to chronic
absences and retention

7. Using research-based strategies to promote mental wellness, reduce mental health stigma,
and to identify characteristics, risk factors, and warning signs of students who develop, or
are at risk of developing, mental health and behavioral disorders and who experience, or
are at risk of experiencing, mistreatment, including mistreatment related to any form of
conflict or bullying

8. Improving school climate and student well-being by addressing the mental and behavioral
health needs of students during a period of transition, separation, heightened stress, and
critical changes, accessing community programs and services to meet those needs, and
providing other appropriate services

9. Enhancing students' social and emotional competence, character, health, civic engagement,
cultural literacy, and commitment to lifelong learning and the pursuit of high-quality
educational programs

10. Providing counseling services for unduplicated students who are classified as English
learners, or foster youth, homeless children, and students eligible for free and reduced-
priced meals, including interventions and support services that enhance equity and access
to appropriate education systems and public and private services

11. Engaging in continued development as a professional school counselor

Educational And Career Counseling 

Beginning in grade 7, parents/guardians shall receive a general notice at least once before career 
counseling and course selection so that they may participate in the counseling sessions and 
decisions.  (Education Code 221.5) 

The educational counseling program shall include academic counseling and postsecondary 
services, in the following areas  (Education Code 49600):  

1. Development and implementation, with parent/guardian involvement, of the student's
immediate and long-range educational plans

2. Optimizing progress towards achievement of proficiency standards and competencies

3. Completion of the required curriculum in accordance with the student's needs, abilities,
interests, and aptitudes

4. Academic planning for access and success in higher education programs, including
advisement on courses needed for admission to colleges and universities, standardized
admissions tests, and financial aid



5. High-quality career programs at all grade levels in which students are assisted in doing all
of the following:

a. Planning for the future, including, but not limited to, identifying personal interests,
skills, and abilities, career planning, course selection, and career transition

b. Becoming aware of personal preferences and interests that influence educational
and occupational exploration, career choice, and career success

c. Developing work self-efficacy for the ever-changing work environment, the
changing needs of the workforce, and the effects of work on quality of life

d. Understanding the relationship between academic achievement and career success,
and the importance of maximizing career options

e. Understanding the value of participating in career technical education pathways,
programs, and certifications, including, but not limited to, those related to regional
occupational programs and centers, the federal program administered by the
United States Department of Labor offering free education and vocational training
to students, known as "Job Corps," the California Conservation Corps, work-based
learning, industry certifications, college preparation and credit, and employment
opportunities

f. Understanding the need to develop essential employable skills and work habits

g. Understanding entrance requirements to the Armed Forces of the United States,
including the benefits of the Armed Services Vocational Aptitude Battery (ASVAB)
test

The  district's educational counseling program also may include, but not be limited to, 
identification of students who are at risk of not graduating with their peers, development of a list 
of coursework and experience necessary to assist students to satisfy the curricular requirements for 
college admission and successfully transition to postsecondary education or employment, and 
counseling regarding available options for students who fail to meet graduation requirements to 
continue with their education. 

The Superintendent or designee shall establish and maintain a program of guidance, placement, 
and follow-up for all high school students subject to compulsory continuation 
education.  (Education Code 48431) 

As part of the district's educational counseling program, students may be offered mental and 
behavioral health services under which a student may receive prevention, intervention, short-term 
counseling services, and mental health related classroom instruction to reduce stigma and increase 
awareness of counseling support services. 

No counselor shall unlawfully discriminate against any student. Guidance counseling regarding 
school programs and career, vocational, or higher education opportunities shall not be 
differentiated on the basis of any protected category specified in BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in 



District Programs and Activities. 

In addition, counselors shall affirmatively explore with a student the possibility of careers, or 
courses leading to careers, that are nontraditional for that student's sex.  (Education Code 221.5) 

For assessing or counseling students, the district shall not use testing or other materials that 
permit or require impermissible or unlawful differential treatment of students.  (5 CCR 4931) 

Colleges and prospective employers, including military recruiters, shall not have access to students 
for recruiting purposes.  (Education Code 49603; 10 USC 503) 

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with businesses, government agencies, 
postsecondary institutions including universities and career technical schools, community 
organizations, and/or other employers to provide students with actual or simulated work-based 
learning opportunities through college and/or career fairs. 

When planning to hold a college or career fair, the Superintendent or designee shall notify each 
apprenticeship program in the county.  The notification shall include the planned date, time and 
location of the college or career fair.  (Labor Code 3074.2) 

Personal or Mental Health Counseling 

A school counselor, school psychologist, or school social worker may provide individualized 
personal, mental health, or family counseling to students in accordance with the specialization(s) 
authorized by their credential. Such services may include, but are not limited to, support related to 
the student's social and emotional development, behavior, substance abuse, mental health 
assessment, depression, or mental illness. As appropriate, students and their parents/guardians 
shall be informed about community agencies, organizations, or health care providers that offer 
qualified professional assistance. 

Written parent/guardian consent shall be obtained before mental health counseling or treatment 
services are provided to a student, except when the student is authorized to consent to the service 
pursuant to Family Code 6920-6929, Health and Safety Code 124260, or other applicable law. 

Any information of a personal nature disclosed to a school counselor by a student age 12 years or 
older or by the student's parent/guardian is confidential and shall not become part of the student 
record without the written consent of the person who disclosed the confidential information. The 
information shall not be revealed, released, discussed, or referred to except under the limited 
circumstances specified in Education Code 49602.  (Education Code 49602) 

A counselor shall consult with the Superintendent or designee and, as appropriate, with the 
district's legal counsel whenever unsure of how to respond to a student's personal problem or 
when questions arise regarding the possible release of confidential information regarding a 
student. 

Crisis Counseling 



The Board recognizes the need for a prompt and effective response when students are confronted 
with a traumatic incident.  School counselors shall assist in the development of the comprehensive 
school safety plan, emergency and disaster preparedness plan, and other prevention and 
intervention practices designed to assist students and parents/guardians before, during, and after 
a crisis. 

Early identification and intervention plans shall be developed to help identify those students who 
may be at risk for violence so that support may be provided before they engage in violent or 
disruptive behavior. 

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall identify crisis counseling resources to train 
district staff in effective threat assessment, appropriate response techniques, and/or methods to 
directly help students cope with a crisis if it occurs. 

Teacher-Based Advisory Program 

The Board recognizes that a supportive, ongoing relationship with a caring adult can provide a 
student with valuable advice, enhance student-teacher relationships, and build the student's 
feelings of connectedness with the school. The Board authorizes the development of a teacher-
based advisory program in which teachers advise students in such areas as academic planning, 
character development, conflict resolution, and self-esteem. Any teacher participating in this 
program shall be under the supervision of a credentialed school counselor as appropriate, receive 
related information and training, and be subject to this Board policy and law, including 
requirements pertaining to student confidentiality and nondiscrimination.  



Policy 6177: Summer Learning ProgramsPolicy 6177: Summer Learning Programs Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 09/22/2021 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/21/2023

The Governing Board recognizes that an extended break from the instructional program may result in significant
learning loss, especially among disadvantaged and low-achieving students, and desires to provide opportunities
during the summer for students to practice essential skills, make academic progress, and focus on developing social,
emotional, and physical needs and interests through hands-on engaging learning experiences.

Summer programs offered by the district shall be aligned with the district's local control and accountability plan
(LCAP), other applicable district and school plans, and the educational program provided during the school year.
When feasible, summer programs shall blend high-quality academic instruction in core curricular and/or elective
subjects with recreation, nutrition programs, social and emotional development, and support services that encourage
attendance, student engagement in learning, and student wellness.

Summer School

OPTION 1 (District is not required to offer summer school)

The Superintendent or designee, with Board approval, may establish summer school day and/or evening classes.

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2 (District is required to offer summer school pursuant to Education Code 46120)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish summer school classes pursuant to Education Code 46120.

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

The district's summer school program may be used to provide supplemental instruction to students needing
remediation and/or enrichment in core academic subjects.

The district shall provide students with supplemental instruction and support in a tiered framework that bases
universal, targeted, and intensive supports on students' needs for academic, social-emotional, and other integrated
student supports through a program of engaging learning experiences in a positive school climate.

As appropriate, priority for enrollment in summer school programs shall be given to district students who:

1. Need course credits in order to graduate from high school before the beginning of the next school year

2. Have been retained or are at risk of being retained at their grade level

3. Demonstrate academic deficiencies in core curriculum areas

4. Are in student groups identified in the district's LCAP as needing increased or improved services to succeed in
the educational program

5. Are foster youth and/or are students experiencing homelessness

If during an intersession period the student will be moving, the student's educational rights holder or, in the
case of an American Indian child, Indian custodian, shall determine which school the student attends for the
intersession period, if applicable.  (Education Code 48850, 48853.5)

6. Are transitional kindergarten or kindergarten children, or in any of grades 1-6 and are required to be offered or
provided access to Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Programs pursuant to Education Code 46120 and
BP/AR 5184.2 - Before/After School Programs

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

9.



OPTION 1: (First-come first-served)

The remaining openings shall be offered to other district students on a first-come first-served basis.

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2: (Lottery)

The remaining openings shall be offered to other district students on a lottery basis.

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

Because summer courses cover extensive instructional content in a relatively short time period, students who have
more than three excused absences or one unexcused absence may not receive credit for summer session class(es)
unless they make-up missed work in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.

Sites for summer school programs may be rotated in an effort to make summer school programs more accessible to
all students, regardless of residence or regular attendance area, and to accommodate the maintenance needs of
district schools.

The district shall provide any student who attends a school that is not operating an ELO program transportation to
attend at a location that is providing an ELO program and to return to the original location or another location that is
established by the district.  (Education Code 46120)

The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board on summer school enrollment in the current year
and previous year for the program as a whole and disaggregated by grade level, school that the students attend
during the regular school year, and student population. In addition, the Superintendent or designee may report on the
extent to which students successfully achieved the outcomes established for the program.

Additional Summer Learning Opportunities

The Superintendent or designee may collaborate with parents/guardians, city and county agencies, community
organizations, child care providers, and/or other interested persons to develop, implement, and build awareness of
organized activities that support summer learning.

Strategies to support summer learning may include, but are not limited to:

1. Providing information to students and parents/guardians about summer reading programs scheduled to be
conducted by public libraries or community organizations

2. Collaborating with the local parks and recreation agency and/or community organizations to provide day
camps, sports programs, or other opportunities for physical education and activity

3. Collaborating with workforce development agencies, businesses, and community organizations to provide
summer job training opportunities that include an academic component

4. Encouraging reading in the home, such as providing lists of recommended reading to students and
parents/guardians, establishing a target number of books or pages, and providing prizes for achievement of
reading goals

5. Assigning summer vacation homework in core curricular subject(s) for extra credit

6. Conducting occasional, interactive "fun days" during the summer to provide activities related to art, music,
science, technology, mathematics, environmental science, multicultural education, debate, or other subject

7. Arranging opportunities for community service



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Policy 6177: Summer Learning Programs Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 09/22/2021 | Last Revised Date: 06/21/2023 | Last Reviewed Date: 
06/21/2023 

The Governing Board recognizes that an extended break from the instructional program may result 
in significant learning loss, especially among disadvantaged and low-achieving students, and 
desires to provide opportunities during the summer for students to practice essential skills, make 
academic progress, and develop social, emotional, and physical needs and interests through 
hands-on engaging learning experiences. 

Summer programs offered by the district shall be aligned with the district's local control and 
accountability plan (LCAP), other applicable district and school plans, and the educational program 
provided during the school year. When feasible, summer programs shall blend high-quality 
academic instruction in core curricular and/or elective subjects with recreation, nutrition programs, 
social and emotional development, and support services that encourage attendance, student 
engagement in learning, and student wellness. 

Summer School 

The Superintendent or designee shall establish summer school classes pursuant to Education Code 
46120. 

The district's summer school program may be used to provide supplemental instruction to 
students needing remediation and/or enrichment in core academic subjects. 

As appropriate, priority for enrollment in summer school programs shall be given to district 
students who:  

1. Need course credits in order to graduate from high school before the beginning of the next
school year

2. Have been retained or are at risk of being retained at their grade level

3. Demonstrate academic deficiencies in core curriculum areas

4. Are in targeted student groups identified in the district's LCAP as needing increased or
improved services to succeed in the educational program

5. Are in grades transitional kindergarten (TK)-6 and are required to be offered or provided
access to Expanded Learning Opportunities Programs pursuant to Education Code 46120
and BP/AR 5184.2 - Before/After School Programs

The remaining openings shall be offered to other district students on a first-come first-served 
basis. 



Sites for summer school programs may be rotated in an effort to make summer school programs 
more accessible to all students, regardless of residence or regular attendance area, and to 
accommodate the maintenance needs of district schools. 

The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board on summer school enrollment 
in the current year and previous year for the program as a whole and disaggregated by grade level, 
school that the students attend during the regular school year, and student population. In addition, 
the Superintendent or designee may report on the extent to which students successfully achieved 
the outcomes established for the program. 

Additional Summer Learning Opportunities 

The Superintendent or designee may collaborate with parents/guardians, city and county agencies, 
community organizations, child care providers, and/or other interested persons to develop, 
implement, and build awareness of organized activities that support summer learning. 

Strategies to support summer learning may include, but are not limited to: 

1. Providing information to students and parents/guardians about summer reading programs
scheduled to be conducted by public libraries or community organizations

2. Collaborating with the local parks and recreation agency and/or community organizations
to provide day camps, sports programs, or other opportunities for physical education and
activity

3. Encouraging reading in the home, such as providing lists of recommended reading to
students and parents/guardians, establishing a target number of books or pages, and
providing prizes for achievement of reading goals

4. Assigning summer vacation homework in core curricular subject(s) for extra credit

5. Conducting occasional, interactive "fun days" during the summer to provide activities
related to art, music, science, technology, mathematics, environmental science, multicultural
education, debate, or other subject

6. Arranging opportunities for community service



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Policy 7214: General Obligation Bonds Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Revised Date: Pending 

The Governing Board recognizes that school facilities are an essential component of the 
educational program and that the Board has a responsibility to ensure that the district's facilities 
needs are met in the most cost-effective manner possible. The Board may direct the 
Superintendent to explore the possibility of a bond measure, which may include, but is not limited 
to, conducting community focus groups, surveys, and Board presentations. When the Board 
determines that it is in the best interest of district students, it may order an election on the 
question of whether bonds shall be issued to pay for school facilities. 

The Board's decision to order a bond election, as well as its determinations regarding the 
appropriate amount, timing, and structure of the bond issuance, shall be consistent with law and 
the district's debt management policy. 

Before ordering a bond election, the Board shall obtain reasonable and informed projections of 
assessed valuations that take into consideration projections of assessed property valuations made 
by the county assessor.  (Education Code 15100) 

When any project to be funded by bonds will require state matching funds for any phase of the 
project, the ballot materials for the bond measure shall include a statement as specified in 
Education Code 15122.5, advising voters that, because the project is subject to approval of state 
matching funds, passage of the bond measure is not a guarantee that the project will be 
completed.  (Education Code 15122.5) 

Bonds Requiring 55 Percent Approval by Local Voters 

The Board, by a two-thirds vote and subject to Education Code 15100, may adopt a resolution to 
incur bonded indebtedness and order an election. Pursuant to the California Constitution, Article 
13A, Section 1(b)(3) and Article 16, Section 18(b), a bond election authorized pursuant to Education 
Code 15266 requires the approval of at least a 55 percent majority of the voters voting in the 
election.  (Education Code 15266) 

The bond election may only be ordered at a primary or general election, a statewide special 
election, or a regularly scheduled local election at which all of the electors of the district are 
entitled to vote.  (Education Code 15266) 

Bonded indebtedness incurred by the district pursuant to Education Code 15266 shall be used only 
for the following purposes:  (California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and 1(b)(3)(A))  

1. The construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities,
including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities

10.



2. The acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities

3. The refunding of any outstanding debt issuance used for the purposes specified in Items
#1-2 above

The proposition approved by the voters shall include the following accountability 
requirements:  (California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3))  

1. Certification that proceeds from the sale of the bonds will be used only for the purposes
specified in Items #1-2 above, and not for any other purposes including teacher and
administrative salaries and other school operating expenses

2. A list of specific school facilities projects to be funded and certification that the Board has
evaluated safety, class size reduction, and information technology needs in developing that
list

3. A requirement that the Board conduct an annual, independent performance audit to ensure
that the funds have been expended only on the specific projects listed

4. A requirement that the Board conduct an annual, independent financial audit of the
proceeds from the sale of the bonds until all of those proceeds have been expended for the
school facilities projects

If a district general obligation bond requiring a 55 percent majority is approved by the voters, the 
Board shall appoint an independent citizens' oversight committee to inform the public concerning 
the expenditure of bond revenues as specified in Education Code 15278 and the accompanying 
administrative regulation. This committee shall be appointed within 60 days of the date that the 
Board enters the election results in its minutes pursuant to Education Code 15274.  (Education 
Code 15278) 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the annual, independent performance and 
financial audits required pursuant to Items #3-4 above are issued in accordance with the U.S. 
Comptroller General's Government Auditing Standards and submitted to the citizens' oversight 
committee at the same time they are submitted to the Superintendent or designee and no later 
than March 31 of each year.  (Education Code 15286) 

The Board shall provide the citizens' oversight committee with responses to all findings, 
recommendations, and concerns addressed in the performance and financial audits within three 
months of receiving the audits.  (Education Code 15280) 

The Board may disband the citizens' oversight committee when the committee has completed its 
review of the final performance and financial audits. 

Bonds Requiring 66.67 Percent Approval by Local Voters 

The Board may decide to pursue the authorization and issuance of bonds by approval of 66.67 



percent majority of the voters pursuant to Education Code 15100 and California Constitution, 
Article 13A, Section 1(b)(2). If a majority of the Board agrees to such an election, or upon a petition 
of the majority of the qualified electors residing in the district, the Board shall adopt a resolution 
ordering an election on the question of whether to incur bonded indebtedness if approved by a 
66.67 percent majority of the voters.  (Education Code 15100) 

The bond election may be ordered to occur on any Tuesday, except a Tuesday that is a state 
holiday or the day before or after a state holiday, is within 45 days before or after a statewide 
election unless conducted at the same time as the statewide election, or is an established election 
date pursuant to Elections Code 1000 or 1500.  (Education Code 15101) 

Subject to limits specified in Article 13A, Section 1 of the California Constitution, bonds shall be 
sold to raise money for any of the following purposes:  (Education Code 15100)  

1. Purchasing school lots

2. Building or purchasing school buildings

3. Making alterations or additions to school building(s) other than as may be necessary for
current maintenance, operation, or repairs

4. Repairing, restoring, or rebuilding any school building damaged, injured, or destroyed by
fire or other public calamity

5. Supplying school buildings and grounds with furniture, equipment, or necessary apparatus
of a permanent nature

6. Permanently improving school grounds

7. Refunding any outstanding valid indebtedness of the district, evidenced by bonds or state
school building aid loans

8. Carrying out sewer or drain projects or purposes authorized in Education Code 17577

9. Purchasing school buses with a useful life of at least 20 years

10. Demolishing or razing any school building with the intent to replace it with another school
building, whether in the same location or in any other location

Except for refunding any outstanding indebtedness, any of the purposes listed above may be 
united and voted upon as a single proposition by an order of the Board entered into the 
minutes.  (Education Code 15100) 

The Board may appoint a citizens' oversight committee to review and report to the Board and the 
public as to whether the expenditure of bond revenues complies with the intended purposes of the 
bond. 

Certificate of Results 



If the certificate of election results received by the Board shows that the appropriate majority of 
the voters is in favor of issuing the bonds, the Board shall record that fact in its minutes. The Board 
shall then certify to the County Board of Supervisors all proceedings it had in connection with the 
election results.  (Education Code 15124, 15274) 

Resolutions Regarding Sale of Bonds 

Following passage of the bond measure by the appropriate majority of voters, the Board shall pass 
a resolution directing the issuance and sale of bonds. In accordance with law, the resolution shall 
prescribe the total amount of bonds to be sold and may also prescribe the maximum acceptable 
interest rate, not to exceed eight percent, and the time(s) when the whole or any part of the 
principal of the bonds shall be payable.  (Education Code 15140; Government Code 53508.6) 

In passing the resolution, the Board shall consider each available funding instrument, including, but 
not limited to, the costs associated with each and their relative suitability for the project to be 
financed. 

Prior to the sale of bonds, the Board shall place an agenda item at a public meeting and adopt as 
part of the bond issuance resolution, or in a separate resolution, disclosures of the available 
funding instruments, the costs and sustainability of each, and all of the following 
information:  (Education Code 15146)  

1. Express approval of the method of sale, such as competitive or negotiated sales

2. Statement of the reasons for the method of sale selected

3. Disclosure of the identity of the bond counsel, and the identities of the bond underwriter
and the financial adviser if either or both are utilized for the sale, unless these individuals
have not been selected at the time the resolution is adopted, in which case the Board shall
disclose their identities at the public meeting occurring after they have been selected

4. Estimates of the costs associated with the bond issuance, including, but not limited to,
bond counsel and financial advisor fees, printing costs, rating agency fees, underwriting
fees, and other miscellaneous costs and expenses of issuing the bonds

When the sale involves bonds that allow for the compounding of interest, such as a capital 
appreciation bond (CAB), the resolution to be adopted by the Board shall include Items #1-4 above 
as well as the financing term and time of maturity, repayment ratio, and the estimated change in 
the assessed value of taxable property within the district over the term of the bonds. The 
resolution shall be publicly noticed on at least two consecutive meeting agendas, first as an 
information item and second as an action item. The agendas shall identify that bonds that allow for 
the compounding of interest are proposed.  (Education Code 15146) 

Prior to adopting a resolution for the sale of bonds that allow for the compounding of interest, the 
Board shall be presented with the following:  (Education Code 15146)  



1. An analysis containing the total overall cost of the bonds that allow for the compounding
of interest

2. A comparison to the overall cost of current interest bonds

3. The reason bonds that allow for the compounding of interest are being recommended

4. A copy of the disclosure made by the underwriter in compliance with Rule G-17 adopted by
the federal Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board

At least 30 days prior to the sale of any debt issue, the Superintendent or designee shall submit a 
report of the proposed issuance to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission 
(CDIAC).  (Government Code 8855) 

After the sale, the Board shall be presented with the actual issuance cost information and shall 
disclose that information at the Board's next scheduled meeting. The Board shall ensure that an 
itemized summary of the costs of the bond sale and all necessary information and reports 
regarding the sale are submitted to the CDAIC.  (Education Code 15146; Government Code 
53509.5) 

Bond Anticipation Notes 

Whenever the Board determines that it is in the best interest of the district, it may, by resolution, 
issue a bond anticipation note, on a negotiated or competitive-bid basis, to raise funds that shall 
be used only for a purpose authorized by a bond that has been approved by the voters of the 
district in accordance with law.  (Education Code 15150) 

Payment of principal and interest on any bond anticipation note shall be made at note maturity, 
not to exceed five years, from the proceeds derived from the sale of the bond in anticipation of 
which that note was originally issued or from any other source lawfully available for that purpose, 
including state grants. Interest payments may also be made from such sources. However, interest 
payments may be made periodically and prior to note maturity from an increased property tax if 
the following conditions are met:  (Education Code 15150)  

1. A resolution of the Board authorizes the property tax for that purpose

2. The principal amount of the bond anticipation note does not exceed the remaining
principal amount of the authorized but unissued bonds

A bond anticipation note may be issued only if the tax rate levied to pay interest on the note 
would not cause the district to exceed the tax rate limitation set forth in Education Code 15268 or 
15270, as applicable. 

Deposit of Bond Proceeds 

With regard to general obligation bonds, the district shall invest new money bond proceeds in the 
county treasury pool as required by law.  (Education Code 15146)  



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Policy 7214: General Obligation Bonds Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Reviewed Date: 02/27/2008 

The Governing Board desires to provide adequate facilities in order to enhance student learning 
and to help the district achieve its vision for educating district students. To that end, the Board 
may order an election on the question of whether bonds shall be issued for school facilities when, 
in the Board's judgment, it is advisable and in the best interest of district students. 

The Board shall determine the appropriate size of the bond in accordance with law. 

Bonds Requiring 55 Percent Approval by Local Voters 

The Board may decide to pursue the authorization and issuance of bonds by approval of 55 
percent majority of the voters pursuant to Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and Article 16, Section 18(b) 
of the California Constitution. If two-thirds of the Board agree to such an election, the Board shall 
vote to adopt a resolution to incur bonded indebtedness if approved by a 55 percent majority of 
the voters. (Education Code 15266) 

The bond election may only be ordered at a primary or general election, a statewide special 
election, or a regularly scheduled local election at which all of the electors of the school district are 
entitled to vote. (Education Code 15266) 

Bonded indebtedness incurred by the district shall be used only for the construction, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and 
equipping of school facilities, or the acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities. 
(California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and 1(b)(3)(A)) 

The proposition approved by the voters shall include the following accountability requirements: 
(California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)) 

1. A requirement that proceeds from the sale of the bonds be used only for the purposes
specified above, as detailed in California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3), and not
for any other purposes including teacher and administrative salaries and other school
operating expenses

2. A list of specific school facility projects to be funded and certification that the Board has
evaluated safety, class size reduction, and information technology needs in developing that
list

3. A requirement that the Board conduct an annual, independent performance audit to ensure
that the funds have been expended only on the specific projects listed

4. A requirement that the Board conduct an annual, independent financial audit of the
proceeds from the sale of the bonds until all of those proceeds have been expended for the
school facilities projects



Bonds Requiring 66.67 Percent Approval by Local Voters 

Bonds shall be sold to raise money for the following purposes: (Education Code 15100) 

1. Purchasing school lots

2. Building or purchasing school buildings

3. Making alterations or additions to school building(s) other than as may be necessary for
current maintenance, operation, or repairs

4. Repairing, restoring, or rebuilding any school building damaged, injured, or destroyed by
fire or other public calamity

5. Supplying school buildings and grounds with furniture, equipment, or necessary apparatus
of a permanent nature

6. Permanently improving school grounds

7. Refunding any outstanding valid indebtedness of the district, evidenced by bonds or state
school building aid loans

8. Carrying out sewer or drain projects or purposes authorized in Education Code 17577

9. Purchasing school buses with a useful life of at least 20 years

10. Demolishing or razing any school building with the intent to replace it with another school
building, whether in the same location or in any other location

Except for refunding any outstanding indebtedness, any of the purposes listed above may be 
united and voted upon as a single proposition by order of the Board and entered into the minutes. 
(Education Code 15100) 



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District

Regulation 7214: General Obligation Bonds Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Revised Date: Pending 

Election Notice 

Whenever the Governing Board orders an election on the question of whether general obligation 
bonds shall be issued to pay for school facilities, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that 
election notice and ballot requirements comply with Education Code 15120-15126 and 15272, as 
applicable, and the section "Ballot Materials" below. 

At least 88 days prior to the date of the election, the Superintendent or designee shall deliver to 
the officer conducting the election the resolution calling the election, including the date and 
purpose of the election, the authority for ordering the election and the specification of the election 
order, the signature of the officer or the clerk of the Board authorized to make such designations, 
and all other applicable ballot materials.   (Education Code 5322) 

Ballot Materials 

The ballot question to appear on the ballot shall not exceed 75 words and shall appear in the form 
specified in Elections Code 13119.  (Education Code 5322) 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the ballot materials comply with applicable laws 
including a brief statement of the measure setting forth the amount of the bonds to be voted 
upon, the maximum rate of interest, and the purposes for which the proceeds of the sale of the 
bonds are to be used.  (Education Code 15122) 

In addition to the 75 word ballot question, a separate statement shall be included with the sample 
ballot, which includes the best estimate from official sources of all of the following:  (Elections 
Code 9401) 

1. The average annual tax rate that would be required to be levied to fund the bond issue
over the entire duration of the bond debt service, based on assessed valuations available at
the time of the election or a projection based on experience within the same jurisdiction or
other demonstrable factors

The estimate shall also identify the final fiscal year in which the tax is anticipated to be
collected.

2. The highest tax rate that would be required to be levied to fund the bond issue, and an
estimate of the year in which that rate will apply, based on assessed valuations available at
the time of the election or a projection based on experience within the same jurisdiction or

11.



other demonstrable factors 
  

3. The total debt service, including the principal and interest, that would be required to be 
repaid if all the bonds are issued and sold 
 
The estimate may include information about the assumptions used to determine the 
estimate. 

For bond measures requiring 55 percent majority of the voters, the Superintendent or designee 
shall ensure that the text of the ballot measure includes a statement that the Board will appoint a 
citizens' oversight committee and that annual independent audits will be conducted to assure that 
funds are spent only on school and classroom improvements and for no other 
purposes.  (Education Code 15272) 
 
For bond funded projects that require state matching funds, the Superintendent or designee shall 
ensure the sample ballot contains a statement advising the voters that the project is subject to the 
approval of state matching funds and, therefore, passage of the bond measure is not a guarantee 
that the project will be completed.  (Education Code 15122.5) 
 
Arguments in support or in opposition of the bond measure shall be submitted in accordance with 
Elections Code 9160-9170. 
 
Citizens' Oversight Committee 
 
If a bond is approved under the 55 percent majority threshold pursuant to Proposition 39 to the 
California Constitution, Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and Article 16, Section 18(b), then the district's 
citizens' oversight committee shall consist of at least seven members, including, but not limited 
to:  (Education Code 15282)  

1. One member active in a business organization representing the business community 
located within the district 
  

2. One member active in a senior citizens' organization 
  

3. One member active in a bona fide taxpayers' organization 
  

4. One member who is a parent/guardian of a district student 
  

5. One member who is a parent/guardian of a district student and is active in a parent-teacher 
organization, such as the Parent Teacher Association or school site council 

Members of the citizens' oversight committee shall be subject to the conflict of interest 
prohibitions regarding incompatibility of office pursuant to Government Code 1125-1129 and 
financial interest in contracts pursuant to Government Code 1090-1099.  (Education Code 15282) 
 
No employee, Board member, vendor, contractor, or consultant of the district shall be appointed 
to the citizens' oversight committee.  (Education Code 15282) 
 



Members of the citizens' oversight committee may serve for no more than three consecutive terms 
of two years each. They shall serve without compensation.  (Education Code 15282) 
 
The purpose of the citizens' oversight committee shall be to inform the public concerning the 
expenditure of bond revenues. The committee shall actively review and report on the proper 
expenditure of taxpayers' money for school construction and shall convene to provide oversight 
for, but not limited to, the following:  (Education Code 15278)  

1. Ensuring that bond revenues are expended only for the purposes described in California 
Constitution, Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3), including the construction, reconstruction, 
rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and equipping of 
school facilities, or the acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities 
  

2. Ensuring that, as prohibited by California Constitution, Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)(A), no 
funds are used for any teacher and administrative salaries or other school operating 
expenses 

In furtherance of its purpose, the committee may engage in any of the following 
activities:  (Education Code 15278)  

1. Receiving and reviewing copies of the annual, independent performance and financial 
audits required by California Constitution, Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)(C) and (D) 
  

2. Inspecting school facilities and grounds to ensure that bond revenues are expended in 
compliance with the requirements of California Constitution, Article 13(A), Section 1(b)(3) 
  

3. Receiving and reviewing copies of any deferred maintenance proposals or plans developed 
by the district 
  

4. Reviewing efforts by the district to maximize bond revenues by implementing cost-saving 
measures, including, but not limited to, the following: 
   

a. Mechanisms designed to reduce the costs of professional fees 
  

b. Mechanisms designed to reduce the costs of site preparation 
  

c. Recommendations regarding the joint use of core facilities 
  

d. Mechanisms designed to reduce costs by incorporating efficiencies in school site 
design 
  

e. Recommendations regarding the use of cost-effective and efficient reusable facility 
plans 

The district shall, without expending bond funds, provide the citizens' oversight committee with 
any necessary technical assistance and shall provide administrative assistance in furtherance of the 
committee's purpose and sufficient resources to publicize the committee's conclusions. The district 
shall also provide the citizens' oversight committee with responses to any and all findings, 
recommendations, and concerns addressed in the annual independent financial and performance 



audits within three months of receiving the audits.  (Education Code 15280) 
 
All citizens' oversight committee proceedings shall be open to the public and noticed in the same 
manner as proceedings of the Board. Committee meetings shall be subject to the provisions of the 
Ralph M. Brown Act.  (Education Code 15280; Government Code 54952) 
 
The citizens' oversight committee shall issue regular reports, at least once a year, on the results of 
its activities. Minutes of the proceedings and all documents received and reports issued shall be a 
matter of public record and shall be made available on the district's website.  (Education Code 
15280) 
 
Reports 
 
Within 30 days after the end of each fiscal year, the district shall submit to the County 
Superintendent of Schools a report concerning any bond election(s) containing the following 
information:  (Education Code 15111)  

1. The total amount of the bond issue, bonded indebtedness, or other indebtedness involved 
  

2. The percentage of registered electors who voted at the election 
  

3. The results of the election, with the percentage of votes cast for and against the 
proposition 

By each January 31 following a bond issuance, the district shall submit an annual report to the 
California Debt Investment and Advisory Commission in accordance with Government Code 8855 
and as specified in BP 3470 - Debt Issuance and Management.  



Board Policy Manual 
Galt Joint Union Elementary School  District 

Regulation 7214: General Obligation Bonds Status: ADOPTED 

Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Reviewed Date: 02/27/2008  

 

Election Notice 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that election notice and ballot requirements are 
satisfied in accordance with Education Code 15120-15126 and 15272. 

Certificate of Results 

If it appears from the certificate of election results that the appropriate majority of the voters are in 
favor of issuing the bonds, the Governing Board shall cause an entry of that fact to be made in its 
minutes. The Board shall then certify to the board of supervisors of the county whose 
superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over the district all proceedings had in connection with 
the election results. (Education Code 15124, 15274) 

Resolution Regarding Sale of Bonds 

Following passage of the bond measure, the Board shall pass a resolution to issue the sale of 
bonds. The resolution shall prescribe the total amount of bonds to be sold and may also prescribe 
the maximum acceptable interest rate, not to exceed eight percent, and the time(s) when the 
whole or any part of the principal of the bonds shall be payable, which shall not be more than 25 
years from the date of the bonds. (Education Code 15140) 

Prior to the sale of bonds, the Board shall adopt, as an agenda item at a public meeting, another 
resolution, which includes all of the following items: (Education Code 15146) 

1. Express approval of the method of sale 
  

2. Statement of the reasons for the method of sale selected 
  

3. Disclosure of the identity of the bond counsel, and the identities of the bond underwriter 
and the financial adviser if either or both are utilized for the sale, unless these individuals 
have not been selected at the time the resolution is adopted, in which case the Board shall 
disclose their identities at the public meeting occurring after they have been selected 
  

4. Estimates of the costs associated with the bond issuance 

After the sale, the Board shall be presented with the actual cost information and shall disclose that 
information at the Board's next scheduled meeting. The Board shall ensure that an itemized 
summary of the costs of the bond sale and all necessary information and reports regarding the 
sale are submitted to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission. (Education Code 
15146) 

Citizens' Oversight Committee 



If a district general obligation bond requiring a 55 percent majority is approved by the voters, the 
Board shall appoint an independent citizens' advisory oversight committee. This committee shall 
be appointed within 60 days of the date that the Board enters the election results in its minutes 
pursuant to Education Code 15274. (Education Code 15278) 

The citizens' oversight committee shall consist of at least seven members including, but not limited 
to: (Education Code 15282) 

1. One member active in a business organization representing the business community 
located within the district 
  

2. One member active in a senior citizens organization 
  

3. One member active in a bona fide taxpayers' organization 
  

4. One member who is a parent/guardian of a child enrolled in the district 
  

5. One member who is a parent/guardian of a child enrolled in the district and is active in a 
parent-teacher organization, such as the Parent Teacher Association or school site council 

No employee, official, vendor, contractor, or consultant of the district shall be appointed to the 
citizens' oversight committee. (Education Code 15282)  

Members of the citizens' oversight committee shall serve for a term of two years without 
compensation and for no more than two consecutive terms. (Education Code 15282) 

The purpose of the citizens' oversight committee shall be to inform the public concerning the 
expenditure of bond revenues. The committee shall actively review and report on the proper 
expenditure of taxpayers' money for school construction and shall convene to provide oversight 
for, but not limited to, the following: (Education Code 15278) 

1. Ensuring that bond revenues are expended only for the purposes described in Article 13A, 
Section 1(b)(3) of the California Constitution including the construction, reconstruction, 
rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and equipping of 
school facilities, or the acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities 
  

2. Ensuring that, as prohibited by Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)(A) of the California Constitution, 
no funds are used for any teacher and administrative salaries or other school operating 
expenses 

In furtherance of its purpose, the committee may engage in any of the following activities: 
(Education Code 15278) 

1. Receiving and reviewing copies of the annual, independent performance audit required by 
Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)(C) of the California Constitution 
  

2. Receiving and reviewing copies of the annual, independent financial audit required by 
Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)(D) of the California Constitution 
  



3. Inspecting school facilities and grounds to ensure that bond revenues are expended in 
compliance with the requirements of Article 13(A), Section 1(b)(3) of the California 
Constitution 
  

4. Receiving and reviewing copies of any deferred maintenance proposals or plans developed 
by the district, including any reports required by Education Code 17584.1 
  

5. Reviewing efforts by the district to maximize bond revenues by implementing cost-saving 
measures including, but not limited to, the following: 
   

a. Mechanisms designed to reduce the costs of professional fees 
  

b. Mechanisms designed to reduce the costs of site preparation 
  

c. Recommendations regarding the joint use of core facilities 
  

d. Mechanisms designed to reduce costs by incorporating efficiencies in school site 
design 
  

e. Recommendations regarding the use of cost-effective and efficient reusable facility 
plans 

The Board shall, without expending bond funds, provide the citizens' oversight committee with any 
necessary technical assistance and shall provide administrative assistance in furtherance of the 
committee's purpose and sufficient resources to publicize the committee's conclusions. (Education 
Code 15280) 

All oversight committee proceedings shall be open to the public and noticed in the same manner 
as proceedings of the Board. Committee meetings shall be subject to the provisions of the Ralph 
M. Brown Act. (Education Code 15280; Government Code 54952) 

The oversight committee shall issue regular reports, at least once a year, on the results of its 
activities. Minutes of the proceedings and all documents received and reports issued shall be a 
matter of public record and shall be made available on the district's web site. (Education Code 
15280)  

Members of the oversight committee shall be subject to prohibitions regarding incompatibility of 
office pursuant to Government Code 1125-1129 and financial interest in contracts pursuant to 
Government Code 1090-1098. (Education Code 15282) 

Reports 

Within 30 days after the end of each fiscal year, the Board shall submit to the County 
Superintendent of Schools a report concerning any bond election(s) containing the following 
information: (Education Code 15111) 

1. The total amount of the bond issue, bonded indebtedness, or other indebtedness involved 
  

2. The percentage of registered electors who voted at the election 
  



3. The results of the election, with the percentage of votes cast for and against the 
proposition 

  


	Agenda
	Closed Session
	Recognition
	Board Meeting Protocol
	Reports
	LCAP Goal 1
	LCAP Goal 2
	OTHER Reports
	242.501 Consent Calendar
	242.502 CC Items Removed
	242.503 Student Matter
	242.504 SchoolWorks Proposal
	242.505 Consultant Agreement- Outdoor Ed
	242.506 Variable Term Waiver
	242.507 Res 1 NOC for MOT Shop
	242.508 General Contractor- Portable Classrooms at Greer
	242.509 Supervisory Salary Schedule Update
	242.510 Admin Daily Sub Rate
	242.511 Piggyback w/Clovis Unified- EV School Buses
	242.512 Revised Facility Use Forms & Fees
	242.513 April Board Mtg Date Change
	242.514 CSBA Directors at Large
	242.515 Board Policies- First Reading

	Job Title: Superintendent
	Phone Number: 209-744-4545
	E-mail Address: superintedent@galt.k12.ca.us
	School District: [Galt Joint Union S.D.]
	Quarter: [Quarter 4 (Apr.–Jun.)]
	Year: 2023-2024
	Total Number of Textbook Complaints: 0
	Number of Textbook Complaints Resolved: 0
	Number of Textbook Complaints Unresolved: 0
	Total Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints: 0
	Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints Resolved: 0
	Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints Unresolved: 0
	Total Number of VacancyMisassignment Complaints: 0
	Number of Vacancy/Misassignment Complaints Resolved: 0
	Number of Vacancy/Misassignment Complaints Unresolved: 0
	Resolution of Complaints: N/A
	Includes All UCP Complaints: On
	User Groups: 
	Person in charge: 
	Email: 
	Phone: 
	Alternate person in charge: 
	Phone_2: 
	Area/Room: 
	Purpose of Use: 
	Equipment requested: 
	Admission charge: 
	Total estimated attendance: 
	School Requested: [ ]
	Kitchen: [ ]
	Date(s) Requested: 
	Start Time Requested: 
	End Time Requested: 
	Name: Lois Yount
	Title: 
	User Group Sign Date_af_date: 


